I1.
I11.
IV.

VI

VII.

VIII.

IX.

City of Gardner, Magsachusetts
Office of the City Council

CALENDAR FOR THE MEETING
of
MONDAY, MARCH 4, 2024
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER
7:30 P.M.

ORDER OF BUSINESS

CALL TO ORDER
CALL OF THE ROLL OF COUNCILLORS
OPENING PRAYER

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ANNOUNCEMENT OF OPEN MEETING RECORDINGS

Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session of a meeting, or may transmit the meeting through any medium, subject to reasonable
requirements of the chair as to the number, placement and operation of equipment used so as not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting. Any person
intending to make such recording shall notify the Chair forthwith. All documents and exhibits used or referenced at the meeting must be submitted in
duplicate to the City Clerk, as they become part of the Meeting Minutes.

READING OF MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETING(S)
PUBLIC HEARINGS
COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR

COMMUNICATIONS

11203 — A Communication from the Mayor Regarding City Property Damage as a
result of the Wind Storm of 2/28/2024 to 2/29/2024.

PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC.

11198 — A Notice from the City Clerk Relative to a Vacancy in the Position of
Councillor at Large.

11199 — A Petition by National Grid and Verizon New England, Inc., Allen Street — to
install 1 Jointly Owned Pole on Allen Street beginning at a point
approximately 430 feet west of the centerline of the intersection of Allen
Street and Winslow Street. Install 1 Jointly Owned Pole #7 for new houses.
(Service Committee)

Page 1 of 5



11200 — A Request from Councillor George Tyros to have an Informal Meeting to
Review the City’s management of the Community Development Block Grant
Program.

11201 — An Open Meeting Law Complaint Filed by Paul DeMeo Regarding Open
Meeting Law Discussion with the City Council.

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

SAFETY COMMITTEE

11086 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner Chapter 600,
Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled “Parking Prohibited on
Certain Streets” — Comee Street. (In the City Council and Referred to the
Public Safety Committee 11/6/2023; More Time 11/20/2023, 12/4/2023,
12/18/2023, 1/2/2024, 1/16/2024, 2/5/2024, 2/20/2024)

11115 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner Chapter 600,
Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic”, Section 24, Entitled “Parking Prohibited on
Certain Streets.” — Douglas Road. (In the City Council & Referred to Safety
Committee 12/18/2023; More Time 1/2/2024, 1/16/2024, 2/5/2024,
2/20/2024)

APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE

11124 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Alan Agnelli, to the
position of Historical Commission Member, for term expiring January 8§,
2027. (In the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee
1/16/2024)

11126 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Tammy Erdmann, to the
position of Municipal Grounds Commission Member, for term expiring
January 9, 2027. (In the City Council and Referred to the Appointments
Committee 1/16/2024)

11127 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Thomas Zuppa, to the
position of Building Commissioner, for term expiring January 9, 2027. (In the
City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024)

11129 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Dane Arnold, to the
position of Public Works Director, for term expiring January 4, 2027. (In the
City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024)

11130 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Michael F. Ellis, to the
position of Senior Citizen’s Director, for term expiring January 4, 2027. (In
the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024)

Page 2 of 5



11131 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Lynette R. Gabrila, to
the position of Veteran’s Agent/Veterans’ Burial Agent, for term expiring
January 4, 2025. (In the City Council and Referred to the Appointments
Committee 1/16/2024)

11134 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Carla J. Wojtukiewcz, to
the position of Trustee, Williams-Rockwell Educational Gift Fund, for term
expiring January 4, 2027. (In the City Council and Referred to the
Appointments Committee 1/16/2024)

11135 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Robert Rice, Esq., to the
position of Trustee, Williams-Rockwell Educational Gift Fund, for term
expiring January 4, 2027. (In the City Council and Referred to the
Appointments Committee 1/16/2024)

11139 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Robert Bettez, to the
position of Planning Board Member, for term expiring January 4, 2027. (In
the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024)

11140 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Robert Swartz, to the
position of Planning Board Member, for term expiring January 4, 2027. (In
the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024)

11141 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Stephen Cormier, to the
position of Planning Board Member, for term expiring January 4, 2027. (In
the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024)

11142 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Charles LeBlanc, to the
position of Board of Assessors, for term expiring January 4, 2027 (In the City
Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024)

11143 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Rick Germano, to the
position of Local Inspector, for term expiring January 4, 2027. (In the City
Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024)

11144 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of James E. Imprescia, to
the position of Plumbing & Gas Inspector, for term expiring January 4, 2027.
(In the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024)

11145 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Michael Fitzsimmons, to
the position of License Commission Member, for term expiring January 4,
2027. (In the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee
1/16/2024)

Page 3 of 5



11146 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Kenneth Arsenault, to
the position of License Commission Member, for term expiring January 4,
2027. (In the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee
1/16/2024)

11147 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Nancy Binder, to the
position of License Commission Member, for term expiring January 4, 2027.
(In the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024)

11148 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Ann Twohig, to the
position of Golf Commission Member, for term expiring January 4, 2027. (In
the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024)

11149 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Kathy O’Brien, to the
position of Council on Aging Member, for term expiring January 8, 2027. (In
the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024)

11150 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Timothy Horrigan, to the
position of Redevelopment Authority, for term expiring January 8, 2027. (In
the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024)

11151 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Theresa Hillman, to the
position of Council on Aging Member, for term expiring January 8, 2027. (In
the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024)

11153 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Susan Avallone, RN, to
the position of Board of Health Member, for term expiring January 8§, 2027.
(In the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024)

11154 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Geoffrey Tobia, to the
position of Board of Health Member, for term expiring January 8, 2027. (In
the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024)

11155 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Michele Parker, to the
position of MD, Board of Health Member, for term expiring January 8, 2027.
(In the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024)

11156 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Marcelle S. Cormier, to
the position of Board of Registrar Member, for term expiring January 8, 2027.
(In the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024)

11157 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Patricia Darby, to the
position of Board of Registrar Member, for term expiring January 9, 2027. (In
the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024)

Page 4 of 5



XI.

XII.

XII.

XIV.

XV.

11158 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Kevin Mclnerney, to the

position of Contributory Retirement Board, for term expiring January 11, (In
the City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 1/16/2024)

11181 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Paul Cormier, to the

position of Golf Commission Member, for term expiring January 22, 2027.
(In the City Council and Referred to Appointments Committee 2/5/2024)

11191 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Corinne Smith, to the

position of Conservation Commission Member, for term expiring February 1,
2027. (In the City Council and Referred to Appointments Committee
2/20/2024)

11192 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Laura Cassady, to the

position of Cultural Council Member, for term expiring February 9, 2027. (In
the City Council and Referred to Appointments Committee 2/20/2024)

UNFINISHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION

11112 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675

thereof, entitled “Zoning,” to Add “Sports Betting” to the Zoning Table of
Uses. (Submitted by Councilor Dana Heath, In the City Council, Referred to
Planning Board 12/4/2023; More Time 12/18/23, 1/2/2024, 1/16/2024,
2/5/2024)

11113 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675

thereof, entitled “Zoning,” to Amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled,
“Marijuana Establishments” to Change the Method to Increase the Quota
Allowed by the Code of the City of Gardner. (Submitted by Councilor Dana
Heath,; In the City Council, Referred to Planning Board 12/4/2023; More time
12/18/23, 1/2/2024, 1/16/2024,2/5/2024)

11180 — An Order Appropriating $625,000.00 from Stabilization to DPW Salt Shed.

(In the City Council and Referred to Committee of the Whole 2/5/2024,; More
Time 2/20/2024)

NEW BUSINESS

COUNCIL COMMENTS AND REMARKS

CLOSING PRAYER

ADJOURNMENT

Items listed on the Council Calendar are those reasonably anticipated by the Council President to be discussed at the meeting. Not all items listed
may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law.

Page 5 of 5



11203

City of Gardner - Executive Department
Mayor Michael J. Nicholson

February 29, 2024

Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President
And City Councilors

Gardner City Hall, Rm 121

95 Pleasant Street

Garnder, MA 01440

RE: A Communication regarding City Property Damage as a result of the Wind Storm of 2/28/24
to 2/29/24

Dear Madam President and Councilors,
On the evening of February 28, 2024 through the morning of February 29, 2024, there were
substantial winds in the area. The National Weather Service had placed the City under a severe

wind advisory.

While Gardner made out well in terms of not having many power outages, there were two City
properties that experienced significant amounts of damage as a result.

Gardner Fire Department Headquarters Roof:

At approximately 1:50am on Thursday, February 29, 2024, the wind gauge of the Gardner Fire
Department recorded a 60 mile per hour gust of wind. This gust of wind blew a portion of the
Fire Department’s roof off and folded over itself.

This section of the roof is located above the living quarters of station.

The roof is made of lead lined copper. It is original to the building’s 1978 construction and was
patched in 2001.

At the informal meeting of the City Council held on September 19, 2022, at which the City
Council reviewed the Fire Department Audit by Parrow and Associates, I notified the City
Council that the City needed to take action on the roof soon, because of the leaks, air quality
issues, and instability concerns that it was causing.

In October of 2022, the City had CM Chartier, the City’s on call general carpentry contractor
remove all insulation from under the roof in the apparatus bay from the information in the
Parrow Report and reviews that were done on the structure.

On November 9. 2023, I notified the City Council that the Administration was going to be
making the roof’s replacement a priority for the 2024 calendar year. This was before the City
Council as Agenda Item 11098 — A Notification from the Mayor Regarding Upcoming




11203

Appropriation Request for Fire Department Roof Repairs, for the meeting of November 20,
2023. And further reiterated in my inaugural address, delivered on January 6, 2024.

During the week of February 19%, 2024, the City had engaged in architectural and building
design engineers — Tighe & Bond and Weston & Samson — do a review of the roof and provide
the City with Opinions of Probable Costs, so that the City could move forward with a full
replacement project based off of an actual financial projection.

The roof is currently having a short term emergency repair made and we are working with our
insurance company, the Massachusetts Interlocal Insurance Agency (MIIA) on what would be

covered in terms of replacements.

73 Stuart Street — Former Factory Building:

The building at 73 Stuart Street, at the intersection of Stuart and Nadeau Streets was taken by tax
title proceedings in the fall of 2022.

At the regular meeting of the Gardner City Council of December 19, 2022, the City Council
voted to declare the land surplus for sale.

While the City tried to sell this property, the interested purchaser, and the only one individual
who put in an offer on the property, wanted the property subject to a zoning variance, which the
City could not wait for, per the General Laws of the Commonwealth, since the solicitation
required that the property be sold “as is.”

During the aforementioned windstorm, a portion of the roof collapsed, which caused one of the
outside walls of the factory to collapse onto the neighbors fence.

The full report of the building commissioner is attached.

The City was already under the process of finding ways to demolish this structure as it is fully
condemned already. According to the Opinion of Probable Cause that we received from Tighe
and Bond, the cost to demolish the structure would be $369,400, largely due to the unknown

environmental factors of the demolition.

The Building Commissioner, per the provisions of the General Laws, does however, have the
right to order a building to be removed when extreme safety of life and property arise.

The Administration is looking at how best to proceed with this property before any further
damage or collapse occurs.

Gardner City Hall Flagpole:

The main flagpole behind the World War I monument at Gardner City Hall is largely in disrepair.
The pully system inside the pole was slightly damaged but repaired earlier this year. Following
this storm, the mechanism completely broke, causing the flag to completely fall off the pole.



11203

The flag was retrieved by members of the Fire Department who saw the flag on the ground when
they drove by. It was properly folded and is currently being stored in the City’s Veteran’s
Services Department.

Current estimates have a repair of the existing pole around $8,000 and the cost of a full
replacement being $75,000.

Respectfully Submitted, 2
/" Michael J. Nicholson
Mayor, City of Gardner




11203

Gardner Fire Department Roof Information

e Picture of Damage

¢ Notification from Mayor, November 9, 2023

e |naugural Address, January 6, 2024

e City Council Informal Meeting Pack, December 19, 2022



11203




11203

City of Gardner - Executive Department
Mayor Michael J. Nicholson

November 9, 2023 @ CO PY

Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President
And City Councilors

Gardner City Hall, Rm 121

95 Pleasant Street

Garnder, MA 01440

RE: Notification of Upcoming Appropriation Request for Fire Department Roof Repairs

Dear Madam President and Councilors,

In the spirit of transparency and collaboration, I am writing to notify you that I have instructed
Chief Lagoy of the Gardner Fire Department and Commissioner Zuppa of the Gardner Building
Department to begin seeking price quotes to replace the roof on the Gardner Fire Department
Headquarters Building located at 70 City Hall Avenue.

This roof has had substantial leaking issues, causing air quality and stability concerns in the
building. The roof was patched in the early 2000s, but aside from that, it is originally to the 1980
construction.

Once price estimates are received, I plan to submit an appropriation request to the City Council
from the City’s stabilization account to pay for this urgent repair.

As you are aware, the City has financial administration policies that dictate that annually upon
certification of free cash, the Administration will submit a request of an amount equivalent to
five percent (5%) of certified free cash for the stabilization account. The Administration’s current
plan is to increase this to ten percent (10%) of certified free cash until the amount is fully paid
back, once the appropriation is made.

The current balance of the City’s stabilization account is $3,532,486.54.
Again, while this is still in the early stages of its planning process, since I expect this to be a
large expenditure, I wanted to notify the Council that this was taking place as early as possible to

better prepare for this when it is submitted.

Respectfully Submitted,

Michael J. Nicholson
Mayor, City of Gardner



11203

CITY OF GARDNER MASSACHUSETTS

INAUGURAL ADDRESS BY MAYOR MICHAEL ]. NICHOLSON
JANUARY 4, 2024

Fose G o7

President Kazinskas and the Membets of the City Council, Vice Chair Pelavin and the members of
the School Committee, Judge Goldstein, reverend cletgy, elected officials, family, friends, relatives,
fellow Gardnerites, and those visiting, including those who wished they could be here but were not
able to for whatever reason and are watching this later on.

Good Evening,

To all of you - Thank you for joining us this evening.

Mom, Dad, and Jackie, all of my family, friends, and loved ones; I cannot thank you enough for
always having my back. The gratitude I have for the love and support you have shown me is
something I'll never be able to express in words alone.

A mi familia nicaragiiense, cada oportunidad que he tenido durante mi vida ha sido por las
oportunidades que se sacrificaron ustedes para que la generacién menor de la familia tuviera una
vida mejor. Es por sus sacrificios que puedo estar aqui hoy, como el ptimer alcalde e electo
latino de esta ciudad.

A ustedes que son nuevos residentes de nuestra ciudad, y en algunos casos, de este pais, es mi honor
y privilegio oficialmente decitles a todos BIENVENIDOS. Es mi esperanza que podamos
construirles una comunidad que quieran llamar su hogar, donde puedan vivit, trabajar, y encontrar
nuevas opotrtunidades. Mi familia encontré su suefio americano en Gardner cuando mi madre y su
familia dejaron su hogar devastado por la Guetra y buscaron una vida mejor, y esa es mi esperanza
para ustedes.

Previous section translated:

To my Nicaraguan Family- every opportunity that I have had in my live has been because of the
gpporiunities that you sacrificed so that the younger generation of our family could have a better
life. 1t is becanse of these sacrifices that I can stand bere today, as the first Latin-American
Mayor and Elected official of this City.

To those of you here who are new residents of our City - and in some cases, this country - It is my
absolute honor and privilege to officially say to you all as the Mayor of this City — welcomse. 1t is
my hope that we can build you a community that is welcoming and that you can look forward to
calling yonr home- where you can live, work, and find new opportunities. My family found their
American Dreans in Gardper when my mother and ber family lefi their war torn home and
songht a better life, and that is my hope for yon.

Judge Goldstein - Thank you for being here with us this evening. Having a local Gardnerite serve as
the first presiding justice of our local court has been a benefit to this City. You truly know Gardner

lof7



11203

CITY OF GARDNER MASSACHUSETTS

INAUGURAL ADDRESS BY MAYOR MICHAEL J. NICHOLSON
JANUARY 4, 2024

and its people and your work on the bench has helped people get back on their feet when they need
it the most. In particular, I would like to thank you for the vital role you played in bringing a
Veterans Treatment Specialty Coutt to the Gardner/Winchendon District Court - the only one to
exist in Worcester County - to help bring new forms of treatment and rehabilitation efforts to our
veterans in particular those dealing with issues of substance abuse and addiction.

Representative Zlotnik and Senator Flanagan — Thank you for joining us this evening. I leatned a lot
when I interned for you both before when I was a college student, and I truly appreciate your
continued friendship, guidance, advice, and partnership since then to now.

Father Thiago and Pastor Dave- Thank you for your prayers tonight, and for the guidance you
provide to residents of our City through your work at your respective churches.

Dr. Marchetti- Thank you for the wotk you do every day for the veterans in the Montachusett
Region and the advancements you made in improving access to vetetans housing in the area.

Lastly, scattered throughout the hall this evening are our city department heads, employees, and first
tesponders. Please join me in a round of applause for these individuals who wotk titelessly every day
to provide top quality services to all of our residents.

I would be remiss if I did not thank in a special way, Rachel Roberts from my office, and back here
joining us this evening, Colin Smith, who recently left for a new position elsewhere. Thank you both
for all you helped me with this past year, and to all of my former interns who have joined us here
this evening as well. I truly appreciate you all.

When I gave this address at the beginning of the last tetm, we were on the dootstep of celebrating
our 100™ anniversary as a City. We talked about goals of economic growth and revitalization of the
downtown. Ideas of increasing our outreach efforts were just starting to transition into discussions.
Plans were being put in place to provide our public safety officials with the tools they need to do
their jobs in the most efficient and effective ways possible. Concerns were being raised about the
demand for housing we were seeing in Gardner. And the questions that wete being asked as we
approached our last inauguration ceremony were “how do we meet these challenges?”, “Are we
doing everything we can to be proactive not only to address the situations at hand, but also to plan
for the future so we don’t end up back where we started in just a few years?”, and most importantly,
“are we doing everything we can to seize every opportunity available to us and to the people who
put us into office?”

Standing hete now and reflecting on these times- Gatdnet’s been pretty busy, and our efforts are
bearing fruit.

20f7



11203

CITY OF GARDNER MASSACHUSETTS

INAUGURAL ADDRESS BY MAYOR MICHAEL J. NICHOLSON
JANUARY 4, 2024

Accomplishments:

We've continued to make strides in upholding our fiduciary responsibility to our residents. For the
third year in a row, we have received a petfect audit tepott from the external auditors who review
the City’s financial statements on an annual basis. Additionally, our stabilization account is the
highest it has been in decades and our new growth tevenue continues to come in well over budget,
showing our strong financial promise for the future.

Because of this strong financial standing, we have been able to invest mote in out programs,
initiatives, and infrastructure - and the return we have already begun to see on that investment is
unprecedented.

In our public safety departments, we purchased new equipment, re-vamped programming, and
cteated new positions to ensure our first respondets have the tools and resoutces they need to do
their jobs in the most effective manner and keep the public safe.

This includes purchasing a new ambulance, fire engine, heavy rescue and ladder truck for the fire
department - all of which are currently being constructed.

For out police department, we purchased a new drone with infrared, spotlight, and speaker
technology, portable radios, sidearms, and eight new cruisers- half of which are hybrid.

Aside from these capital investments, we also invested in out programming to help increase our
outreach opportunities in these departments. We teinstated the Domestic Violence Advocate
position in the Gardner Police Department, that had originally be cut in 2010, as well as launched
out two K9 programs with Rocky, our patrol dog for the Police Department, and Sully, our Fire
Department Comfort Dog to help assist in the operations of both of these departments.

We continued these investments in our recreation and infrastructure. In doing so, we have not only
set an example to others by showing them that we ate willing to invest in ourselves, but we have also
planned for our future with a growing population.

Gardner now has new pickleball courts and our first playground graded for ages 5 and under at
Bailey Brook Park, the new patk and walking path at the old Park Street National Grid Substation
location, and our new fitness coutt, done in partnetship with Blue Cross Blue Shield, located at
Gardner High School next to our newly refurbished tennis courts.

Additionally we have paved 20 miles of roads (almost a quatter of out entire city) in just the last
three years, installed new sidewalks, lighting structutres and ctossing ramps throughout the
downtown area and at Monument Park, and new runway replacement and building upgrade projects
at the Gardner Municipal Airport.

3of7



11203

CITY OF GARDNER MASSACHUSETTS

INAUGURAL ADDRESS BY MAYOR MICHAEL J. NICHOLSON
JANUARY 4, 2024

Our School System has seen significant achievements in recent years. Since 2019, just 5 years go, the
number of students enrolled in Gardner Public Schools has incteased by almost 400 students. At the
same time, the number of students choosing to school choice out of Gatdner to another district has
declined by over 50%.

We have made significant efforts to bring our schools’ cutticulum into a full 21st Century learning
environment - particularly in our eatly college program and through our new innovative pathway
courses. Cutrently, approximately 30% of our juniors and seniors at Gardner High School ate taking
advantage of our immersive Early College Program with Mount Wachusett Community College and
our newly added partner, Fitchburg State University. As a result, this last spring, over 50 students
graduated with a high school diploma and a college associates degtee at the same time.

Additionally, we have invested in new equipment for our innovative pathway classes, traditional
school version of trade classes that we offer in manufacturing, automotive, robotics, woodwotking,
business and finance, healthcare, information technology, and engineering all of which now have
state of the art equipment to work with, making our students’ transition to college ot employment
easier, by giving them hands on learning while still in our classrooms.

And the most significant achievement we had in our educational efforts was the opening of our new
Elementary School, where our students in preschool through fourth grade can have a modern
leatning environment that meets their needs and helps them best prepate for their futures.

Some of the most visible accomplishments we have seen over the last few years have been in our
economic development endeavors. In the last two years, over 50 businesses have either newly
opened or expanded their services in Gardner and almost 20 buildings in the downtown area alone
have changed ownership and are under renovation. This has opened up an unprecedented amount
of opportunity for Gardner.

We also made a concerted effort to hold ourselves to the same standard we hold the private sector
to and make sure that we as a City do not become our next absentee landlord. We reviewed the
propetties owned by the City that were underutilized, put them on the market, and got them back
onto the tax rolls - not only bringing in new revenue as a result, but also helping ensure that these
propetties can be used to their fullest potential through private sector investments.

Howevet, the economic goals that we have met only bear true fruit if people can access them- which
we have accomplished through the advancements we made in our transportation efforts.

One of the biggest complaints we used to receive at City Hall was the fact that Gardnet no longer
had a taxi cab service and getting around the City was difficult for many people. For some, getting to
doctor's appointments, grocery shopping, visiting loved ones, and many other instances, were almost
impossible. To help meet this need, Council President Kazinskas and I put forward ordinance

40of 7



11203

CITY OF GARDNER MASSACHUSETTS

INAUGURAL ADDRESS BY MAYOR MICHAEL J. NICHOLSON
JANUARY 4, 2024

legislation that was unanimously approved by the City Council that made it easier for people looking
to open and operate rideshare services in the City. Then, working with Woods Ambulance, we
launched the first phase of Woods Plus - “SwiftRide.” This new, locally owned ride-share service
now allows our residents to get anywhere around the City at an affordable rate to fill the gap in
transportation that we saw before.

We have also begun the process with MART to update and re-route our fixed bus routes around
Gardner that haven’t been reviewed since the 1980s. This allows us to truly capture the growth that
we are seeing in our population and plan for it the most efficient and effective way possible.

This all started when Councilor Dernalowicz first approached us to inquite about adding additional
bus stops in South Gardner particularly at the former Prospect Street School location. As a result,
not only has this stop been added but other stops received new signage and shelter structures. For
the last two years, have been in constant conversations with MART about improving setvices in
Gardner. As the Mayor of this city and the Chait of the MART Advisory Board, I’d like to thank
MART’s Administration for the new energy they’ve placed into improving access to public
transportation in Gardner, most recently with the new fare free initiative that was launched for all
fixed routes in the MART disttict earlier this week for the next six-months.

Lastly, we made sure to break away from the “that’s how we’ve always done it,” mentality and see if
there were any updates that could be made to improve our operations.

This is why Councilor George Tyros and I were able to put forward legislation to revamp our
vacant, abandoned, blighted, and nuisance ordinance to give our City personnel in the health and
building departments the tools they need to prevent properties from becoming problems and
Incentivize property owners to keep their buildings up to a standard of care.

Most notably in this review and update process, after an almost eight year process, the proposed
amendments to the City Charter are on their way to Boston for consideration by the State
Legislature, to make sure Gardner has a 21st Century Government that meets the needs of a
modern, growing communlity.

Goals

We certainly have accomplished a lot in the last term, and we have set the stage for us to continue
with that momentum as we move Gatdner forward.

Out economic development efforts continue to move forward with new advances set to take place
in the next few months. Work in the downtown area is continuing to move forward with
renovations being completed to the facades of several buildings, intetiot tenovations and build outs
expected to begin, and over 225 housing units expected to be constructed in the downtown alone.

50f7



11203

CITY OF GARDNER MASSACHUSETTS

INAUGURAL ADDRESS BY MAYOR MICHAEL ]J. NICHOLSON
JANUARY 4, 2024

New businesses - like Aldi, Chipotle, Five Below, and othets, like Jersey Mike’s, announced today
for the Timpany Crossroads Plaza — ate set to open their doots in Gardnet in 2024.

Construction projects will soon be starting on Rear Main Street, Rome Square, the Greenwood Pool,
Maki Park, the Uptown Rotary, Ovila Case Playground, the Notth Central Pathway Bike Trail, and
more.

Perhaps the most significant construction project we have ongoing for the new year is our continued
wotk renovating the former Waterford Street School location to house our new non-profit
community center. This project will surely bting new opportunities to the area by bringing all of
these services under one roof and allowing them to expand their collaboration with each other.
Growing Places, a local non-profit focused around access to healthy and affordable food, has already
received their zoning approvals, is just about ready to move in and begin operations, and has also
begun working with a newly formed group of farmers on ways to promote local agticulture and
create new farmers market opportunities at the site.

Over and over again, we have seen that when we as a City invest in ourselves - our infrastructure,
economy, facilities, residents - the return we teceive on that investment exceeds out expectations.
Tens of millions of dollars of private sector investment have poured into Gardner in the last two
years, because we were willing to hold ourselves to a high standard and set that example for othets.
If we want to continue the successes that we have seen - we still have work to do.

One of these investments we know we need to look at is the Gardner Fire Headquarters Building.
The roof of the fire station is original to the building’s 1978 construction and cutrently is
experiencing large issues with leaks. These issues need to be addressed in ordet to make sure we are
providing our employees with an adequate, livable, wotkspace that meets the needs of a modetn fire
department.

We have also begun to study the feasibility of new investments in our parking and solar canopy
infrastructure to better help plan for the future in Gardnet- in patticular in the downtown and at our
public buildings.

Aside from these goals, we also need to teview our processes, procedures, City Code, and othet
documents to see if our operations are wotking or if we ate getting in our own way of progress. We
cannot just sit and hope that the way we have always done things is meeting the cutrent issues that
arise in the here and now, or may arise in the future.

To begin this review, earlier this week, I directed our City Department Heads and the Chaits of all

of our Boards and Commissions to review our City Otdinance Code - both general and zoning - and
to submit any changes that could be made to improve the way we operate in the City. These changes

6 of 7



11203

CITY OF GARDNER MASSACHUSETTS

INAUGURAL ADDRESS BY MAYOR MICHAEL J. NICHOLSON
JANUARY 4, 2024

will first be reviewed by my administration with a final version submitted to the City Council as a
comprehensive package for consideration later this year.

The work that we’ve done and the successes that we've achieved is entirely thanks to the amount of
collaboration and cooperation that our officials at all levels of government have had. I would like to
thank the members of my administration, our department heads and employees, the membets of out
City Council, School Committee, our state and federal legislative delegation, and all our pattnets in
government for constantly coming together to build 2 community that the people we represent can
truly be proud to call their home.

This is how the government should work. Fat too often, people view political office as a theater for
character assassinations, false claims in social media posts, and deliberate misrepresentations for
political gain and click bait. However, we have not let that get to us here. Even in the face of what
goes on elsewhere, here in Gardner, when a problem arises, we come together, find a solution, and
just do what needs to be done.

As we move into this new year, and the next century in our City’s history, I look forward to us
continuing to work together for what our City needs and setting the example for others to follow. It
is my true and firm belief, that continuing with that momentum and guided by God’s grace we’ll be
able to accomplish things beyond what we dreamed of and build a better city for it.

God Bless you all, and God Bless this Great City.

Thank you.

70f7



11203

PRESIDENT : :
Elizabeth ]. Kazinskas CITY OF GARDNER G CO PY
COUNCILLORS AT LARGE MASSACHUSETTS 01440-2630

James S. Boone
Craig R. Cormier OFFICE OF THE

Ronald F. Cormier CITY COUNCIL
Judy A. Mack

George C. Tyros

WARD 1 COUNCILLOR
James M. Walsh, Esq.

WARD 2 COUNCILLOR
Dana M. Heath

WARD 3 COUNCILLOR

Nathan R. Boudreau

WARD 4 COUNCILLOR

Karen G. Hardern September 14, 2022
WARD 5 COUNCILLOR

Alek Dernalowicz, Esg. CITY COUNCIL INFORMAL MEETING

Date: Monday, September 19, 2022
Time: 6:30 P.M.
Location: City Council Chambers, Room 219, City Hall

AGENDA

10779 — A Notification from the Mayor Regarding the Fire Department Operations
Audit. (In the City Council and Referred to Committee of the Whole 9/7/2022)

CITY COUNCIL OF GARDNER
ELIZABETH J. KAZINSKAS
Council President

NOTICE: Items listed on the Council Calendar are those reasonably anticipated by the Council President to be discussed at the
meeting. Not all items listed may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may alse be brought up for discussion to the
extent permitted by law.



11203
10779

City of Gardner - Executive Department
Mayor Michael J. Nicholson

August 25, 2022

Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President
And City Councilors

Gardner City Hall, Rm 121

95 Pleasant St

Gardner, MA 01440

RE: Fire Department Operations Audit

Dear Madam President and Councilors,

Attached, please find the Operations Audit of the Gardner Fire and Ambulance Departments conducted
by John Parow Consulting & Associates.

Ret. Chief Parow has stated that if the Council wishes, he would gladly present his findings to the City
Council in a meeting as well,

The report outlines the current financial surplus generated by the City Ambulance Service, the positive
outcomes of our agreement with Woods Ambulance, civil service, staffing level, facilities conditions, and
other topics related to the operations of these departments.

Respectfully Submitted,

S

Michael J. Nicholson
Mayor, City of Gardner

CC: Finance Committee
Public Safety Committee



11203
10779

City of Gardner Fire Department

Emergency Medical System Review
Overview of Facility Needs
Civil Service - Pros and Cons

Review Current Staffing Model

Conducted By:

John Parow Consulting & Associates
32 School Street
Chelmsford, MA. 01863
978.490.4736
John Parow@comcast.net
Parowconsulting.com

July 2022

John Parow Consulting & Associates 1



Table of Contents

107791203

PrOJECE DVEIVIBW ...over sttt is e sarss s ses s s s s s sss 2003 eets e e s e e et et see s sen e eens 3

Emergency Medical SYStam REVIEW ... ivmmissisimsiesiesiseeiss i soseesssessassssenssesssesssasssssssessos e 4

Gardner Fire DepartmMent FACTIHIES .. iieeriinrie st csssss s ensenesesssssesoss e senessesessesss s snes sessen 10
MA Civil Service Systemn and the Hiring of Firefighter/EMTS ......ccoevniicot v eestese oo 17
Review Gardner Fire Department Staffing MO .....ccovrrinnicrnnieiiniene et e e 21
Appendix A - Surveyed MA Fire Department Organizational Charts ........ccceninnn. 26
Appendix B — NFPA 1710 FACT SREEL ..o e sreersmsier et ssares e snesen e s e s i aeanaeas 37

John Parow Consulting & Associates



11203
10779

Project Overview

Scope of Work

1. Conduct an overview of the Emergency Medical Response system at the 5-year mark
Examine the department facilities and needs

3. Review how the MA Civil Service System works for the department and if improvements can be
made

4. Review the current department staffing model against industry standards and comparison
departments in the Commonwealth of MA.

Methodology

1. Conducted multiple site visits to become familiar with operations of the Gardner Fire
Department and the Community included:
a. Fire/EMS operations
Department’s organizational structure
Current staffing model
Deployment patterns
Review of Facilities
Future needs
g. Community demographics, etc.
2. Multiple requests for supporting information from the Fire Department via
a. Email
b. Phone Conversations
3. Gathered statistical department data to determine current and trending activity
a. This data requested and provided by the department and/or City
. Fire/EMS statistics over the last five years
ii. EMS Collections - City Auditor
iii. Past studies or reports
iv. Civil Service history
4. Gather statistical data from comparison departments
a. Electronic Surveys
b. Phone Conversations
5. Review and Compare National Fire and Emergency Medical Services Best Practices

oo o

John Parow Consulting & Associates 3



11203
10779

Emergency Medical System Review

The Edward Collins Center Study 2015

The Edward Collins Center completed a study, in early 2015, regarding the Gardner Fire Department
running 1 Basic Life Support (BLS) for the City of Gardner. The study had the following projections and
advantages of Gardner Fire Department staffing an in-house BLS ambulance:

1. One Gardner Fire Department BLS ambulance would transport an estimated 75% of all
emergency medical patients;

2. Additional staffing at fires and emergency situations (“mare boots on the ground”);

Additional funding to offset costs of maintaining a busy fire department;

4. Additional services to residents, property owners and businesses with no increase in taxes.

w

General Overview of the Current Fire/Ambulance System
Moving forward with Gardner Fire Department BLS Ambulance in 2016

In 2016 the city decided to mave forward with the fire based in-house BLS ambulance service. They
hired an additional seven dual role firefighter/EMTs in October of 2016, The purpose of the dual role
Firefighter/EMTs is to staff the ambulance and/or respond to fires or emergency calls (“more boots on
the ground”}. The concept of a dual role firefighter/EMT is that when they are not out on an ambulance
call they are available to supplement the fire and emergency response staffing in the City. In the Fire
Service this system of dual role responsihilities has proven to be a very efficient use of personnel.

In order to get the BLS ambulance system off the ground, the Fire Department needed to acquire a fully
equipped ambulance. They purchased a used 2007 ambulance from the Town of Westminster for
$8,000.00, Rescue 2. in 2018 the department purchase a new 2018, state of the art, ambulance to run as
the primary ambulance for $235,000.00, Rescue 3, and retired Rescue 2 to the position of the reserve or
back-up ambulance.

Relationship with Wood’s Ambulance

Gardner Fire Department has a very interesting relationship with Wood's Ambulance Company. Wood’s
Ambulance provides two ALS ambulances to the city on a 24/7 basis and operates out of Gardner Fire
Department Headquarters, Station 2. The interesting part of this relationship is that when the Gardner
Fire Department ambulance is tied up on a call, Wood's will respond to all secondary calls. Additionally,
Wood's provides for all the Advance Life Support (ALS) needs in support of the Gardner Fire Department
BLS ambulance.

An example of how an ALS call would be handled, Gardner Fire Department Rescue 3 and one of Wood's
ambulances would respond to a call deemed “ALS” by the response matrix. When they arrive on scene,
and if it is further determined the patient’s needs is “ALS” the Gardner Fire Department Rescue 3 would
transport the patient to the hospital with the Wood's Paramedic and the Gardner Fire Department EMT
providing care to the patient in the back of the ambulance.

The other advantage of having Wood’s Ambulance providing secondary coverage for the city, is that it
fully supports the dual role firefighter/EMT model. For example, if Gardner Fire Department receives a

John Parow Consuiting & Associates 4



11203
10779

call for a fire in the city the two firefighter/EMTSs assigned to the ambulance respond immediately to the
fire call. This provides two additional firefighters on the fireground that were not available prior to
Gardner Fire Department running the BLS ambulance system. In these situations, Wood's two
ambulances would provide primary ambulance coverage for the city.

(Note that the first 18 months of the program were with Med-Star and the arrangement was different
with Gardner Fire Department only transporting BLS patients)

Cost for the Additional Dual/Role Firefighter/EMTs

Gardner Fire Department has a very unique budgeting system for their fire and ambulance operations.
While most fire departments would include all firefighter costs in a single budget, Gardner Fire
Department separates the two and has all ambulance related expenses, including personnel, broken out
in a separate budget area. The advantage of this type of budgeting is that it makes it very easy to
monitor the ambulance service, and to assure that it is paying for itself and what additional revenue are
being generated for the city.

Evaluate the Current Ambulance System over the last Five Years and Against the Original Edward
Collins Center Study:

1. One Gardner Fire BLS ambulance wouid transport an estimated 75% of all emergency medical
patients in the City.

It was difficult to pull this data because neither Gardner Fire Department’s or Wood’s Ambulance’s
reporting software specifically track this data. However, after the data was pulled manually, we were
able to compile a 21-month period of data ranging between June 2020 through February 2022 which
was sufficient to make this evaluation.

During this 21-month period there were a total of 4,840 ambulance transports, 3,692 were transported
by Gardner Fire Department and 1,148 transported by Wood’s Ambulance.

Total Transports  Trans GFD Trans Wood's
4840 3,692 1,148
Percent 76% 24%
Flgure 1
As noted in Figure 1 above Gardner Fire Department transported 76% of the emergency medical
patients and Wood’s transported 24%. Over this 21-month period Gardner Fire Department met and

slightly exceeded the estimate in the Collin’s Study of 75%. A number we were not able to capture was
mutual aid and 3" or 4" ambulance calls.

Moving forward, we feel that this data should be collected on an annual basis and reviewed to ensure
this benchmark is being met or exceeded.

2. Additional staffing at fires and emergency situations (“more boots on the ground”)

Bringing the Ambulance in-house has increased the staffing of Gardner Fire Department by 33%. This is
based on simple math, befare the in-house system six firefighters were assign to each shift, after the in-
house system, eight firefighters are assigned to each shift. The additional two dual role firefighter/EMTs,

John Parow Consulting & Associates 5



| SR

107791203

per shift, are available to respond to non-related ambulance calls (fires and other emergencies) when
not out on an ambulance cali.

We did an analysis to see what percentage of the time the dual role firefighter/EMTs were unavailable
on ambulance calls and what their availability was to work in a firefighter role. The analysis first took the
number of transports the Gardner Fire Department ambulance did per year and divided that by 365 to
get the average number of times they were out on an ambulance call per day. We then calculated the
average time they were committed on the call. This included response time to the call, time on scene
and the time of transport to the hospital and until back in service. The primary hospital is Heywood, and
there are very few secondary destinations. We used the average of the response and return time to
Haywood based on the data, response to the incident and average time on scene. It breaks out to a 4-
minute response to the call, 20 minutes on scene and 45 minutes to and from the hospital and back in
service. This gives us an approximate of 1 hour and 10 minutes per ambulance call.

Transportsfyr  Transports/day Hours/day tied up on Amb  Hours/day for non Amb calls

Fy/18 1,509 4 4 hrs, 40 minutes 19 hrs, 20 minutes
FY/19 2,187 6 7 hrs 17 hrs
FY/20 2,112 6 7 hrs 17 hrs
FY/21 2,091 6 7 hrs 17 hrs
FY/22 2,164 6 7 hrs 17 hrs
Figure 2

If we look at the high side of this data, in Figure 2, we can see that the dual role firefighter/EMTs are tied
up performing ambulance duties 7 hours per day, on average, using the average of 1 hour and 10
minutes of time being tied up on each ambulance call. This gives the city the availability of the
firefighter/EMT for fire and other non-ambulance calls an average of 17 hours per day, “more boots on
the ground”,

3. Additional funding to offset costs of maintaining a busy fire department.
Ambulance Activity, Cost and Revenues

Gardner Fire Department BLS ambulance bills for all its ambulance transports to the hospital at 2.5 times
the Medicare rate. Additionally, Gardner Fire Department bills when they transport ALS patients with
Wood’s Ambulance paramedic onboard providing the ALS level of care. The revenue collect from these
calls are split 50/50 between Gardner Fire Department and Woods Ambulance.

On the very rare occasion that Gardner Fire Department’s ambulance and the two Wood's ambulances
are tied up at the same time and another medical call comes in a Woods backup ambulance from their
base on Main Street would respond.

Gardner Fire Department, contracts with Coastal Billing, an ambutance bitling Company, to do the actual
billing for its ambulance services. Coastal Billing charges a fee of 3% for all revenue collected as per the
contract negotiated with the City (this figure has been reduce to 2.5% starting in FY/23). Using a third-
party billing company is very typical with municipal fire/EMS departments across the Commanwealth.
Additionally, Gardner Fire Department uses First Financial Resources to pursue unpaid bills,

John Parow Consulting & Associates 6



Figure 3 shows activity and collections for FY/18 through FY/22:

FY/18
FY/19
FY/20
Fv/21
Fy/22

Calls Transports
2278 1509
2961 2187
2751 2112
2715 2091
2858 2164

Collections
572574
871137
1004272

1184798
1265787

Calls = total emergency medical calls for the fiscal year.
Transports = total transports by GFD Ambulance
Collections = total money collected by Coastal Billing
Collections Expense = total cost for collections
Net Income = total income for the fiscal year after other costs

Collection/Expense
54375
203764
308789
306901
289029

Net
Income
518199
667372
695483
877897

976758
Figure 3

11203
10779

For FY/21 and FY/22 Gardner Fire Department participated in the Medicare CPE Reimbursement
Program. The program was instituted by the Commonwealth up to help Cities and Towns offset the very

low Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement currently allowed. Gardner Fire Department has

successfully applied for this reimbursement over the last two years:

FY/21 - $210,026.00 received 6/30/2021

FY/22 - $234,407.00 project to be received 6/30/2022

It is recommended that Gardner Fire Department continues to apply for these offset revenues, from the
Commonwealth, on an annual basis.

Ambulance Costs

The cost for running the ambulance service has been broken out in the Gardner Fire Department
budget, this is a practice that should continue and makes it very easy to monitor the direct budget costs.
The cost breakdown FY/18 through FY/22 are as follows:

12231 Ambulance

51013
51030
51050
51090
51101
51102
51103
51415
52030
52037
52040
52041
52050

Salaries/wages
Overtime

Holiday Pay
Clothing/Uniforms
College Credits
Collateral jobs
Education incentive
AMB Service Stipend
Repair and Maint
AMB Supplies
information Tech
Lic Renewals/Fees
Minor Equipment

John Parow Consulting & Associates

FY/18
311674.19
83847.55
29434.77
2000
0
23721.63
0
16929
9606.79
11546.81
0
5729.86
1683.01

FY/19 FY/20 FY/21
330153.15 353284.97 365327.75
76623.64 102317.94  112894.53
2017338  33761.52  38876.02
9000 7875 9000
2000 0 0
35283.09  39989.2  37134.27
0 112.34 0
17025 17396 17667
9566.8 445227  14979.39
19293.89  14975.81  21109.89
0  5855.13 2730.99
32918  6381.83 5622.69
3303 0 0

FY/22
360096.4
107106.5
38839.81

3000

0
40225.01
0
17469.52
6465.92
16670.78
6500
6940.32
0



11203

10779
52151 Telecommunications 979.47 1280.33 1620.61 2518.01 2645.85
32170 Prof. Dev & Trave! 320.4 413.7 3334.25 3619.68 2764.23
52190 Prof. Services 54375.19 203764.45 308788.81 306901.25 2893824
52230 Office Supplies 0 0 368.46 471.38 243.75
52240 Vehicle Supplies 741.71 25126 2709.1 1846.22 354201
55090 New Vehicle 254997.53 0 0 0
Total Ambulance 814587.91 742684.83 903223.24 940699.07 907892.4
FY/18 FY/19 FY/20 FY/21 Fy/22
Figure 4

On the budget sheet, most of the line items are self-explanatory. Professional services are also included
in Figure 2 and are the cost for the billing company and the Private split with Wood’s Ambulance.

As we look at total expenses versus revenues for FY/18 through FY/22 we see the following:

Collections ~ Medicare CPE  Budgetcost  Revenue +/-

FY/18 572,574 814,588 -242,014  ** new Amb purchase
FY/19 871,137 742,685 128,452
FY/20 1,004,272 903,223 101,049
Fy/21 974,772 210,026 940,699 244,099
FY/22 1,031,391 234,407 907,892 357,906
Figure 5

in the first full year of operation, FY/18, the ambulance budget ran a deficit of $242,014.00. This deficit
was directly related to the purchase of a new ambulance in the amount of $254,998.00. in the following
years, FY/19 though FY/22 a significant amount of revenue was generated, FY/19 $128,452.00, FY/20
$101,049.00, FY/21 $244,099.00 and FY/22 $357,906.00.

Itis clear, that the current ambulance system with the Medicare CPE reimbursement is now generating
significant revenues back into the City’s general fund beyond the cost of maintaining the ambulance
service and additional firefighters.

Ambulance Replacement

Gardner Fire Department should continue to keep two ambulances available for service, one as the
primary response ambulance (currently Rescue 3, a Ford F550/Horton) and a reserve or back-up
ambulance (currently Rescue 2, a Ford F350/Horton). What this system allows for is the newer and most
up-to date ambulance, Rescue 3, to respond to calls on a routine basis and the reserve ambulance,
Rescue 2, to be put in service whenever Rescue 3 is out of service for routine maintenance, service, or
inspections.

An ambulance replacement schedule should be put in piace to assure reliability of the BLS service and
reasonable maintenance costs over the life of the ambulances. The life expectancy of the primary
Gardner Fire Department ambulance is five years. This is based on the current level of use and past
history.

John Parow Consulting & Associates 8



1077

The reserve or back-up ambulance will have a total life of ten years, five as the primary ambulance and
five as the reserve or back-up. By creating this ten-year cycle it makes the cost of an ambulance very
reasonable over its life span. Far example, Rescue 3 was purchased, in 2018, for $255,000.00. Over ten
years the annual cost for the ambulance is $25,500.00, similar to the cost of a police cruiser.

A five-year replacement plan for Gardner Fire Department would look like this.

GDF Ambulance 5/yr Capital Replacement Plan

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
Primary Ambulance Replace Replace
Rescue 32018 New Rescue 2 New Rescue 3
Reserve Ambulance Re assign Re assign
Rescue 2 2007 Rescue 3 to Reserve Rescue 2 to Reserve
Figure 6

Gardner Fire Department is in the process of ordering a new ambulance with a replacement cost of
$290,500.00, which will be paid for with ARPA** funds, no cost to the city. This replacement will keep
the primary ambulance on a five-year replacement schedule. The current ambulance, Rescue 3 will go
into a reserve or back-up status for the next five years.

** Under the American Rescue Plan Act, passed by the federal government in March 2021. State,
county, tribal and local entities will receive federal aid to respond to the public health and economic
impacts of the public health emergency created by the COVID-19 pandemic.

4. Additional services to residents, property owners and businesses with no increase in taxes

The additional Fire Department services realized by the current ambulance system to the city, with no
increase in taxes, mostly revelves around the addition of two firefighters on duty to respond to
emergency calls throughout the city. As noted earlier, the dual role firefighter/EMT is available an
average of 17 hours per day to respond to these “other” emergencies. In general terms, this figure to
approximately a 25% increase in response capabilities to these “other” emergencies at no additional
cost to the city. in fact, and as shown above, the ambulance system, with 2 firefighter/EMTs, generates
a positive revenue source for the city and provides revenues to offset fire department costs.

Recommendations:

1. Stay with the hybrid system of having GFD provide the primary BLS with Wood's (or some
private) to provide both back-up and ALS services.

2. GFD should continue to apply for offset revenues, from the Medicare CPE Reimbursement
Program, on an annual basis.

3. GFD should continue to keep two ambulances available for service, a primary and a reserve and
follow a five-year replacement plan to assure reliability and reduce unnecessary maintenance
costs.

4, Budget for the capital expense of a new ambulance every five years. With inflation it is assumed
a new ambulance in 2028 will cost around $350,000.00. Putting aside $70,000.00 from the
revenues each year would cover this capital expense in 2028,

5. The ratio of transport, Gardner Fire Department/Wood’s Ambulance should be collected on an
annual basis and reviewed 1o ensure this benchmark is being met or exceeded.

John Parow Consulting & Associates 9

31203



107791203

Overview and Recommendations for Gardner Fire Department Facilities

A fire station supports the needs of the fire department and the community in which it is located. it
must accommodate extremely diverse functions, including housing, recreation, administration, training,
commuhity education, equipment and vehicle storage, equipment and vehicle maintenance, and
hazardous materials storage. While it is usually only occupied by trained personnel, the facility may also
need to accommaodate the general public for community education or outreach programs.

Major fire station functional areas include the following:

s Apparatus bay(s): This is where the firefighting and emergency response vehicles are stored.

» Apparatus bay support and vehicle maintenance: These industrial spaces are where the vehicles
and other firefighting equipment are cleaned, maintained, and stored.

o Administrative and training areas: These include offices, dispatch facilities, and training and
conference rooms.

¢ Residential areas: These include the dorm rooms, day room/kitchen, and residential support
areas such as bathrooms and fitness spaces.

Apparatus Bays

Sizing the apparatus bay is critical, and it should be designed to accommodate variable vehicle sizes.
Typically, the entire room is sized based on the bay size for the largest vehicle in the fleet or the largest
anticipated vehicle. Bays also include vehicle exhaust removal systems, compressed air and power drop
lines, and hot and cold-water connections. Bay doors must also accommodate the largest vehicle and
include a manual means to open in case of power failure. Ideally, the site will accommodate drive-
through bays.

Apparatus Bay Support and Vehicle Maintenance

Apparatus bay support functions include cleaning and maintenance areas for the firefighter's self-
contained breathing apparatus {SCBA), protective clothing, fire extinguishers, and other equipment. It
also includes storage areas for firefighting gear and equipment and secure storage for medical supplies.
Some of these areas are specialized spaces for disinfecting protective equipment and for maintaining
and recharging the SCBA in a clean environment.

Agent storage including gasoline, degreasers, pure oxygen, and other potentially dangerous materials
are typically stored in a single-story structure separate from the fire station building. It should be
located along the driveway leading into the Apparatus Bay for ease of loading and unloading of
firefighting agents. In some cases, it may be attached to the main structure.

A vehicle maintenance bay may also be included in a fire station. It is a dedicated maintenance area for
the firefighting apparatus and includes a heavy-duty lift and all utility connections required for large
vehicle maintenance.

Administrative and Training Areas
Administrative areas include standard offices and conference and training rooms. The area will also
likely include additional specialized spaces such as the chief's office and computer training/testing

facilities for firefighter continuing education. Some stations may include a highly specialized dispatch
room for receiving emergency calls from the public.

John Parow Consulting & Associates 10



1077

Residential Areas

é1203

Fire stations are occupied 24 hours a day, seven days a week by personnel in continuous 24-hour shifts.

Therefore, ensuring a comfortable living environment for the firefighters is paramount.

The day room accommodates kitchen, dining, and living/recreation functions. It is often separated into
subspaces for these three functions, but an open design may also be effective to encourage interaction
between the spaces. The dining space may also double as training or meeting space and might include
provisions for audiovisual equipment.

Dorm room design can vary widely and provide each firefighter with a place to sleep, work, and store
personal items. Typically, each room is shared between firefighters of different crews/shifts so that the
room is never occupied simultaneously. Individual lockers are provided for each firefighter, A bed,
nightstand, and desk are shared.

Other residential areas include a laundry room, a physical fitness room, bathrooms and showers.

Maintain a Safe and Healthy Environment

Due to the continuous occupation of the facility by firefighters and the presence of hazardous materials,

special attention must be given to designing the facility to accommodate equipment and operational
strategies to both protect the occupants and maintain a healthy environment. Consider the foliowing
critical elements:

¢ Provide a secure facility for both personnel and materials such as controlied medical supplies

and hazardous fire suppression agents.
e Ensure good indoor air quality and abundant natural light in the residential and administrative

areas.

¢ Ensure good ventilation of industrial areas such as the apparatus bay and prevent contamination

of clean spaces such as the SCBA maintenance areas.

John Parow Consulting & Associates

i1



107791 1203

Garner Fire Department facilities consist of 3 buildings:

Station 1, built in 1935 and located at East Broadway and Prospect Street is used for reserve apparatus
and equipment storage.

Station 2, built in 1978 located at 70 City Hall Avenue serves a Fire Headquarter in which all operations
of the department are located.

John Parow Consulting & Associates 12



1 07753 [

Annex Building, located next to Fire Headquarters is used to store the Reserve Ambulance and some
equipment.

During a site visit we noted many limitations that these facilities present to Fire Department operations
and current needs of the department. The top teri issues are as follows:

1. There is a major roof leak both at the front and rear of the apparatus bay running the entire length of
the bays. This leak has damaged the sheetrock covering the ceiling and has saturated the roof
insulation. It seems to be related to an interior roof gutter system and should be repaired as soon as
possible.

John Parow Consulting & Associates 13



107741203

2. Lack of space for apparatus. Currently the front-line apparatus and the 2 ambulances from Wood’s
Ambulance occupy the entire apparatus floor area. The Reserve Engine and Reserve Ambulance are
housed in Station 1 and the Annex Building, respectfully. Additionally, response trailers are stored
outside and exposed to the elements. Storing and housing apparatus and trailers in this manner does
not meet the needs of the Fire Department,

3. When Station 2 was built there was no consideration given to mixed gender use of facilities. There is
only 1 bathroom and gang shower facility for both male and female members to use. Additionally, the 2
sleeping areas are open dorm style, giving little privacy between genders. Adding an additional
bathroom and shower room in the current footprint of Headguarters is most likely not possible.
Providing private sleeping rooms in the 2 current dorm rooms is a possibility in the current layout.

4. There is a lack of adequate lockers/storage/proper ventilation for turnout gear. Research, testing and
evaluation of PPE tells us that there are several things that can have an adverse impact on the life cycle
of firefighting PPE, particularly the integrity of the PPE fabric, including deteriorating UV light and
surface contamination.

Over the past decade, the Fire Service has become more active regarding the storage of our PPE. This is
based on science and studies regarding firefighters and their exposure to toxic materials and
carcinogens during structural firefighting activities. Furthermore, this contamination can be brought
back to the fire station and spread throughout the station by “off gassing”. Because of this, in modern

John Parow Consulting & Associates 14



11203
10779

fire stations, all structural firefighting gear is prohibited from living areas of the building and all gear is
stored in a properly vented structural firefighter gear storage room.

At Headquarters firefighters are forced to store their second set of structural firefighting gear on the 2™
floor living area (picture bottom right). Although this gear is required to be cleaned and bagged before it
is brought to the 2™ floor hallway area it is not a good practice. The size and configuration of the

building give fire department management no real option for proper storage.

5. There is no dedicated decontamination area for Fire & EMS equipment.

6. Fire Headquarters needs a proper building air handling system for ventilation and air purification. This
is needed to keep the contaminates created and stored in the apparatus bay area of the station out of
the residential side of the building.

7. There is an absence of adequate storage space at headquarters. Currently, apparatus, equipment and
gear are stored between 3 buildings of which only 1 is occupied. Currently the Reserve Ambulance is
stored in the Annex Building. This Reserve Ambulance, Rescue 2, will be replaced by the current front-
line ambulance, Rescue 3, in the next year when a new ambulance is purchased. Rescue 3 {(when it
becomes the Reserve) will not fit in the Annex Building.

Additionally, in the administrative area there is very limited room for department files and records
storage and the department has been forced to store these in the stairwells of the fire station.

The need for adequate firefighting gear and locker storage has been addressed above in ttem 4.

lohn Parow Consulting & Associates 15



11203
10779

8. Office space is very limited and does not meet the current needs of the department. In today’s fire
service office space is needed for Administration, Administration Support, Fire Prevention, EMS Officer,
Training Officer, Apparatus/equipment maintenance person and 4 Shift Officers.

9. Similar to the lack of gender specific bathrooms and showers, separate locker rooms, for male and
female are needed. However, under the current footprint of the building this is not possible.

10. Training is the backbone of any fire department. Hands on training produces well-prepared
firefighters that through repetitive basic training increases the speed of an operation and enhances
proper execution while reducing injuries. Although GFD has an area to use for classroom training it does
not have an area, facilities or props dedicated to hands on training as pictured below.

The 10 issues addressed above are not uncommon for a fire facility that was built 44 years ago.
However, the operations and services of today’s fire service have changed dramatically.

Recommendations:

1. The city should investigate the needs for a new or substantially remodeled Fire Headquarters to
meet current and future needs.

John Parow Consulting & Associates 16



11203
10779

Review of the Civil Service system and If improvements can be made in hiring Firefighter/EMTs

Civil Service, as a government agency, was designed to provide fairness in the public sector, in entry
level hiring, promotions, {including bypass in rank), demotions, {layoffs) and discipline (which includes
suspensions and terminations). The Civil Service website under Mass.gov states that Civil Service strives
to recruit a qualified diverse labor force and evaluate current and potential employees desiring a career
in public safety, to fill jobs in agencies and murlicipalities across the Commonwealth.

The Commaonwealth is made up of 39 cities and 312 towns. Out of these 351 cities and towns, 103 Fire
Departments are currently under Civil Service, and 11 have opted out of Civil Service in recent years:
Acushnet, Athol, Franklin, Greenfield, Mansfield, Marlborough, North Attleborough, Plainville,
Swampscott, Wellesley, and Westwood.

The remainder of Fire Departments in the Commonwealth are not under Civil Service.
Some Civil Service key points on hiring and promaoting:

& Children of firefighters killed in the fine of duty go to the top of the Civil Service eligibility list.

e Children of firefighters permanently disabled in the line of duty go to the top of the Civil Service
eligibility list.

¢ Disabled Veterans and Veterans with residence preference are next on the Civil Service eligibility
list. Military personnel deployed at the time the test is scheduled, can make up the test at
another time.

e People with residency can have preference if the city or town requests (Civil Service requires a
person to have lived 1 year in a city or town they claim residency in).

e Civil Service provides for all testing both entry and promotions. Tests are generically written
with the same questions Statewide.

* Hiring candidates through the civil service system is designed to remove Nepotism within the
department and collusion with applicants.

* If a candidate is bypassed for employment or promotion, Civil Service provides a means for that
applicant appeal the bypass and has a right to a hearing on why they wera not hired.

e Civil Service allows for cities and towns to reguest a selective certification under Personnel
Administration Rule (PAR).08, i.e., a selective certification based on gender, a specific language
fluency or EMT can be requested.

»  Civil Service protects firefighters that are laid off, with those officers being placed on a Lay Off
List and have preference to work for another Civil Service city or town that has an opening in
their department. The individual laid off has the first right to the job they were laid off from
when or if it becomes open.

Recently, many police agencies and 9 fire agencies have chosen to leave Civil Service. Additionally, and
over the past 30 years or 50, many cities and towns have decided to take their police chiefs and fire
chiefs out of Civil Service.

John Parow Consulting & Associates 17



11203

10779

The communities that have left Civil Service have cited many of the following reason and or advantages
in their decision to leave:

¢ Their minimal entrance and promotional standards are a high school education or GED, Mass
driver’s license.

e Absolute preferences are given to disabled veterans, veterans and children of deceased or
severely injured officers.

s leaving Civil Service allows for greater flexibility within the hiring and promotional process.

e Departments would not be required to hire from an existing lay off list.

¢ The department ¢an determine the expiration date of the hiring and promotional lists.

e The police/fire department can set minimum eligibility guidelines not allowed under Civil Service
such as higher education levels.

e The department can determine what hiring preferences they want to acknowledge (residency,
military experience, Paramedic/EMT certifications, language proficiency, prior academy
training).

¢ Instead of the candidate ratio of (ZN+1) departments would have a much larger candidate pool
to select from.

e Departments can diversify their workforce without jumping through the hurdles Civii Service
presents when asking for a specialized certification.

e Flexibility to hire |ateral transfers or reinstatements.

* Ability to incorporate community and department specific criteria into promotional exams.

o Ability to offer promotional exams that more accurately gauge an officer’s suitability to
become a supervisor.
o Attributes beyond test score, such as work productivity, contribution to the community
and performance evaluations would factor into promotions,
© Ability to mandate a probationary period for promotions.
As with any hiring or promotional system there are Pros and Cons.

First and foremost, there are collective bargaining issues with the Firefighters’ Union that will need to be
overcome if you leave Civil Service. Many of the key points under Civil Service offer various levels of
protection for Union members. Furthermore, they view the independent Civil Service system as testing
on an even playing field which can help to keep local politics and favoritism to a minimum.

The Civil Service testing system is independent of the city or town and requires little effort for the
community in the process. They develop the tests for both entry and promotion and administer them.
When you need to fill a vacancy or position, they send you a list of eligible candidates based on the
established ratio of 2N+1 (2 names for every open position plus 1 additional candidate). For example, if
you have 1 opening you get 2 names plus 1 for a total of 3, if you have 2 openings you get 4 names plus
1 for a total of 5.

The argument against using this system, on the management side, is that the test(s) is based on
statewide questions and not unigue to the specific community and that you are very limited to the
candidate pool you can choose from. Additionally, Civil Service sets minimal entrance and promotional
standards, only requiring a high school education or GED and a Massachusetts driver’s license.

John Parow Consulting & Associates 18



11203

10779

When a city or town leaves Civil Service, the entrance testing and promotiona! process now becomes
the responsibility of the community. Depending how the city or town chooses to develop and administer
the testing and promotional process there could be an additional cost. The positive side to a city or town
when conducting its own testing process is they can develop it specifically for the needs of that
community. There are many companies and consultants in Massachusetts that provide entrance exam
testing and promotional services, but it is typically at a cost to the community.

In recent years, fire departments trying to hire certified Emergency Medical Technicians (EMT) and
Paramedics off the civil service “new hire” list have been very disappointed because the "new hire” [ist
with this type of candidate is exhausted very quickly, leaving the city or town with no candidates to hire
until the next civil service entrance exam is given. Recently, civil service has changed its entrance testing
cycle from once every two years to once every year. It is not known at this time if this change will
improve the number of available candidates in the EMT or Paramedic pool.

Recent experience at Gardner Fire Department

The City of Gardner only hires off the civil service EMT list. Recently, Chief Lagoy tried to hire four
firefighter/EMTs. He was sent a list with 180 names, 11 signed the list, 6 came for an interview, 3
withdrew when they found out they had to live within 10 miles of the city (a Civil Service requirement),
1 did not pass the background check, leaving Chief Lagoy with 2 candidates, which he hired. At this point
the fire department must wait for the next Civil Service entrance exam before they can fill the two
vacant positions. This can lead to additional overtime cost and potentiaily fatigue to department
members. It is our understanding that Chief Lagoy is experiencing these difficulties, once again, with his
most recent round of hiring.

if the fire department is looking to hire trained and certified firefighter/EMTs from other communities,
under Civil Service, you are restricted to hire from only other Civil Service departments. This greatly
reduces the pool of potential candidates, especially in the Gardner area where many of the area fire
departments are non-Civil Service,

As originally stated, there are Pros and Cons in being a Civil Service department or not. The Gardner
Police Department has partitioned the State to leave Civil Service and to our understanding was recently
granted permission the leave. We would suggest that if remaining in the Civil Service system is inhibiting
the fire department from meeting its mission, leaving Civil Service should be explored.

In either case, we believe that there are ways to increase the pool for potential local candidates.
Reaching out to the focal high school is a great resource for potential candidates by participating in
career days and/or offering internships. Additionally, working with the schools to provide CPR and first
aid classes can give the fire department an opportunity to reach the student population. Teenagers are
making decisions about what their adult lives might be like and can process substantial information
about a possible career in the fire service. Firefighters can talk honestly with this group about what it is
really like to be a firefighter and what opportunities exist.

Marketing local colleges are also a good resource for potential candidates. Two very local colleges,
Quinsigamond Community College, and Anna Maria College both offer fire science programs, including
Emergency Medical Technician training.

John Parow Consulting & Associates 19



11203
10779

The use of media outreach, and social media, is a particularly helpful too! to make potential candidates
aware of job openings and dates of upcoming Civil Service entrance exams and can include information
on how to register for theses exams.

Recommendations:

1. Review the success of the upcoming hiring process to see if it yields sufficient qualified
firefighter/EMT candidates. If it does not meet these needs and it is clear that remaining in the
Civil Service system is inhibiting the fire department from meeting its mission, leaving Civil
Service should be explored.

2. Whether the fire department remains in or leaves Civil Service, we would recommend that 3
proactive recruitment program be established to assist in providing qualified firefighter/EMT
candidates for the Gardner Fire Department, into the future.

John Parow Consulting & Associates 20



11203
10779

Review the current department staffing model against industry standards and comparison
departments in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Fire Departments across the Commonweaith vary greatly in size and scope due to size, economics,
incident volume, traditions and needs of the communities they serve. No matter the size or community

served, all successful fire departments share certain principles of organization for effective and safe
function. These performance principies inciude:

¢ Chain of command. An established command hierarchy from the lowest to the highest
department level, ensuring that each subordinate reports to one supervisor. The chain of
command not only establishes accountability, it lays out a company's lines of authority and
decision-making power. This chain of command is used for organizational day to day functions
and for emergency incidents.

s Supervisory limits or span of control. This refers to the number of individuals or resources that
one supervisor can manage effectively in emergency and non-emergency situations. Although
the number can vary accarding to circumstance the Fire Chief's Handbook, 7 ed. uses a general
guideline for fire service company supervision of up to five or six firefighters per one supervisor.

e Division of labor. Ensures that all responsibilities are assigned and prevents the duplication of
efforts. Additionally, the process divides large jobs into smalier jobs to make them more
manageable, equalize workloads, and increase efficiency.

o Discipline and regulations. Written policies, procedures, and guidelines to set boundaries and
enforcement for expected individual and departmental performance.

To meet these expectations and achieve these principles, fire departments must be structured,
organized, and staffed properly.

We looked at 10 fire departments in the Commonwealth that were either small cities or similar size
departments and looked at the call volume, staffing and command structure.

|- Population | calls ‘calls | total | # Stations ~ AMB

S | other | EMS | calls | )
" Agawam 128613 | 1104 5254 6358 | 2 3ALS
(Amesbury 17532 | 1106 | 1844 | 2950 |1 | 1BLS
 Bridgewater | 27,619 2500 3600 | 6100 |2 | 2/ALS/2 res. |
Foboroughn 1670 100 a0 lamo (1 wms
(Gardner 20,683 | 1938 3477 [s415 |1 | 1BLS
| Greenfield | 17,258 | 1305 1763 3068 | 1 | BLS/BU

Leominster | 41,581 | 2728 5728 | 8495 | 3 | 2BLS
" Melrose 28,016 | 1798 T 2480 | 4278 | 3 | ALS
Southbridge | 16,878 | 764 3690 '*;7454 "1 | 3ALs
(wilmington (22325 2424 | 2332 | 4756 |1 BT

| Winthrop |18544 1061 2132 3193 |2 | No AMB

Figure # 7

ALS = Advanced Life Support, BLS = Basic Life Support, BU = Back Up Ambulance

John Parow Consulting & Associates 21



11203
10779

Each department provided us with an Organizational Chart (see Appendix A).

What we noticed with the current Gardner Fire Department staffing model were two things, the lack of
a Deputy Fire Chief and that the standard span of cantrol for a fire department of five or six firefighters
to one supervisor is exceeded on each Group.

We would recommend the city looks at making a nonunion (confidential) Deputy Fire Chief's pasition.
The Deputy Fire Chief would serve as second in command of a fire department. The Deputy Fire

Chief would manage day-to-day operations, direct and coordinate activities of personnel under their
command, collaborating with internal and external stakeholders. This person may also act as a
department head in the absence of the Fire Chief and assist in succession planning. This position will
include a combination of administrative work and time spent in the field to keep operations running
efficiently in the fire department.

Currently, all the positions below Fire Chief are union positions. This leaves the Fire Chief without a
confidential employee on the department to assist and act in a confidential capacity when formulating,
determining, and effectuating management policies and dealing with disciplinary issues. Additionally, it
puts the current 2nd in command, the Fire Captain, in a very difficult position as he or she tries to
balance their high-level management position and being a union member.

The current “Group” span of control in the Gardner Fire Department is eight firefighters to one
supervisor, exceeding the recommended span of control for a fire department. Exceeding the span of
control in this fashion becomes more apparent and potentially dangerous during emergency operations
with the potential that the span of control can become unmanageable. Maintaining a manageable span
of contral is particularly important at incidents where safety and accountability are a top priority.

Because of this large span of control, we would recommend the city looks at creating a Captain’s
position on each Group in addition to the current Group Lieutenant. This would bring the span of control
to four firefighters to one supervisor. This can be done with little impact to the budget by continuing
the current staffing level of nine on the Group and promoting one of the nine members to the newly
created position of “Group” Fire Captain. The budget cost would be the difference between a
Firefighter/EMT’s rate and that of a Fire Captain.

The Fire Captain would manage the Group and run the day-to-day operations on that Group including
managing duties surrounding firefighting, training, accountability, emergency care, hazardous materials,
etc.

The Fire Lieutenant would act in a supervisory/foreman type position and assist the Captain in day-to-
day operations and oversee a company at emergency scenes.

Both these positions would add to successful succession planning for the department moving forward.
OSHA 2in/2o0ut law and NFPA Standard 1710 for Career Fire Departments

The report would be incomplete if we did not address the current OSHA 29 CFR 1910.134 law “2in-2out”
and the NFPA Standard 1710 for Career Fire Departments.

The “2 in-to-out” law was designed for the safety of firefighters engaged in interior structural firefighting
and is the major focus of paragraph (g){4) of the OSHA Respiratory Protection standard. This provision

lohn Parow Consulting & Associates 22



11203
10779

requires that at least two firefighters enter the immediately Dangerous to Life or Health (IDLH}
atmosphere and remain in visual or voice contact with each other at all times. It also requires that at
least two others be located outside the IDLH atmosphere, thus the term, "two in/two out”. This assures
that the "two in" can monitor each other and assist with equipment failure or entrapment or other
hazards, and the "two out" can monitor those in the building, initiate rescue, or call for back-up. One of
the "two out” can be assigned another role such as incident commander. | am pleased to say that we
found that Gardner Fire Department complies this law under normal response conditions.

OSHA ‘2 In/2 Out’® Illustrated

OSHA Regulation 1910.134 requires that
nf least two standby persons, in addition to
the minimum of two persons inside needed
to fight the fire, must be present before fire

fighicrs may euter the building.

and rater su
to A e T

gmcrﬂ Ypcrator remaing at
the engine gumato establish
mn[l}‘ni“ n s

Ra{gid Intervention |

Team (RIT) remains immediately |

=1 availablec to wssist in the cvent of 2 |
fircfighter cmergency

I-_l—nt_cﬂor attack team initiates |
fire suppression and vietim
search and rescue

Credit: Fairview Fire District

NFPA 1710 Standard for Organization and Deployment of Fire Suppression Operations, Emergency
Medical Operations, and Special Operations to the Public by Career Fire Departments (see appendix B).

Appropriate staffing levels deliver effective and efficient deployment for fire suppression operations,
emergency medical operations, and special operations to the public. NFPA 1710 is a standard/guideline
for an all-career fire department to help protect citizens and provide for the occupational safety and
health of its fire department employees. Provisions of 1710 cover functions and objectives of fire
department emergency service delivery, response capabilities, and resources, including staffing levels,
response times, and levels of service. General criteria for managing resources and systems, such as
health and safety, incident management, training, communications, and pre-incident planning are also
provided in NFPA 1710,

NFPA guidelines are based on research performed by trained members of the association. Scientific
research, such as fire behavior in different environments and how different synthetic materiais affect the
burn process, are used in part to establish these guidelines.

John Parow Consulting & Associates 23



11203
10779

NFPA 1710 addresses the structure and operation of organizations providing such services, which
include fire suppression and other assigned emergency response responsibilities such as EMS and
special operations.

The requirements intend to provide effective, efficient, and safe protective services to help prevent
fires, reduce risk to lives and property, deal with incidents that occur, and help prepare for anticipated
incidents.

The requirements are listed in NFPA 1710 for fire department service deployment based on the type of
occupancy, along with the appropriate response staffing levels for each. The minimum staffing level for
a single-family dwelling according to the standard is:

Occupancy Type: Single-Family Dwelling Deployment: Minimum of 15 members or 17 if aerial device is
used.

The initial full alarm assignment to a structure fire in a typical 2000 sa/ft two-story, single-family
dwelling without a basement and with no exposures must provide for a minimum of 15 members (17 if
an aerial device is used).

NFPA 1710 tllustrated

TOTAL ON SCEMNE: 17
Locrden C ommand Yehwle: 1 Chict Officer

Ladder Trwk: | MTicer ¥ Bige baghiers
*1 FF asvgned to vichm rescue

Fngipe 1 Officer 3 tire krghier

bagine 1 (MTweey 3 ko Fighters

Engige 1 Ql¥icer 3 Fire Fighters
*FF avigned oo vieeim vesone

1 FI" asvigned o tnctdens Commander
*) Ofhicer, 1 FE asspgmed to IRIC

153 PERSONNEL REQUIRED
174 dersal Device umd
Supph Pump are m Uperanion

Incldens Cmrnmunds ¢ 63 ) angd
H Ak

Artuck, Pusp
Opoesiar

Credit: Peoris Fire Department

Additionally, NFPA 1710 provides essential benchmarks, fire departments often measure baseline
performance in terms of total response time, which is the time it takes from the call to be received at
the Public Safety Answering Paint (PSAP) until the first unit arrives on the scene of the emergency

John Parow Consuiting & Associates 24



11203
10779

incident. Total response time should be measured and reported for all first-due units and the effective
response force (ERF) assembly. Total response time is composed of call-processing time, turnout time
and travel time:

Afarm Answering Time: 15 seconds for 95% of calls; 40 seconds for 99% of calls

Alarm Processing Time: 64 seconds for 90% of calls; 106 seconds for 95% of calls
Turnout Time: 60 seconds for EMS responses; 80 seconds for fire responses

First Engine Arrive on Scene Time: 240 sec {4 minutes) for 90% of responses with a minimum
staffing of 4 personnel

Second Company Arrive on Scene Time: 360 seconds {6 minutes) for 90% of responses with a
minimum staffing of 4 personnel

[nitial Full Alarm — Low and Medium Hazard Assembly Time: 480 seconds (8 minutes) on 90% of
responses

Initial Full Alarm — High Hazard/High-Rise Assembly Time: 610 seconds (10 minutes 10 seconds)
on 90% of responses

As stated earlier, NFPA Standards are guidelines for fire departments to be aware of and hopefully work
towards implementing. There are many ways to move towards compliance with NFPA 1710 such as
automatic aid, mutual aid with other neighboring communities, pre-fire plans, etc. It is suggested that
Gardner Fire Department work towards meeting the guidelines of NFPA 1710 over time.

Taking this into account and after reviewing the organizational structures and shift manning of other
Fire Departments in the study we would recommend adding a non-union Deputy Fire Chief’s position
and a Fire Captain to each group to be the Group Commander to solve the span of control issue.

Recommendations:

1. The city looks at making a nonunion {confidential) Deputy Fire Chief's position. The Deputy Fire

2.

3.

Chief would serve as second in command of a fire department

The city looks at creating a Captain’s position on each Group to be the Group Commander. This
would be within the current Group staffing of nine and in addition to the current Group
Lieutenant to bring the span of control to 4 firefighters to 1 supervisor.

That Gardner Fire Department should work towards meeting the guidelines of NFPA 1710, over
time.

John Parow Consulting & Associates 25



11203

10779

Appendix A

Current Agawam Fire Department Organizational Chart, 2022

26

John Parow Consuliting & Assnle.




11203
10779

Chief of Department

Assistant Fire Deputy Chief/Fire
Chief/Operations iy Prevention

. I

I

2 Lisutenants (soon to be 1 Captand 1 LT)
|

6 Firefighter/EMTs

Amesbury Fire Rescue

John Parow Consulting & Associates 27




Bridgewater FD
Chief
| 2 Admin Assist
Deputy Chief
Training Captain | FPLT
l
Capt. Capt. Capt.
LT. LT. LT.
10 FF 10 FF 10 FF

John Parow Consulting & Associates

EMS LT

Capt.
LT.
10 FF

11203
10779

28



11203
10779

TOWN OF FOXBOROUGH
DEPARTMENT OF FIRE,RESCUE & EMERGENCY SERVICES

FIRECHIEF /EM.A.

MRECTOR
Michael P. Kelleher
Yav uni __ Kathleen DiNatale
I Admin. Asst. Office Coordinator
|
F F. C. Shepardson ASST. FIRE CHIEF"
Adminisirative ~— on R
Day Shift Thomas F. .IBuckley

DEPUTY CHIEY FMS DEPUTY CHIEF FIRE

. Kevi I I B PREVENTION
ﬂmrmla e David A. Laracy
| Group 1 Group 2 Group 3 Gryup 4
- | ! [ N (R
ALSELS EMS | | Pablic CapL A. Puntini Caph. D. Treanowe, . Capt B Nooam Capt D. “““" | ] | ommiiee 1l umiae. 1|
[ Tramas | L2 ) . Permitleg | | g Lw
e s Lt A, Higgme Lk R. Luces, Jr 1t J, Greniac Lt. D, Tresanie, 1 e Y | Frvimcond i
’ Liconsing || Safety & F.F.T Gotter F.F. S Rogens F.F. S Mach FFJC i Pabic | Fire
radamniog | Haekl ! i
Moo o SRS e ___hw-vw
F.F. M. Wheishao F.F. P Rocketr F.F M Trannie FF.R Nagobeds
F.F. G Git F.E, P, Beltum F.E. S, Philbin F.EC Swemey
EF.P Mauoi FF. J. Dantona F.F. J. Rebufis F.E. B. Foley
F.F, A Faoell F.E. 1. Gelanti F.F. W. Guaves BE W, Cavshen
F.F, 8. Greaiec F.F £ Bohnet F.F.J. Cuddihy FF A Boyt

John Parow Consulting & Associates 29



11203
10779

GARDNER FIRE - RESCUE
2022 ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

Chief/EMT Gregory Lagoy

I

Captain/EMT Craig Osowski

Fire Prev/Training Officer Administrative Assistant
LT/EMT Mark Bettez B. Cormier
Float Shift Commander
LT/EMT Matthew Moniz
1 1 1
Group 1 Group 2 Group 3 Group 4
LT/EMT Patrick Fohy LT/EMT Eric Hulette LT/EMT Ryan Meagher LT/EMT Kenneth Chase
FF/EMTS. Kelley FF/EMT D. Fields FF/EMT D. Poudrette FF/EMT P. Gamache
FF/EMT Matt Bettez FF/EMT M. Bergeron FF/EMT A. Alario FF/EMT J. Chartier
FF/EMT J. Lynch FF/EMT N. MacAllister FF/P K. Goehle FF/EMT M. Berner
FE/EMT ). Salo FF/EMT C. Ogert FF/EMT D. Quinn FF/EMT ). Piedad
| FF/EMT N. Boris | FF/EMTA.Spuria | | FF/EMTS.Pereira | | FF/EMTD. Rogowski
FF/EMT B. Hansen FF/EMT R. Benoit FF/EMT B. Byrne FF/EMT M. Phillips
FF/EMT J. Henderson FF/EMT C. Dauphinais FF/EMT Vacant FF/EMT J. Thompson
FF/EMT Vacant FF/EMT B. Tucker FF/EMT Vacant FF/EMT P. Swensen

lohn Parow Consulting & Associates

30




Greenfield Fire Department

Fire Prevention \
Captain

Operations |
Lieutenant

Operations
Captain

!
il

Groupl Group 2
Captain J Captain |

}

i

| Lieutenant ) Lieutenant
NS e
fiaas \
(4 Firefighters | 4 Firefighters

\ r

-

John Parow Consulting & Associates

Chiet

——

Group 3
Captain

Lreutenant
/

il

— | Office Manger

—
|

C)
cieutenant |

1

11203
10779

Call-force

Lieutenant
/

[ 4’Flrehghlers) 4 Frefighters | | ﬁFIreﬁghlers)'

31



11203
10779

fl @[ FIRE/EMS DEPARTMENT STAFFING SURVEY

FIRE/EMS
8,495

DEPARTMENT/CITY Leominister Fire
METRO AREA Worcester, MA-CT Metro Area

POPULATION (2020) 43,782

SERVICE
INCIDENTS FY 2021

JNCIDENTS/1,000 {POP)
STATIONS

RISl Department Budget $11,374,430
FRONTILINE ARPARATEIS

< EMS <  Groupl FIRE CAR 1
J TRAINING / EQUIPMENT v Group2 BLS AMBULANCE {s) 2
v FIRE PREVENTION 4/  Group3 ENGINE(S} 3
¥ INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 7  Group4 TRUCK(S) 1
o FIRE ALARM / COMMUNICATIONS O BRUSH o
¥ APPARATUS MAINTENANCE S RESCUE "]
: = . e —— R o preren
oA EWLTAR SWOR oS TEESI VR DD
DEPUTY CHIEF EMS / TRAIN of eputy Chi L}
DEPUTY CHIEF FIRE PREVEN U v Deputy Chief v

w] a Deputy Chief a v

a 1] Deputy Chief a v

[m] [} u] =]

] W] [n] o

IRAISONS. 2 5
ADMINISTRATION
CHIEF 1

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT 1

1

ADMINISTRATIVE CLERK

HEALTH SAFETY & wEFARE (L TR TE T T S S N
DEPUTY CHIEF EMS / TRAINING

DEPUTY CHIEF FIRE PREVENTION
LIEUTENANT EMS/ TRAINING

LIEUTENANT FIRE PREVENTION
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

FIRE ALARM SUPERINTENDENT
ASSISTANT FIRE ALARM SUPERINTENDENT
APPARATLS MAINTENANCE

[ERT N TR TR PR T

SUPPRESSION 77
DEPUTY FIRE CHIEF I 5
LIEUTENANT 16
FIREFIGHTER 57
YES | LOWIRACTUAL, BRI S7R SseT ERLE - A SERAFPARATLS 2 B ENGINE IR THUCK JE]

John Parow Consulting & Associates 32



Melrose Fire Department
Organizational Chart

e
B
o
=
=
(v}
-
o

John Parow Consulting & Associates

4 Staff Positions
56 Line Firefighters

11203
10779



Southbridge Fire Department - Career

Executive |
Secretary.

Captain

Lieutenant

Lieutenant

Lieutenant (P)

Lieutenant
Fire Inspector

3 Firefighters
2 Paramedics

2 Firefighters
3 Paramedics

2 Firefighters
3 Paramedics

3 _u,_,%mzmm
2 Paramedis




11203

10779

Wilmington Fire Department

i Chief of Department

e |

| Deputy Chief

FircFightet/EMT 4 FireFightet/EMT

* FircFightet/EMT |- FireFighter/EMT

_ FireFighter /EMT rﬂl. FireFightert/EMT
|

* Ea_n_a_.ﬂ\mﬁ w

[ s )

_
|
_ ek ighte/EMT j FireFighter/ EMT

I

FircigheuEMT - Fikighter EMT
FireFighter/EMT rﬁ FireFighteEMT
. FircFighterEMT

S T = >
. Operations & Training i [ - Fire Prevention
T OfYicer Officer
g — — ————
" Shift Commander _ Shift Commander : Shift Commander
e nEJ_.Ww it . Growp2 | Group3
Company Officer Company Officer ! Company Officer
* Q.ocv g m Group 2 _ m.d:.. u
T:&.@ﬁ\mﬁ il_ FucFighte/EMT | FircFighte/EMT rf FircFightetEMT | FireFighter/EMT +1 FireFightet/EMT
SR | Lasieaay |
_

FireFighter/EMT rr « FireFightet/EMT

B i

>._.===u=.s=<o
Clerks

- P SO
i Shift Commander
1

L 2amhu Group 4

_ Company Officer
Group 4
=il S

| FireFighteasd EMT a%. FireFighte EMT

;
FireFightetEMT = FireFightet/EMT .

|
FircFightet/EMT =~ FireFightet/EMT

FireFighte/EMT =~ FircFighte/EMT
1

ﬂ. s

__wzﬂ—.x.&:nn,msl m.am.mrnﬂ\m.!,_.
EFS _ e e

[ ———

! FircFighte EMT

“ FireFightet EMT
e+ | & - e | | bt e,
|
| FireFighter/EMT ~= FueFightetf EMT

35

John Parow Consulting & Associates




11203
10779

Winthrop Fire Department

f--nn Admin Assist

Administrative Officer (Captain) Fire Prevention

Captain Captain Captain Captain
LT LT LT LT
6 FF 6 FF 6 FF 6 FF

John Parow Consulting & Associates 36



11203

10779
Appendix B
\FPA Standard 1710
Organization and Deployment of Hre Suppression Operations,
EMS and Special Operations in Career Fire Departments
d Plrpost = Aninitial Algrm is personnel, squipment and resources onaimally dispatched

tpan nofification nl a stroche fire,
« The 1710 Standard for was onginally 1eleased in 2007 Followang, there
havi: been three revisions (2004, 2010, 2016 with the most recent
released in September 2016.

"

Performance Objectves

o Alanm Answenng Time

The standard is applicable to substantially all CAREER fire departments and 15 sec 959

prowdes the MINIMUM requirements for resource deployment for fire 40 sec 99%

suppression, EM: and Special Operations while also addessing fire fighter

occupational healih and salcly. o At Processing Time
64 sec 90%

The 1710 Standaid addresses structure fire in thiee hazard fovels. These
included low hacard {residential smale family dwellings), medium hazard
fibree stoty garden apartments o siip malls), and high hazard structures

1086 sec 9%

SIAY Ul & Tumout Time
[inah-tise huildings) 60 sec EMS
The Standatd addresses fire suppression, EMS, Aircraft Rescue and B0 sec Fire

Firehightng Marne Rescue and Mrefighting, Wildland Firefighting, and
Mutual and Auto Aird.

Frst Engine Anive on Scene Time
240 gec {4 min)

[rifial Full Alarm (Low and
Medium Hazaid) Time

v Company™ is defined as. 480 s6c /8 rin)

* Group of members under direct supervision Initial Full Alarm - High Hazard/ High Rise Time
e Trainedd and equipped to pertorm assigned tasks 610 ses 110 min 1) sec:
= (rganized and 1dentified as engine, ladder, rescue, squad or
mnul-lnclional companies w0 Fire departments shal set forth crleria for varions tynes of ncidents 1o
& Group of members who arnve 8t scene and operale wilh one apparalus which they are required/expacted to respond. These types of incidenis
should include but not be fimited to the {ollowing:

« EXCHPTION 1o company aiviving on one apparatus: o Natural disaster

» Mutliple apparatuses are assianed, dispatched and arrve together o Acts of terrorism
* Contimuoysty ppeiaty together = WMD

* Managed by a single officer = Large-scale mass casualty




Liven expected firefighting conditions, the numbier of on duty members
shall be delermined through task analysis considering the following crtena:

e |ile hazad protecied population
« Safe and elfectve performance
e {otenlial property loss

e Hazad lvels of properties

o Froground tactics emplayed

« .ompany Stafhing (Crow Size)

s [rigine - minimune 4 on duty
High volume/geographic restricions & minimum on duty
Jachcal hazarrds dense urban area = 6 mwumun on duty
o Tuck  mipimum 4 on duly
High volumna/neographie restactions - & minmum on duty
lactical hazards dense urban area = 6 minium on duty
Inihat Al Deploynient {ruinber of fire fighiers induding officers)

® Lowhasad - 15 bire fighlers
o Megium hazard - 28 Fie fighters
e High hazard 43 Fire fighters

The fire department shall clearly docurment ils role, respansibiliies, funclions
and abjeclives for the delivery of EMS. EMS operafions shall be organized
10 enstre the fire department's capability and mcludes members, eqlipment
and resources 1o deploy the initial armving company and additional glarm
assignments,

B

11203
10779

EMS Treatmen! Levels mchide:

* (st Responder
& Basic Lite Suppan (BES)
o Advanced | e Support (AL S}

MINIMUM EMS Prowision - Tirst responder/AED

Authonty Having Junsciction (AHJ: shoukd deternmine Il bire Department
provides BLS, ALS services. and/or transport. Patient heatment associted
with each fevel of FMS should be determined by the AHJ based on
requirements and licensing within each state/province.

On-tiuty EMS units shall be staffed wath e micimem members necsssary
Ioi emergency menical care relative 1o e Jevel of EMS prowided by
depariment,

Personngl deploved 1o ALY smiergency responses shall mciude.

o Aminmoun ol two members trained at the emergency medical
{echnician- patamedic level

e AND two miembers Irained at the B S level arving on scenz wittan the
pstablished avel time.

o A lire departments with ALS services shall have a nanigd medical

director with the responsihility lo pversee and ensure: auallly “nedi-al care
in accordance with state or provindal lavs or regulations and must have a
mechanism for immediate commubiczton with EMS supenision arvi
medical oversight,




11203

73 Stuart St. Information

¢ Building Commissioner Report, 2/29/24
e Opinion of Probable Cost for Demolition
e City Council Agenda of Monday, Dec 9, 2022



City of Gardner

Department of Inspectional Services
115 Pleasant Street, Room 101
Gardner, MA 01440
Tel. (978) 630-4007 Fax: (978) 632-3313

February 29, 2024

Mayor Nicholson
City of Gardner

95 Pleasant St.
Gardner, MA 01440

Re: Unsafe structure located at 73 Stuart St. Gardner, MA 01440 M.B.L. M32-24-6

Dear Mayor Nicholson,

On Wednesday February 14, 2024 the building department received a complaint regarding the concrete (cmu) wall at the
rear of 73 Stuart St. The complainant stated the wall had partially collapsed and damaged the vinyl fence dividing 73
Stuart and 348 Park St. 1 visited 73 Stuart St. on February 15, 2024... see attached report and photos.

Previously, in accordance with §116 Unsafe Structures and Equipment of 780 CMR, Massachusetts State Building
Code and §116.3 Marking or Identifying Certain Buildings That Are Especially Unsafe in the Case of Fire, in
cooperation with the head of the fire department, the building has been marked with an “X” as prescribed in the
Massachusetts Comprehensive Fire Code 527 CMR 1.00 10.12.5.

I have made the determination that the above referenced structure is dangerous to life or limb and poses an immediate
threat to the general public and first responders. In the interest of public safety and in accordance with M.G.L. ¢.143 §6,
It is my recommendation that the structure be removed in its entirety.

Understanding that the city of Gardner is currently exploring options for the removal of the structure, and until such a time
that the structure has been removed, T must order the city of Gardner to secure the remainder of the concrete wall which is
in immediate danger of collapse and install a proper fence around the structure for the protection of passers-by as outlined
in M.G.L. ¢.143 §7 Removal or making structure safe, putting up fence

Please feel free to contact me directly at 978-630-4060 or by email at tzuppa@gardner-ma.gov should you have any
questions or concerns.

Respectfully,

Thomas Zuppa
Building Commmissioner
Zoning Enforcement Officer

Mission Statement
To promote the safe and compatible development of the community through fair and consistent enforcement of
building codes and zoning ordinances




City of Gardner

Department of Inspectional Services
115 Pleasant Street, Room 101
Gardner, MA 01440
Tel. (978) 630-4007 Fax: (978) 632-3313

February 16, 2024

RE: Fencing Damage @ 348 Park St.

Timeline of Events:

® On Wednesday February 14, 2024 at 09:40 hrs. the an email was received by Gayle Mcnally; occupant of 348
Park St. regarding damage to her fence located at the rear of her property.

e Inspector Germano made a site visit at approximately 10:45 hrs. on February 14, 2024

e At approximately 14:50 hrs. on February 15, 2024 1 accompanied Inspector Germano on a second site visit.

Observations from site visit:

e Asix foot vinyl fence has been installed on what appears to be the property of 348 Park St.

e The vinyl fence has sustained damage in two separate locations.

e  The roof structure on the northern side of the of the structure located at 73 Stuart St. has collapsed. Time of
collapse unknown.

e The collapse of the roof structure appears to have caused a portion the cmu block wall to collapse.

¢ Damage was observed to the adjacent trees. Time of damage unknown although it does appear recent. Bark was
observed on the cmu block wall on the ground next to the trees.

e Remainder of the cmu block wall located at the northern most part of 73 Stuart St. is in a compromised state.

Conclusion:

e Owner of 348 Park St. has been given a copy of this report along with a copy of the city’s claim form to
complete and return to the city clerk’s office.

Thomas Zuppa C.B.O.
Building Commissioner
Zoning Enforcement Officer
City of Gardner, MA

Mission Statement
To promote the safe and compatible development of the community through fair and consistent enforcement of
building codes and zoning ordinances






















-

]







11203

ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST Tighe&Bond
Project: Abatement and Demolition of 73 Stuart Street
Location: 73 Stuart Street Gardner, MA
Estimate Type: |Conceptual / Preliminary Design B Prepared By:|Tighe & Bond
Date Prepared:|1/30/2024
T&B Project No.:|G03840.092
_ ._ |
i | Material/Installed Cost
Spec. Item
Section | No. Description Qty Units $/Unit Total

DIVISION 1 - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS (Costs included in unit prices in other Divisions)

01570 1 [Temp Controls / Security Fencing 1 LS $4,000 $4,000

DIV O 2 |Preparation of Contract Documents, H&S Plan, SOV, etc. 1 LS $3,500 $3,500
SUBTOTAL - DIVISION 1 $7,500
|DIVISIONS 2 and 13 - SITE WORK

02220 1 [Building Demolition 1 LS $124,000 $124,000

02280 2 [Cut and Cap / Utility Terminations 1 LS $3,500 $3,500

13281 4 |Asbestos Abatement (Survey not Performed Yet) 1 LS $85,000 $85,000

02220 8 |Foundation Removals 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

02220 10 _|[Site Restoration (includes Borrow & Loam / Seed) 1 LS $14,000 $14,000
SUBTOTAL - DIVISIONS 0,1,2 and 13 $231,500

| _
CONSTRUCTION TOTAL COST | $239,000
CONTRACTOROH & P 15% $35,850
SUBTOTAL $274,850
CONTINGENCY AS A PERCENTAGE OF CONSTRUCTION COST 20% $54,970
TOTAL | | B $329,820
Construction Total: $329,820
ENGINEERING CONSTRUCTION PHASE MANAGEMENT 12% Engineering (Const. Ser.): $39,578
TOTAL: $369,400

NOTES

This is an engineer’s Opinion of probable Construction Cost (OPCC). Tighe & Bond has no control over the cost or m<m=mu=:< of labor, equipment or materials, or over market
conditions or the Contractor's method of pricing, and that the estimates of probable construction costs are made on the basis of the Tighe & Bond’s professional judgment and
experience. Tighe & Bond makes no guarantee nor warranty, expressed or implied, that the bids or the negotiated cost of the Work will not vary from this estimate of the Probable
Construction Cost,




IL
IIL.
IV.

VI

VII.

VIIIL.

11203

City of Gardner, Massachugetts
®ffice of the City Council

CALENDAR FOR THE MEETING
of
MONDAY, DECEMBER 19, 2022
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER
7:30 P.M.

AMENDED
ORDER OF BUSINESS

CALL TO ORDER

CALL OF THE ROLL OF COUNCILLORS

OPENING PRAYER

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ANNOUNCEMENT OF OPEN MEETING RECORDINGS

Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session of a meeting, or may transmit the meeting through any medium, subject to reasonable
requirements of the chair as to the number, placement and operation of equipment used so as not te interfere with the conduct of the meeting, Any person
intending to make such recording shall notify the Chair forthwith. All documents and exhibits used or referenced at the meeting must be submitted in
duplicate to the City Clerk, as they become part of the Meeting Minutes.

READING OF MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETING(S)
August 1, 2022, Regular Meeting

September 7, 2022, Regular Meeting

September 19, 2022, Informal Meeting
September 19, 2022, Regular Meeting

PUBLIC HEARINGS
COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR

ORDERS

10865 — An Order Appropriating $27,000.00 from Free Cash to the IT Department —
Cyber Security Software Account. (Finance Committee)

COMMUNICATIONS

10866 — A Measure Declaring Surplus for the Purpose of Disposal of Land and
Buildings at 73 Stuart Street. (Finance Committee)

Page 1l of 4



IX.

11203

10867 — A Measure Authorizing an Intermunicipal Agreement between City of
Gardner and Town of Ashby for Veterans Services. (Finance Committee)

10871 — A Notification from the Mayor Regarding the Certification of FY2023 Tax
Rate.

APPOINTMENTS

10875 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Neil Janssens, to the
position of Special Act Charter Drafting Committee, for term expiring upon
submission to City Council. (Appointments Committee)

10876 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Tina Griffin, to the
position of Special Act Charter Drafting Committee, for term expiring upon
submission to City Council. (Adppointments Committee)

10877 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Robert Rice, Esq., to the
position of Special Act Charter Drafting Committee, for term expiring upon
submission to City Council. (Appointments Committee)

PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC.
10868 — Applications for Motor Vehicle Dealers Licenses, Class 1. (Safety Committee)

(a) Salvadore Chevrolet, 442 West Broadway
(b) Salvadore Chrysler-Dodge-Jeep-Ram, 442 West Broadway

10869 — Applications for Motor Vehicle Dealers Licenses, Class II (Safety
Committee)

(a) AC Auto Clinic, 411 Parker Street

(b) Blake Motors, 412 Main Street

(c) Brian’s Auto Sales, 549 W Broadway

(d) Gardner Automart, Inc., 182 West Street

(e) Gardner Motors, LLC, 119 Pearson Blvd

(f) JPJ Automotive, LLC, 78 East Broadway

(g) Mike’s Auto, 251 E Broadway

(h) Osagi Enterprise, LLC., 43 Tobey Street

(1) Ric’s Radiator Repair Used Car Sales, 800 W Broadway
() Salvadore Chevrolet, 421 W Broadway

(k) Salvadore Chevrolet, 249 Timpany Blvd.

(I) Sylvester R. Anghuy Sales, 146 Sherman Street
(m) Rob’s Dyno Services, LLC, 268 Coleman Street
(n) J. Wood Inc., 361 West Street

(o) T.J. & Sons Auto Sales, 537 W Broadway

Page 2 of 4



11203

PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC.

10870 — Applications for Motor Vehicle Dealers Licenses, Class III, Osagi
Enterprise, LLC., Used Auto Parts Sales, 43 Tobey Street. (Safety
Committee)

10872 — A Measure Confirming the Council Presidents Appointment of Jennifer
Zlotnik Pelavin, Esq., to the position of Special Act Charter Drafting
Committee Member, for term expiring upon submission to City Council.
(Appointments Committee)

10873 — A Measure Confirming the Council Presidents Appointment of Alan L.
Agnelli, to the position of Special Act Charter Drafting Committee Member,
for term expiring upon submission to City Council. (dppointments
Committee)

10874 — Notification from City Clerk of Ward 3 Councillor Vacancy.

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

FINANCE COMMITTEE

10855 — An Order Appropriating $10,000.00 Free Cash to City Clerk’s Temporary
Staffing Account. (In the City Council and Referred to Finance Committee
12/5/2022)

10860 — An Order Authorizing $107.96 Payment of Prior Year for Airport Department
Operating Expenditure. (In the City Council and Referred to Finance
Committee 12/5/2022)

10863 — An Order Transferring $36,500.00 from Veterans Department, Veterans
Benefit Operating Expenditures to Clerk/Assistant Salaries and Wages
Expenditures. (In the City Council and Referred to Finance Committee
12/5/2022)

10856 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 171,
Section 68, Entitled “Personnel Compensation Schedule,” — Related to
FY2023 Supplemental Budget. (In the City Council and Referred to Finance
Committee 12/5/2022)

10864 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 171,
Entitled “Personnel Compensation Schedule,” — Assistant Director of
Veterans Services. (In the City Council and Referred to Finance Committee
12/5/2022)

Page 3 of 4



11203

APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE

10858 — A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Anthony Whitman, to
the Position of Local Inspector, for term expiring November 25, 2025. (In the
City Council and Referred to the Appointments Committee 12/5/2022)

SAFETY COMMITTEE

10857 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 428,
Entitled “Hawkers and Peddlers.” (In the City Council and Referred to Safety
Committee 12/5/2022)

10861 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 600,
Entitled “Vehicles and Traffic,” Section 42, Entitled “One Way Street.” (In
the City Council and Referred to Safety Committee 12/5/2022)

XI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION
XII. NEW BUSINESS
XIII. CLOSING PRAYER

XIV. ADJOURNMENT

Items listed on the Council Calendar are these reasonably anticipated by the Council President to be discussed at the meeting. Not all items listed
may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion n to the extent permitted by law.

Page 4 of 4



11198

CITY of GARDNER
Office of the City Clerk
95 Pleasant Street, Room 121
Gardner, MA 01440
*Tel. 978-630-4058 *Fax: 978-630-2589

TITI SIRIPHAN, City Clerk
Faith A. Glover, Asst. City Clerk
Elizabeth Doiron, Asst. City Clerk

February 27, 2024

Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, President
And Members of the City Council
City Hall, 95 Pleasant Street

Gardner, MA 01440

Re: Notice of Councillor at Large Vacancy
Dear President Kazinskas and Members of the City Council:

I am writing to inform you that a vacancy shall exist in the position of Councillor at Large. The
impending vacancy is due to the passing of Councillor Ronald F. Cormier.

Consequently, the provisions of Section 32 of the Charter of the City of Gardner state, “if a
vacancy occurs in the position of councilor at large, the city council shall appoint the person
who received the seventh highest vote total for the position of councilor at large during the most
recent municipal election to fill the vacancy for the unexpired term, if the person is willing to
serve, then to the eighth and so on until a person is appointed.”

The candidate receiving the eighth highest vote total in the November 7, 2023 City Election was
Brad E. Heglin, 164 Sherman Street. I have spoken to Mr. Heglin and he has notified me that he

will accept the appointment.

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

Sincerely,

Tte hipham,

Titi Siriphan
City Clerk



11198

Brad Heglin

164 Sherman Street

Gardner, MA 01440
February 14, 2024

Titi Siriphan

City Clerk

95 Pleasant Street, Room 121
Gardner, MA 01440

Dear Clerk Siriphan,

I have received your correspondence regarding the vacancy on the city council, specifically for
councillor-at-large. I write to inform you that [ humbly, though with heavy heart over former
Councillor Ron Cormier’s passing, accept this position.

Please contact me with any questions or additional information.

Sincerely,

Brad Heglin



11198
CITY OF GARDNER, MASSACHUSETTS
NOVEMBER 7, 2023 CITY ELECTION
Official Results

The following is a result of the votes cast in the various precincts in the City of Gardner at the City Election held on November 7, 2023,
as returned by the Precinct Clerks and tabulated by the City Clerk:

MAYOR 1A 1B 2A 2B 3A 3B 4A 4B 5A 5B TOTAL

BALLOTS CAST 536 228 405 450 334 427 320 253 301 481 3,735
KIMBERLY ANN BLAKE 137 61 126 144 122 130 108 92 92 177 1,189
MICHAEL JOSEPH NICHOLSON 381 165 271 291 206 289 204 158 202 292 2,459
Josh Cormier (Write-in) 2 - - - - - - - - - 2
Martin Gray (Write-in) - 4 - - - - - - - 4
Neil Jansen (Write-in) - - - 1 - - - - - - 1
Dwayne Bouchard (Write-in) - - - 1 - - - - - - 1
Scott Graves (Write-in) - - - 1 - - - - - - 1
Mark Hawke (Write-in) - - - - - - - - 1 - 1
April Agnelli (Write-in) - - - - - - - - - 1 1
Jonathan Teken (Write-in) - - - - - - - - - 1 1
Anthony Agnelli (Write-in) - - - - - - - - - 1 1
Gerald St. Hilaire (Write-in) - - - - - - - - - 1 1
BLANKS 16 2 4 12 6 8 8 3 6 8 73
COUNCILLOR AT LARGE 1A 1B 2A 2B 3A 3B 4A 4B 5A 5B TOTAL

BALLOTS CAST 536 228 405 450 334 427 320 253 301 481 3,735
CAROLYN A. KAMUDA 192 92 177 236 150 196 156 132 138 227 1,696
GEORGE C. TYROS 302 102 189 201 158 238 144 110 148 226 1,818
RONALD F. CORMIER 288 97 167 204 150 223 149 108 135 221 1,742
ELIZABETH J. KAZINSKAS 351 120 246 246 184 220 192 125 162 248 2,094
BRAD E. HEGLIN 251 75 155 180 120 164 130 99 131 192 1,497
JUDY A. MACK 291 103 188 212 156 210 156 119 141 231 1,807
JAMES M. HUNT 153 72 128 149 112 130 102 76 114 161 1,197
CALVIN D. BROOKS 291 92 187 202 159 164 145 93 117 233 1,683
CRAIG R. CORMIER 273 104 168 194 157 221 157 110 137 201 1,722
Brian Andrew (Write-in) - - 1 - - - - - - - 1
Glenn Rediker (Write-in) - - - - - 1 - - - - 1
Katherine Margoles (Write-in) - - - - - - 1 - - - 1
Bruce Chester (Write-in) - - - - - - - - 1 - 1
Scott J. Graves (Write-in) - - - - - - - - - 1 1
BLANKS 824 511 824 876 658 795 588 546 582 945 7,149

November 7, 2023 City Election Official Results - CERTIFIED Page 1 of 3



11198

CITY OF GARDNER, MASSACHUSETTS
NOVEMBER 7, 2023 CITY ELECTION
Official Results

The following is a result of the votes cast in the various precincts in the City of Gardner at the City Election held on November 7, 2023,
as returned by the Precinct Clerks and tabulated by the City Clerk:

WARD ONE COUNCILLOR
BALLOTS CAST

DAVID R. THIBAULT-MUNOZ
JAMES F. WALLGREN

Peter Sargent (Write-in)
BLANKS

WARD TWO COUNCILLOR
BALLOTS CAST

DANA M. HEATH

John M. Curran (Write-in)
Guy McDonald (Write-in)
Val Cormier (Write-in)

Kylee Caruso (Write-in)

Ed Perry (Write-in)

Steve Rockwood (Write-in)
BLANKS

WARD THREE COUNCILLOR

BALLOTS CAST

JEFFREY MICHAEL PALMIERI
PAUL GERARD TASSONE
Scott Rak (Write-in)

Pryore Felse (Write-in)
BLANKS

WARD FOUR COUNCILLOR
BALLOTS CAST

KAREN G. HARDERN
Mark Monahan (Write-in)
Mark Metzger (Write-in)
Mark White (Write-in)
Tim Horrigan (Write-in)
Mike Horrigan (Write-in)
Matthew P. Jee (Write-in)
Tony Hawk (Write-in)
BLANKS

November 7, 2023 City Election Official Results - CERTIFIED Page 2 of 3



CITY OF GARDNER, MASSACHUSETTS
NOVEMBER 7, 2023 CITY ELECTION
Official Results

11198

The following is a result of the votes cast in the various precincts in the City of Gardner at the City Election held on November 7, 2023,

as returned by the Precinct Clerks and tabulated by the City Clerk:

WARD FIVE COUNCILLOR

5A 5B TOTAL
BALLOTS CAST 301 481 782
ALEKSANDER H. DERNALOWICZ 227 350 577
Daniel Forte (Write-in) - 1 1
BLANKS 74 130 204
SCHOOL COMMITTEE 1A 1B 2A 2B 3A 3B 4A 4B 5A 5B TOTAL
BALLOTS CAST 536 228 405 450 334 427 320 253 301 481 3,735
JOHN M. LaFRENIERE 215 104 167 193 141 211 147 111 146 228 1,663
STEPHEN P. SANDOVAL 124 61 100 112 87 92 98 66 78 115 933
ROBERT J. SWARTZ 210 83 144 172 145 171 138 82 80 177 1,402
MARGARET BISSONNETTE 175 62 141 183 127 144 114 101 110 173 1,330
BRANDON RICHARD HUGHEY 188 64 122 152 100 130 93 72 95 139 1,155
RACHEL ANN CORMIER 357 129 193 234 162 243 177 129 165 236 2,025
Jason Carl (Write-in) 1 - - - - - - - - - 1
Ayesha Coaxum (Write-in) - - 2 - - - 1 - 1 - 4
Mark Monahan (Write-in) - - - - - - 1 - - - 1
Joseph R. Lyman Il (Write-in) - - - - - - - 1 - - 1
Bruce Chester (Write-in) - - - - - - - - 1 - 1
BLANKS 338 181 346 304 240 290 191 197 227 375 2,689
QUESTION 1 1A 1B 2A 2B 3A 3B 4A 4B 5A 5B TOTAL
BALLOTS CAST 536 228 405 450 334 427 320 253 301 481 3,735
YES 322 135 212 221 165 226 154 110 146 237 1,928
NO 138 72 143 179 130 152 119 98 114 175 1,320
BLANKS 76 21 50 50 39 49 47 45 41 69 487
INO. OF VOTERS CASTING BALLOTS 536 228 405 450 334 427 320 253 301 481 3,735
INO. OF REGISTERED VOTERS 1,519 887 1,513 1,548 1,513 1,501 1,371 1,345 1,313 1,562 14,072
IPERCEI\I-I-AGE OF REGISTERED VOTERS 35.29% 25.70% 26.77% 29.07% 22.08% 28.45% 23.34% 18.81% 22.92% 30.79% 26.54%
CASTING BALLOTS

A True Copy, Attest:

(jzz’%/W Titi Siriphan, City Clerk

November 7, 2023 City Election Official Results - CERTIFIED Page 3 of 3



11199

nationalgrid

January 26, 2024

City of Gardner

To Whom It May Concern:

Enclosed please find a petition of NATIONAL GRID and VERIZON, covering joint NATIONAL GRID-
VERIZON pole location(s)

If you have any questions regarding this permit please contact:
Please notify National Grid’s Vincent LoGuidice of the hearing date / time.
If this petition meets with your approval, please return an executed copy to each of the above named

Companies.

National Grid Contact: Vincent LoGuidice; 1101 Turnpike Street; North Andover, MA 01845. Phone
978-725-1392.

Very truly yours,

Patrick Shea
Supervisor, Distribution Design

Enclosures



11199

P

D e

Questions contact -~ Will Fontaine 508-414-7308 7
PETITION FOR JOINT OR IDENTICAL POLE LOCATIONS
North Andover, Massachusetts

To the City Council
Of Gardner, Massachusetts

Massachusctts Electric Company d/b/a National Grid and Verizon New England, Inc requests
permission to locate poles, wires, and fixtures, including the necessary sustaining and protecting
fixtures, along and across the following public way:

Allen St - National Grid to install 1 JO Pole on Allen St beginning at a point approximately 430
feet west of the centerline of the intersection of Allen St and Winslow St. Install 1 JO Pole # 7 for
new houses.

Location approximately as shown on plan attached.

Wherefore it prays that after due notice and hearing as provided by law, it be granted a
location for and permission to erect and maintain poles and wires, together with such sustaining
and protecting fixtures as it may find necessary, said poles to be erected substantially in
accordance with the plan filed herewith marked — Allen St - Gardner - Massachusetts.

No. 30922033 January 26, 2024

Also for permission to lay and maintain underground laterals, cables, and wires in the
above or intersecting public ways for the purpose of making connections with such poles and
buildings as each of said petitioners may desire for distributing purposes.

Your petitioner agrees to reserve space for one cross-arm at a suitable point on each of said
poles for the fire, police, telephone, and telegraph signal wires belonging to the municipality and
used by it exclusively for municipal purposes.

Massachusetts Electric Company d/b/a
NATIONAL GRID 75t Shea

BY
Engineering Department

VERIZON NEW ENGLAND, INC.
BY
Manager / Right of Way




11199

ORDER FOR JOINT OR IDENTICAL POLE LOCATIONS
To the City Council - Gardner, Massachusetts

Notice having been given and public hearing held, as provided by law,
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED: that Massachusetts Electric Company d/b/a National Grid and
VERIZON NEW ENGLAND INC. (formerly known as NEW ENGLAND TELEPHONE AND
TELEGRAPH COMPANY) be and they are hereby granted joint or identical locations for and
permission to erect and maintain poles and wires to be placed thereon, together with such
sustaining and protecting fixtures as said Companies may deem necessary, in the public way or
ways hereinafter referred to, as requested in petition of said Companies dated the 26th day of
January, 2024.
All construction under this order shall be in accordance with the following conditions:
Poles shall be of sound timber, and reasonable straight, and shall be set substantially at the
points indicated upon the plan marked ~ Allen St - Gardner - Massachusetts.
No. 30922033 Dated January 26, 2024. Filed with this order.
There may be attached to said poles by Massachusetts Electric Company d/b/a National Grid and
Verizon New England Inc. such wires, cables, and fixtures as needed in their business and all of
said wires and cables shall be placed at a height of not less than twenty (20) feet from the ground.

The following are the public ways or part of ways along which the poles above referred to may be
erected, and the number of poles which may be erected thereon under this order:

Allen St - National Grid to install 1 JO Pole on Allen St beginning at a point approximately 430
feet west of the centerline of the intersection of Allen St and Winslow St. Install 1 JO Pole # 7 for
new houses.

Also for permission to lay and maintain underground laterals, cables, and wires in the above or
intersecting public ways for the purpose of making connections with such poles and buildings as
each of said petitioners may desire for distributing purposes.

I hereby certify that the foregoing order was adopted at a meeting of the

of the City/Town of , Massachusetts held on the day of 20
City/Town Clerk.
Massachusetts 20

Received and entered in the records of location orders of the City/Town of
Book Page

Attest:
City/Town Clerk



11199

I hereby certify that on 20 ,at o’clock, M
at a public hearing was held on the petition of
Massachusetts Electric Company d/b/a National Grid and VERIZON NEW ENGLAND, INC.

for permission to erect the poles, wires, and fixtures described in the order herewith recorded, and
that we mailed at least seven days before said hearing a written notice of the time and place of said
hearing to each of the owners of real estate (as determined by the last preceding assessment for
taxation) along the ways or parts of ways upon which the Company is permitted to erect

poles, wires, and fixtures under said order. And that thereupon said order was duly adopted.

City/Town Clerk.

---------------------------------------------------------

---------------------------------------------------------

Board or Council of Town or City, Massachusetts

CERTIFICATE
[ hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of the location order and certificate of
hearing with notice adopted by the of the City of
Massachusetts, on the day of 20 , and recorded with the
records of location orders of the said City, Book , Page . This certified copy
is made under the provisions of Chapter 166 of General Laws and any additions thereto or
amendments thereof.

Attest:
City/Town Clerk



11199

\ EXHIBIT 'A' NOT TO SCALE
THE EXACT LOCATION OF
SAID FACILITIES TO BE
Norman st ESTABLISHED BY AND UPON
THE INSTALLATION AND
76 RECTION OF THE FACILITIES
YHEREOF.

61 67

71
43
P6 O o
“-—‘-_’_‘-"-tu
p7 T
— Allen St
hM_,M
——
93 53

— Petition Sketch Date- 122724
@ Existng JOPOLE -~ Proposed OH Wire Pesigner. Wil Fontaine
G Proposed JO P0|e Installing 1 new JO pole to sarve 2 new houses Gam{'m = Tﬂou ld

,L Proposed Anchor/Guy nationa g r




11201

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Office of the Attorney General
One Ashburton Place
Boston, Massachusetts 02108

OPEN MEETING LAW COMPLAINT FORM

Instructions for completing the Open Meeting Law Complaint Form

The Attorney General's Division of Open Government interprets and enforces the Open Meeting Law, Chapter 30A of
the Massachusetts General Laws, Sections 18-25. Below is the procedure for filing and responding to an Open
Meeting Law complaint.

Instructions for filing a complaint:

o Fill out the attached two-page form compietely and sign it. File the complaint with the public body within 30
days of the alleged violation. If the violation was not reasonably discoverable at the time it occurred, you
must file the complaint within 30 days of the date the violation was reasonably discoverable. A violation that
occurs during an open session of a meeting is reasonably discoverable on the date of the meeting.

o Tofile the complaint:

o Foralocal or municipal public body, you must submit a copy of the complaint to the chair of the
public body AND to the municipal clerk.

o Forall other public bodies, you must submit a copy of the complaint to the chair of the public body.

o Complaints may be filed by mail, email, or by hand. Please retain a copy for your records.

o Ifthe public body does not respond within 14 business days and does not request an extension to respond,
contact the Division for further assistance.

instructions for a public body that receives a complaint:

o The chair must disseminate the complaint to the members of the public body.

o The public body must meet to review the complaint within 14 business days (usually 20-22 calendar days).

o After review, but within 14 business days, the public body must respond to the complaint in writing and must
send the complainant a response and a description of any action the public body has taken to address it. At
the same time, the body must send the Attorney General a copy of the response. The public body may
delegate this responsibility to its counsel or a staff member, but only after it has met to review the complaint.

o If a public body requires more time to review the complaint and respond, it may request an extension of time
for good cause by contacting the Division of Open Government.

Once the public body has responded to the complaint:

o If you are not satisfied with that the public body's response to your complaint, you may file a copy of the
complaint with the Division by mail, e-mail, or by hand, but only once you have waited for 30 days after filing
the complaint with the public body.

o When you file your complaint with the Division, please include the complaint form and all documentation
relevant to the alleged violation. You may wish to attach a cover letter explaining why the public body's
response does not adequately address your complaint.

o The Division will not review complaints filed with us more than 90 days after the violation, unless we granted
an extension to the public body or you can demonstrate good cause for the delay.

If you have questions concerning the Open Meeting Law complaint process, we encourage you to contact the
Division of Open Government by phone at (617) 963-2540 or by e-mail at openmeeting@state.ma.us.



11201

OPEN MEETING LAW COMPLAINT FORM
Office of the Attorney General
One Ashburton Place
Boston, MA 02108

Please note that all fields are required unless otherwise noted.

Your Contact Information:

First Name: Paul Last Name: DeMeo

Address: g Willis Road

City: Gardner State: MA Zip Code: 01440

Phone Number: 9786321300 Ext.

Email:  Ryanrealty@comcast.net

Organization or Media Affiliation (if any):

Are you filing the complaint in your capacity as an individual, representative of an organization, or media?

(For statistical purposes only)

] Individual [ ] Organization [ ] Media

Public Body that is the subject of this complaint:

City/Town [ ] County [ ] Regional/District [ ]state

Narne of Public Body (including city/ Gardner City Council
town, county or region, if applicable):

Specific person(s), if any, you allege Elizabeth Kazinskas, George Tyros, Dana Heath, entire City Council
committed the violation:

Date of alleged violation:  2-5-2024

Page 1




11201
Description of alleged violation:

Describe the alleged violation that this complaint is about. If you believe the alleged violation was intentional, please say so and include
the reasons supporting your belief.

Note: This text field has a maximum of 3000 characters.

On February 5th, 2024 the Gardner City Councii took up item, " #11188 ~ An Open Meeting Law Complaint Filed by Paul DeMeo Regarding Executive Session Minutes of the City Counail.”
Council president Elizabeth (Lizzy) Kazinskas read the item number 11188.

City Councilor George Tyros made the moticn, “l move to authorize the council president to respond on the behalf of the council that the executive session minutes have already been approved and are available.”
Motion seconded by Councilor Dana Heath, https://www.youtube,com/watch?v=WSPhacL72jY&t=1768s

City Council president Elizabeth then read the motion incorrectly stating, "that the exective session minutes have been approved and are ready to be released.” There upon there was no discussion on the Open
Meeting Law complaint and all Ten of the Councilors present, Voted in favor of the motion.

It is obvious president Kazinskas deliberated with other city council members (Tyros and Heath) prior to the meeting to come up with a plan to dismiss the Open Meeting Law complaint with NO deliberatiion with
the Full City Council taking place.

Attorney General's Office guideline: “If a member of a public body sends an email to a quorum of a public body expressing
her opinion on a matter that could come before that body, this communication violates the law
even If none of the reciplents responds.”

What action do you want the public body to take in response to your complaint?

Note: This text field has a maximum of 500 characters.

Self report the Open Meeting Law violation to the Attorney General's Office.

Release the Executive Session Minutes immediately and provide me a copy, proving they have been
released in entirety.

Comply fully with Massachusetts Open Meeting Law after many previous violations.

Take a course given by the Attorney General's Office on the Open Meeting Law.

Review, sign, and submit your complaint
I. Disclosure of Your Complaint.

Public Record. Under most circumstances, your complaint, and any documents submitted with your complaint, is considered a public record
and will be available to any member of the public upon request.

Publication to Website. As part of the Open Data Initiative, the AGO will publish to its website certain information regarding your complaint,
including your name and the name of the public body. The AGO will not publish your contact information.

Il. Consulting With a Private Attorney.
The AGO cannot give you legal advice and is not able to be your private attorney, but represents the public interest. If you have any questions
concerning your individual legal rights or responsibilities you should contact a private attorney.

Ill. Submit Your Complaint to the Public Body.
The complaint must be filed first with the public body. If you have any questions, please contact the Division of Open Government by calling
(617) 963-2540 or by email to openmeeting@state.ma.us.

By signing below, | acknowledg
and correct to the best of my"k

thatl read apd understood the provisions above and certify that the information | have provided is true
wledge / v -
M 2//9 /56
Z i z S Date: 6 (;/
(A : i

Signed: G /
For Use By Public Bady For Use By AGO
Date Received by Public Body: Date Received by AGO:



11086

AN ORDINACNE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER CHAPTER 600, ENTITLED
“VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC”, SECTION 24, ENTITLED “PARKING PROHIBITED ON CERTAIN STREETS”

BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1: Section 24, of Chapter 600 of the Code of the City of Garnder, entitled “Parking
Prohibited on Certain Streets” by amended by adding the following

Name of Street Side Location
Comee St West Entire Length
Comee St East From Pearl Street southerly for a distance

of 30 feet



CITY OF GARDNER POLICE DEPARTMENT

200 Main Street « Gardner, Massachusetts 01440

Emergency-Dial 911
Main line: (978) 632-5600
Fax Line: (978) 630-4027

TRAFFIC COMMISSION - MEETING MINUTES
Date: Thursday August 10,2023 Time: 10am
Location: Community Classroom, GPD

Provided by Dept. Chief of Police Nick Maroni

1. Members in attendance: Call to Order: 10:03 am by D.C. Nicholas Maroni
Dane Arnold — Director of DPW
Rob Oliva — City Engineer
Josh Cormier — Director of Civil Enforcement
Craig Cormier — Councilor at large

Member(s) not in attendance- Trevor Beauregard

2. Waive reading / acceptance of meeting minutes from April 24,2023
a. Motion by Dane, 2" by Rob, All in favor — Unanimous.
3. Rob- updated on flashing school zone signs on Catherine St
a. Future updates to city ordinance to define current school zones.

4. Gardner ale house renting a parking spot on parker St to designate as Pick up parking.
a. Josh- if allowed would this cause other businesses to ask too.
b. Dane-not in favor, large parking area behind business and across the street
c. Nick- limited parking already in the downtown area
d. Dane motion to not allow pick up parking for all of downtown, Rob 2", unanimous vote.

5. Pedestrian traffic concerns with new Tap House going in at Bullnose Park.
a. Rob- ask Tap house to help enhance crosswalks in area, flashing lights, push button to activate when
pedestrians cross. Recommends city work with building owner to install flashing lights

6. New School Traffic and speeding on Catherine St.
a. Dane worked with school on new traffic pattern for drop off and pick up that should cut down on traffic.
Tabled until start of school to see how it works.

7. Eliminate Parking Spot on Central St near the cross walk at Lake St on the Southwest travel side of Central St so
pedestrians can be seen by motor vehicles.
a. Dane motioned, Josh 2" All in Favor-Unanimous
b. Forwarded to Public Safety Committee

8. Remove handicap spot in front of 144 Central St and recommend city council to approve new Handicap spots on
Central St at Monument Park.
a. Dane motioned, Josh 2, all in favor, unanimous.
b. Forwarded to Public Safety Committee
c. Let property owner know about removing Handicap spot in front of 144 Central.



11086

9. Eliminate parking spot in front of crosswalk on west bound side of East Broadway at Prospect St so motor vehicles
can see pedestrians in the cross walk.
a. Dane motioned, Rob 2" all in favor, unanimous.
b. Forwarded to Public Safety Committee.

10. New Business
a. Rob suggested making whole length of westside of Comee St no parking and making no parking 30 ft
from stop sign on east side heading from Pearl St
i. Dane motioned, Josh 2n all in favor, unanimous will be forwarded to public safety committee.
b. Speeding on EIm St & Lawrence St, request more enforcement with school starting.
c. Craig asked about speeding issues on Chesley St
i. Nick stated Officers did enforcement in that area and we have not received any further complaints.

Conclusion: At 10:56 am Dane made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Craig
All'in favor - Unanimous
Next Traffic Committee Meeting Schedule: TBD


tsiriphan
Highlight

tsiriphan
Highlight

tsiriphan
Highlight


11115

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER CHAPTER 600, ENTITLED
“VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC”, SECTION 24, ENTITLED “PARKING PROHIBITED ON CERTAIN STREETS”

BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1: Section 24, of Chapter 600 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Parking
Prohibited on Certain Streets” be amended by adding the following

Name of Street Side Location
Douglas Rd South From Coleman Street westerly for a distance
of 30 feet




CITY OF GARDNER POLICE DEPARTMENT
200 Main Street
Gardner, MA 01440
Phone (978) 632-5600
Fax (978) 630-9045

Eric P. McAvene Nicholas P. Maroni
Chief of Police Deputy Chief of Police

Date: 12/5/2023

To Councilor Cormier, Committee Chairman, and members of the Public Safety Committee,

The Traffic Committee met on November 28,2023 and discussed a few changes and
recommendations to increase the safety of the City’s roadways. The following are the changes
and recommendations the Traffic Committee voted on, unanimously (6 of 6) to send to the
Public Safety Committee for review.

1. City Ordinance change to 8600-24 (Parking prohibited on certain Streets) due to parking
spots being eliminated by new construction around Monument Park.
Name of Street Side Location
Park Street South From Cottage Street to Central St

2. Temporary 60 Day restricted parking trial on the North side of Edgell St to Westford St.
3. Recommended eliminating parking 30 ft southerly side of Douglas Rd.

The commission appreciates your attention to these matters and members can be made available

if further clarification is needed. Photos of the proposed areas have been attached.

Respectfully Submitted,
NA 9

Nicholas Maroni
Deputy Chief of Police/ Traffic Committee Commissioner

CC: Traffic Commission members, City Clerk









1 Veterans Monum
. - -

Gardner Stiglar'e i

i l‘::""'._.. -\
T .
& i . A
]




11124

January 8, 2024

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

1 appoint Alan Agnelli to the position of Member, Historical Commission, and I certify
that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the
duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the interests of the City.

2

Michael J. Nicholson

Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires: January 8. 2027
Worcester, ss.,

Then personally appeared the above named __Alan Agnelli and made oath that he/she
would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Member, Historical
Commission __ according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,
City Clerk
Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11126

REC EiVED January 17, 2024

S B

wiap 17 gy Cgmmonwealth of Massachusetts

- { .
Wl Coiitg 10 Cityof Garder

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

1 appoint Tammy Erdmann to the position of Member, Municipal Grounds Commission and I certify
that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the
duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the interests of the City.

v/%Ma or
7 Y

Michael J. Nicholson

Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires: _January 9, 2027
Worcester, ss.,
Then personally appeared the above named __Tammy Erdmann and made oath that

he/she would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _ Member, Municipal

Grounds Commission according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11127

January 9, 2024

i1 Commonwealth of Massachusetts

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

I appoint Thomas Zuppa to the position of Building Commissioner, and I certify
that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the
duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the interests of the City.

ALY teyor

7 IR
Michael J. Nicholson

Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires: January 9, 2027
Worcester, ss., -
Then personally appeared the above named __Thomas Zuppa and made oath that he/she

would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Building Commissioner

according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11129

January 4, 2024

Worceseer Gty o

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

1 appoint Dane Arnold to the position of Public Works Director and I certify
that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the
duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the interests of the City.

L
= 7
Michael J. Nicholson

Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires: January 4, 2027
Worcester, ss.,
Then personally appeared the above named __Dane Arnold and made oath that he/she

would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Public Works Director

according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11130

January 4, 2024

1:Cammenwealth of Massachusetts

City of Gardlner

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

1 appoint Michael F. Ellis to the position of Senior Citizen’s Director, and I certify

that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the
duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the interests of the City.

Michael J. Nicholson

Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk

Titi Siriphan
Expires: January 4, 2027

Worcester, ss.,

Then personally appeared the above named __Michael F. Elis and made oath that he/she would

Saithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Senior Citizen’s Director _according to

law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and

Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received



11131

January 4, 2024
| 1y o Commenweatth of Massachusetts
" CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

1 appoint Lynette R. Gabrila to the position of Veterans’ Agent/Veterans’ Burial Agent and I certify

that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the

duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the interests of theCity.%
A o A
v 7

7

Michael J. Nicholson
Confirmed by City Council:

City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires: January 4. 2025
Worcester, ss.,
Then personally appeared the above named __Lynette R, Gabrila and made oath that

he/she would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of Veterans’ Agent/ Burial

Agent according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11134

o January 4, 2024
Lommonwealth of Massachusetts
City of Gardner

s

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

1 appoint Carla J. Wojtukiewicz. to the position of Trustee, Williams-Rockwell Educational Gift Fund,
and I certify

that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the
duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the interests of the City

AP o

2

Michael J. Nicholson

Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires: January 4, 2027
Worcester, ss.,
Then personally appeared the above named __Carla J. Wojtukiewicz and made oath that

he/she would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Trustee, Williams-

Rockwell Educational Gift Fund _ according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11135

January 4, 2024

" City of Gardner

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

I appoint Robert Rice, Esq. to the position of Trustee, Williams-Rockwell Educational Gift Fund, and
certify

that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the

duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the intgrests of t%

; Mayor
Michael J. Nicholson
Confirmed by City Council
City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires: January 4, 2027
Worcester, ss., -
Then personally appeared the above named __Robert Rice, Esq. and made oath that

he/she would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Trustee, Williams-

Rockwell Educational Gift Fund _according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11139

January 4, 2024
Commeonwealth of Massachusetts
Worcester County City of Gardner
CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

I appoint Robert Bettez to the position of Member, Planning Board, and I certify
that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the

duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the interests of the City.
L7/

V4
Michaﬁ J. Nicholson

Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires: January 4, 2025
Worcester, ss.,
Then personally appeared the above named __Robert Bettez and made oath that he/she

would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Member, Planning Board

according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11140

January 4, 2024

Commonwealth of Massachusetts

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

I appoint Robert Swartg to the position of Member, Planning Board, and I certify
that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the
duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the intepests of the City.

Mayor
Michael J. Nicholson
Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires: January 4, 2026
Worcester, ss.,
Then personally appeared the above named __Robert Swartz and made oath that he/she

would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Member, Planning Board

according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11141

January 4, 2024

City of Gardner

st

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

I appoint Stephen Cormier to the position of Member, Planning Board, and I certify
that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the
duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the interests of the City.

LoV Ll iom

A
Michael J. Nicholson

Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires: January 4, 2027
Worcester, ss.,
Then personally appeared the above named __Stephen Cormier and made oath that

he/she would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Member, Planning Board

according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11142

January 4, 2024

Cemmonwealth of Massachusetts
City of Gardner

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

I appoint Charles LeBlanc to the position of Member, Board of Assessors, and I certify

that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the
duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the interests of the City.

A A7

7
Michael J. Nicholson

Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires:_January 4, 2027
Worcester, ss.,
Then personally appeared the above named __Charles LeBlanc and made oath that he/she

would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Member, Board of Assessors

according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

__ City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11143

RECEIVEL
January 12, 2024

AN Zedii%énmaﬁ4mmomau
o i City of Gandlen

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

I appoint Rick Germano to the position of Local Inspector, and I certify

that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the
duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the intgresgs of

e City.
\/%Wayor

£ #
Michael J. Nicholson

Confirmed by City Council:

City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires: January 4, 2027
Worcester, ss.,
Then personally appeared the above named __Rick Germano and made oath that he/she

would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Local Inspector _ according to

law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11144

RECEQ‘“‘ January 4, 2024

WML B g kgamimmweauﬁ of Massachusetts

C1Wlofoeitex Conatye City of Ganclner

™ r_n,':-,

BARDNED,

i 13

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

1 appoint James E. Imprescia to the position of Plumbing & Gas Inspector, and I certify
that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the
duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the interests of the City.

Sl i

.‘f I
Michael J. Nicholson

Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires: January 4, 2027
Worcester, ss., -
Then personally appeared the above named _James E. Imprescia and made oath that he/she

would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Plumbing and Gas Inspector

according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11145

January 4, 2024

Cammenwealth of Massachusetts
City of Gardner

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

I appoint Michael Fitzsimmons to the position of Member, License Commission, and I certify
that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the
duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the interests of the City.

/%Maor
s - __may

~
Michael J. Nicholson

Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires:_January 4, 2027
Worcester, ss.,
Then personally appeared the above named __Michael Fitzsimmons and made oath that

he/she would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Member, License

Commission _ according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11146

?EQEZ‘ﬁgg January 4, 2024

T fees

w1 o Commenwealth of Massa etts
CIAN. L Cpes * CHOE e‘ty"ﬁg""d"“

L(g’g’? 1? éré;..'\

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

1 appoint Kenneth Arsenault to the position of Member, License Commission, and I certify
that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the
duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the interests of the City.

/74

7 3
Michael J. Nicholson

Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires:_January 4. 2027
Worcester, ss.,
Then personally appeared the above named __Kenneth Arsenault and made oath that

he/she would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Member, License

Commission _according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11147

January 4, 2024

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

I appoint Nancy Binder to the position of Member, License Commission, and I certify
that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the
duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the interests of the City.

/ M_Mayor
F

Michael J. Nicholson

Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires:_January 4, 2027
Worcester, ss.,
Then personally appeared the above named __Nancy Binder and made oath that he/she

would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Member, License Commission

according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11148

January 8, 2024

Commonwealth of Massachusetts
City of Gardnen

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

I appoint Ann Twohig to the position of Member, Golf Commission, and I certify
that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the
duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the interests of the City.

WM Mayor

Mzchael J Nzcholson

Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires:January 8. 2027
Worcester, ss.,
Then personally appeared the above named __Ann Twohig and made oath that he/she

would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Member, Golf Commission

according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11149

i ity . City of Garcner
| CECERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

1 appoint Kathy O’Brien to the position of Member, Council on Aging, and I certify that in my opinion
he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the duties of said office,
and that I make the appointment solely in the interests of the City.

Mayor

Mzchael J. Nicholson
Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk

Titi Siriphan

Expires: January 8, 2027

Worcester, ss.,

Then personally appeared the above named Kathy O’Brien and made oath that he/she would

JSaithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Member, Council on Aging according

to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11150

January 8, 2024

| ’ City of Gardner

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

I appoint Timothy Horrigan to the position of Member, Redevelopment Authority, and I certify
that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the
duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the injerests of jhe City.

e __Mayor
7
Michael J. Nicholson
Confirmed by City Council
City Clerk

Titi Siriphan
Expires: January 8. 2027
Worcester, ss.,

Then personally appeared the above named __Timothy Horrigan and made oath that

he/she would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Member, Revelopment

Authority according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11151
Januany 8, 2024

Commenwealth of Massachusetts

]

£
N

T
Jeg g Yot
LA AT
52 B

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

1 appoint Theresa Hillman to the position of Member, Council on Aging, and I certify that in my
opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the duties of
said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the interests of the City.

/ % Mayor

7

Michael J. Nicholson

Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk

Titi Siriphan

Expires: January 8, 2027

Worcester, ss.,

Then personally appeared the above named Theresa Hillman and made oath that he/she would

Jaithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Member, Council on Aging according

to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

_City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11152
Januany 8, 2024

| . CERT IFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

I appoint Gloria Tarpey to the position of Member, Council on Aging, and I certify that in my opinion
he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the duties of said office,

and that I make the appointment solely in the interests of the City. )
/% Mayor
%// :

Michael J. Nicholson

Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk

Titi Siriphan

Expires: January 8. 2027

Worcester, ss.,

Then personally appeared the above named Gloria Tarpey and made oath that he/she would

faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Member, Council on Aging according

to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received



11153

January 8, 2024

Commonwealth of Massachusetts
City of Gardner

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

I appoint Susan Avallone, RN to the position of Member, Board of Health and I certify

that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the
duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the interests of the City.

o Ay A

o e
Michael J. Nicholson

Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires: January 8. 2027
Worcester, ss.,
Then personally appeared the above named __Susan Avallone and made oath that he/she

would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Member, Board of Health

according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11154

RECEvE 0 January 8, 2024

w11 o Commaonwealth of Massachusetts

Covtyy |02 City of Gardner
CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

I appoint Geoffrey Tobia, Esq. to the position of Member, Board of Health and I certify

that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the
duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the interests of the City.

M Mayor
i P
Michael J. Nicholson

Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires: January 8. 2027
Worcester, ss.,
Then personally appeared the above named __Geoffrey Tobia and made oath that he/she

would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Member, Board of Health

according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11155

January 8, 2024
CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

1 appoint Michele Parker, MD {to the position of Member, Board of Health and I certify

that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the

duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the interests of th%
/ Mayor
/ Iy

7
Michael J. Nicholson

Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires: January 8, 2027
Worcester, ss., -
Then personally appeared the above named __Michele Parker and made oath that he/she

would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Member, Board of Health

according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11156

January 8, 2024

Commenwealth of Massachusetts
City of Gardnex

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

1 appoint Marcelle S. Cormier to the position of Member, Board of Registrars, and I certify
that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the
duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the interests of the City.

/ % Mayor

7 7
Michael J. Nicholson

Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires: January 8. 2027
Worcester, ss.,
Then personally appeared the above named __Marcelle S. Cormier and made oath that

he/she would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Member, Board of

Registrars according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11157

January 9, 2024
y City of Gandlner

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

1 appoint Patricia Darby to the position of Member, Board of Registrars, and I certify
that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the

duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the interests of the City.

o £ ey

eper 7 o
Michael J. Nicholson

Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires: January 9, 2027
Worcester, ss., -
Then personally appeared the above named __Patricia Darby and made oath that he/she

would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Member, Board of Registrars

according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11158

PECE%’:‘E{;} January 11, 2024
11 o Cotnmanwealth of °
o “FICE 7 Gardner
W g@%% F City of

CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

I appoint Kevin McInerney to the position of Mayor’s Appointee, Contributory Retirement Board and
I certify

that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the
duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the interests of the City.

A viyor

/ Ay
Michael J. Nicholson

Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires: _January 11, 2027
Worcester, ss.,
Then personally appeared the above named __Kevin McInerney and made oath that

he/she would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Mayor’s Appointee

according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11181

REGEIVED January 22, 2024

o Commanwealth of Massachusetts

Woncester County City of Gandner
CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

1 appoint Paul Cormier to the position of Member, Golf Commission, and I certify

that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the

duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the interests of the City.

7 7
Michael J. Nicholson

Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires: January 22, 2027
Worcester, ss.,
Then personally appeared the above named __Paul Cormier and made oath that he/she

would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Member, Golf Commission

according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11191

February 1, 2024

Cammonwealth of Massachusetts
CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

I appoint Corinne Smith to the position of Member, Conservation Commission_and I certify
that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the
duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely in the integests of the City.

% Ma
7 yor

Michael J. Nicholson

Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires: _February 1, 2027
Worcester, ss.,
Then personally appeared the above named __Corinne Smith and made oath that he/she

would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Member, Conservation

Commission _according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




11192

February 9, 2024

oo Gammanweaﬁtﬁ of Massachusetts
CERTIFICATE OF APPOINTMENT

1 appoint Laura Cassady to the position of Member, Cultural Council, and I certify

that in my opinion he/she is a person specially fitted by education, training, or experience to perform the

duties of said office, and that I make the appointment solely zr%w City.
Aayor

Mzchael J. Nzcholson

Confirmed by City Council

City Clerk
Titi Siriphan
Expires:February 9., 2027
Worcester, ss.,
Then personally appeared the above named __Laura Cassady and made oath that he/she

would faithfully and impartially perform the duties of the office of _Member, Cultural Council

according to law and the best of his/her abilities.

Before me,

City Clerk

Chapter 303 Acts of 1975
and
Chapter 409 Acts of 1983

Received




-
CITY OF GARDNER

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
Manca Annex, 115 Pleasant Street, Room 201 Gardner, Massachusetts 01440
Phone: (978) 630-4014 ¢ Fax: (978) 632-1905 ¢ CDBG (978) 632-3800

February 23, 2024 =l =

- D

T
President Elizabeth J. Kazinskas p; D
c/o Titi Sirphan, City Clerk ad L}
City Hall >
95 Pleasant Street, Room 121 = i
Gardner, MA 01440 O W

B )

Re: Proposed Amendment to Zoning Change Classification for
Dear President Kazinskas:
Subject: Zoning Amendment — Sports Betting / Final Recommendation

Following the City Council/Planning Board Joint Public Hearing held on Tuesday, January 16,
2024, on the above referenced item, the Planning Board held a meeting on February 20, 2024,
and voted unanimously to recommend adoption of the subject zoning amendment by the City
Council. As part of this vote the Planning Board further recommends the City Council approve
this amendment consistent with the Building Commissioner’s suggestions in his letter to the City
Council and Planning Board dated January 14, 2024, and attached hereto.

Please feel free to contact Trevor M. Beauregard, Director of Community Development and
Planning if you have any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely, Z

Mark M. Schafron
Chairman

Cc: Mayor

Planning Board

City Council

Trevor M. Beauregard, Director
Thomas Zuppa, Building Commissioner




City of Gardner- -~~~
Department of Inspectional Services ~~
115 Pleasant Street, Roogp 401 . . .,
Gardner, MA 01440°-" 725 €9 0 50 5

Tel. (978) 630-4007 Fax: (978) 632-3313

January 14, 2024

Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President Mr. Mark Schafron, Chair and Planning
And City Councilors Board Members

Gardner City Hall, Rm. 121 Gardner City Hall, Manca Annex, Rm. 201
95 Pleasant St. 115 Pleasant St.

Gardner, MA 01440 Gardner, MA 01440

RE: Joint Public Hearing- Item # 10892: An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter
675, thereof entitled “Zoning”, to add “Sports Betting” to the Zoning Table of Uses.

Joint Public Hearing- Item #10893: An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675
thereof, entitled “Zoning”, to Amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled, “Marijuana Establishments” to increase the
quota allowed by the Code of the City of Gardner.

Dear Madam President and Councilors, Mr. Chairman and Board Members,

I am writing to provide my insight into and recommendations regarding the above-referenced ordinance
amendments. If approved, the current recommended proposal regarding petition #10892 is listed below.

The changing of the use of #54 from “permitted by right” (P) to “Special Permit Planning Board” (SPPB) in the
Commercial 1 (Com1) and Commercial 2 (Com2) districts and the rewording of #54 in the table of uses of the
city of Gardner Zoning Ordinance to read:

Indoor amusement, fitness, recreational place, place of assembly, or a sports betting facility, provided that the
building is so insulated and maintained as to confine noise to the premises and is located not less than 100 feet
from a residential district.

By making the change as it is written, the city of Gardner will impede historic levels of growth and negatively
impact a lengthy list of indoor amusement, fitness, or recreational types of businesses that, under the current
zoning ordinance, may open and operate “by right” in the Commercial 1 (Com1) and Commercial 2 (Com?2)
zoning districts.

Mission Statement
To promote the safe and compatible development of the community through fair and consistent enforcement of
building codes and zoning ordinances



11112

Therefore, the best and most effective way to move Gardner forward is to leave both #54, and #56 in the table
of uses unchanged. If the changes are so approved, my recommendation is as follows.

* Section 210(B) of Chapter 675, entitled “Word Usage and Definitions”, be amended by adding the
following definition to the list:

Sports Betting Facility — An entity licensed by the Massachusetts Gaming Commission under the
provisions of Chapter 173 of the Acts of 2022 of the General Laws to conduct sporting and wagering
events.

* Anew line item be added to the table of uses bearing the name “Sports Betting Facility”

As the chairman previously stated, the scope of opening a sports betting facility is significant and potentially
complex in nature. Due to its complexity, it is my recommendation that a sports betting facility be permitted by
“Special Permit from the Planning Board” (SPPB) in the Commercial 1 (Com1) and Commercial 2 (Com2)
zoning districts only.

Regarding petition #10893, I have no objections or concerns currently.

Respectfully submitted,

Thomas Zuppa, CBO

Building Commissioner

Zoning Enforcement Officer

City of Gardner Building Department
Phone: 978-630-4060

Email: tzuppa@gardner-ma.gov

115 Pleasant St. Rm. 101 Gardner, MA 01440

C: Mayor Michael J. Nicholson
Trevor M. Beauregard, Director



11112

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER, CHAPTER 675
THEREOF, ENTITLED “ZONING,” TO ADD VARIOUS PROVISIONS RELATING TO
SPORTS BETTING.

Section 1. Chapter 675-210(B) entitled “Word Usage and Definitions”, be amended by adding
the following definition to the list:

Sports Betting Facility — An entity licensed by the Massachusetts Gaming Commission
under the provisions of Chapter 173 of the Acts of 2022 of the General Laws to conduct
sporting and wagering events.

Section 2. Chapter 675- Attachment 1, Table of Uses, is hereby amended by adding a new line
item bearing the name “Sports Betting Facility” to be permitted by “Special Permit from the
Planning Board” (SPPB) in the Commercial 1 (Coml) and Commercial 2 (Com2) zoning
districts.

Section 3. This Ordinance shall become effective upon passage and publication as required by
law. Any claims of invalidity by reason of any defect in the procedure of adoption may only be
made ninety days after the posting or the second publication.



11112

CITY of GARDNER
Office of the City Clerk
95 Pleasant Street, Room 121
Gardner, MA 01440
*Tel. 978-630-4058 *Fax: 978-630-2589

CITY OF GARDNER
NOTICE OF JOINT PUBLIC HEARING

Pursuant to G.L. 40A, § 5, notice is hereby given that the City Council and Planning Board will
conduct a Joint Public Hearing on Tuesday, January 16, 2024 at 6:45 P.M. in the City
Council Chamber, Room 219, City Hall, 95 Pleasant Street, Gardner, to consider amending
Chapter 675, the Zoning Code of the City of Gardner. The proposed Amendment involves
changing items:

11112 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675
thereof, entitled “Zoning,” to Add “Sports Betting” to the Zoning Table of
Uses. (Submitted by Councillor Dana Heath; In the City Council,
Referred to Planning Board 12/4/2023, More Time 12/18/2023)

11113 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675
thereof, entitled “Zoning,” to Amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled,
“Marijuana Establishments” to Change the Method to Increase the Quota
Allowed by the Code of the City of Gardner. (Submitted by Councillor
Dana Heath, In the City Council, Referred to Planning Board 12/4/2023;
More Time 12/18/2023)

Information regarding this amendment is available for viewing in the City Clerk’s Office, the
Department of Community Development and Planning (DCDP), or on the City’s webpage —
www.gardner-ma.gov.

All persons interested in this matter and desire to offer testimony are invited to attend the
hearing.

Tts i jphiiam,

Titi Siriphan
City Clerk


http://www.gardner-ma.gov/

CITY OF GARDNER

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
Manca Annex, 115 Pleasant Street, Room 201 Gardner, Massachusetts 01440
Phone: (978) 630-4014 ¢ Fax: (978) 632-1905 ¢ CDBG (978) 632-3800

December 14, 2023

(]
President Elizabeth J. Kazinskas -~
c/o Titi Sirphan, City Clerk : B
City Hall o
95 Pleasant Street, Room 121 T
Gardner, MA 01440 ,w 4

iy

Subject: An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof, entitled
“Zoning,” to Add “Sports Betting” to the Zoning Table of Uses. (Submitted by Councilor Dana
Heath)

Dear President Kazinskas:

At the Planning Board meeting on Tuesday, December 12, 2023, the Planning Board voted
unanimously (5-0) to recommend the City Council approve and adopt the requested Zoning
Amendment as referenced above. In addition, the Planning Board recommends to amend the
Table of Uses by replacing Permitted by right (P) with Special Permit Planning Board (SPPB) in
each of the relevant columns. The Planning Board also voted to hold Joint Public Hearing with
the City Council.

Please do not hesitate to contact Trevor M. Beauregard, Director of Community Development
and Planning if you have any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely, r

Mark M. Schafron
Chairman

Cc: Mayor

Planning Board

City Council

Trevor M. Beauregard, Director
Thomas Zuppa, Building Commissioner




11112

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER, CHAPTER
675 THEREOF, ENTITLED “ZONING,” TO ADD “SPORTS BETTING” TO THE
ZONING TABLE OF USES.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS;

SECTION 1: That Section 210(B) of Chapter 675, entitled “Word Usage and Definitions,” be
amended by adding the following definition to its list:

Sports Betting Facility — An entity licensed by the Massachusetts Gaming
Commission under the provisions of Chapter 173 of the Acts of 2022 of the
General Laws to conduct sporting and wagering events.

SECTION 2: That Section 54 of Attachment | of Chapter 675 of the Code of the City of
Gardner, entitled “Zoning- Table of Uses,” be adding the term “Sports Betting Facility” to the
description of use as follows:

54. Indoor amusement, fitness, or recreational place or place of assembly,
provided that the building is so insulated and maintained as to confine noise to
the premises and is located not less than 100 feet from a residential district, or
a sports betting facility.

SECTION 2: That Section 56 of Attachment 1 of Chapter 675 of the Code of the City of
Gardner, entitled “Zoning- Table of Uses,” be adding the term “Sports Betting Facility” to the
description of use as follows:

56. Public or commercial outdoor amusement or recreation use, or a sporis
betting facility, but not including outdoor drive-in movie theater.

SECTION 3: This this ordinance take effect upon passage and publication as required by law.




CiTY OF GARDNER

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
March 30, 2023

Elizabeth Kazinskas, Council President
C/o Titi Sirphan, City Clerk

95 Pleasant Street, Room 121

Gardner, MA 01440

RE: Petition 10892 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675
thereof, entitled “Zoning,” to add “Sports Betting” to the Zoning Table of Uses.

Dear President Kazinskas:

At its meeting on March 22, 2023, the Planning Board voted unanimously, 5-0, to recommend
approving the proposed zoning amendment referenced above based on the information provided
to them by the petitioner.

If the proposed amendment is approved, the Planning Board recommends the rewording of
number 54 to read:

Indoor amusement, fitness, recreational place, place of assembly, or a sports betting
facility, provided that the building is so insulated and maintained as to confine noise to
the premises and is located not less than 100 feet from a residential district.

In addition, due to the potential significant scope and complexity of such a project if
implemented under this proposed zoning amendment, the Board recommends changing the use
table for number 54 from permitted by right (P) to Special Permit Planning Board (SPPB) for
Commercial 1 and Commercial 2 zones; and number 56 from permitted by right (P) to Special
Permit Planning Board (SPPB) for Commercial 2 and Industrial 1 zones.

The Planning Board looks forward to joining the City Council at the joint public hearing
scheduled on Monday, April 3, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. Please contact Trevor Beauregard if you have
any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely,

Mark M. Schafron, Planning Board Chairman

C: Mayor Michael J. Nicholson
Trevor M. Beauregard, Director
Richard Hanks, Interim Building Commissioner

City Hall Annex, 115 Pleasant Street, Room 201, Gardner, Massachusetts 01440
Telephone: (978) 630-4011 & Facsimile: (978) 632-1905 ¢ CDBG (978) 632-3800



City of Gardner - Executive Department RE Cisy Vi
Mayor Michael J. Nicholson 27n #R,?g
?”?v 8L e Pﬁ I:ZI
:’t’("‘\: fo« P :'% § w‘,w ,"? -
ST i
& e »'%

March 29, 2023

Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President
And City Councilors

Gardner City Hall, Rm 121

95 Pleasant St

Gardner, MA 01440

RE: Item #: 10892 - Planning Board Follow Up

Dear Madam President and Councilors,

At the Planning Board Meeting of March 22, 2023, the Planning Board recommended changing
the proposal from a permitted use (“P”) in the table to a use requiring a special permit (“SP”).

The Administration is more than acceptable to this proposal and would be amenable to it being

made.

Respectfully Submitted,

A I

Michael J. Nicholson
Mayor, City of Gardner



. . i £
City of Gardner - Executive Department RE CE} VE&
Mayor Michael J. Nicholson SB¥nan
‘.:‘.‘ meg Pa hzl
Y ELERE - e
March 15, 2023 ARG P
Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President Mr. Mark Schafron, Chair
And City Councilors And Planning Board Members
Gardner City Hall, Rm 121 Gardner City Hall, Manca Annex, Rm 201
95 Pleasant St 115 Pleasant St
Gardner, MA 01440 Gardner, MA 01440

RE: Joint Public Hearing Written Testimony — Item #10892: An Ordinance to Amend the Code
of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675, thereof entitled “Zoning,” to add “Sports Betting” to the
Zoning Table of Uses

Dear Madam President and Councilors,

I am writing in favor of the Administration’s proposed Zoning Amendment to add the term
“Sports Betting,” to line items 54 and 56 the Zoning Table of Uses.

In May of 2018, the United States Supreme Court stuck down the federal Professional and
Amateur Sports Protection Act (“PASPA™)!, also known as the Bradley Act, as unconstitutional
in their ruling of Murphy v. National Collegiate Athletic Association %. This federal statue had
effectively outlawed sports betting nationwide, except for a few excluded states. The Supreme
Court had ruled this act as unconstitutional, thus paving the way for several states to legalize
sports betting.

In August of 2023, former Governor Charlie Baker signed House Bill 5164 into law, legalizing
online, retail, and kiosk sports betting in the Commonwealth for residents ages 21 and older.
Retail sports betting went live on January 31, 2023, and online sports betting launched on March
10, 2023. Kiosk sports betting will go live later this year.

There are currently three (3) approved retail sites and ten (10) approved mobile betting
applications. When kiosk sports betting goes live later this year, they will be allowed across the
Commonwealth in locations that follow a specific procedure as outlined by the new law.

The Supreme Court of the United States has ruled on several occasions, that under the First
Amendment of the Constitution, a municipality cannot outright ban a particular industry or
business from opening within its borders, but can limit where these businesses are located.

Since the City cannot bar this type of business from opening in Gardner, and since this type of
activity is not currently listed in the City’s Zoning Table of Uses, it leaves the City open to

128 U.S.C. ch.178 §3701 et seq.
2 Murphy v. NCAA, 138 S.Ct. 1461 (2018).



11112

liability of not being able to control whether these types of facility are located in largely
residential neighborhoods or in areas in the City that may not be suited for this type of activity.

As such, it is the request of my Administration that this use by added to the City Code’s Zoning
table of uses under Line 54: Indoor Amusement, and Line 56: Outdoor Amusement, as these
items fit the closest to the realm of sports betting.

This amendment to the Zoning Table of Uses, does not waive the other requirements these
locations would have to go through should any sports betting facility open in Gardner in the
future.

Per the requirements of the sports betting enabling legislation, any sports betting facility would
have to enter into a Host Community Agreement (“HCA”) similar to cannabis facilities in the
Commonwealth. The Expanded Gaming Act requires that all applicants for sports betting
licenses must first submit to the Massachusetts Gaming commission:

“a signed agreement between the host community and the applicant setting forth
the conditions to have a gaming establishment located within the host community;
provided, however, that the agreement shall include a community impact fee for
the host community and all stipulations of responsibilities between the host
community and the applicant, including stipulations of known impacts from the
development and operation of a gaming establishment.”

Additionally, after the HCA is approved by the City Council and signed by the Mayor, the City
Council must then annually vote to allow the proposed establishment to operate a sports betting
facility within the City at its location.

Lastly, before any facility should open, they must also go through the regular requirements for
site plan approval and Development Review Committee vetting, both listed in Chapter §675-
1010 of the City Code.

As such, this action to add this type of use to the Zoning Ordinances still requires this type of
industry to be heavily regulated and vetted by the City by both branches of its government and
its boards and commissions.

This action is simply being put forward to protect the City in the long run and pre-plan should
one of these facilities come to Gardner rather than waiting and reacting if this should ever come

up.
Respectfully Submitted,

L7

Michael J. Nicholson
Mayor, City of Gardner




11112

CITY of GARDNER
Office of the City Clerk
95 Pleasant Street, Room 121
Gardner, MA 01440
*Tel. 978-630-4058 *Fax: 978-630-2589

CITY OF GARDNER
NOTICE OF JOINT PUBLIC HEARING, continued

Pursuant to G.L. 40A, § 5, notice is hereby given that the City Council and Planning Board will
conduct a Joint Public Hearing on Monday, April 3, 2023 at 6:30 P.M. in the City Council
Chamber, Room 219, City Hall, 95 Pleasant Street, Gardner, to consider amending Chapter 675,
the Zoning Code of the City of Gardner. The proposed Amendment involves changing items:

e 10891 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 Thereof,
entitled “Zoning,” to Change the Classification of Certain Parcels of Land Along Route
140.

e 10892 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof,
entitled “Zoning,” to add “Sports Betting” to the Zoning Table of Uses.

e 10893 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof,
entitled “Zoning,” to Amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled, “Marijuana Establishments”
to increase the quota allowed by the Code of the City of Gardner

Information regarding this amendment is available for viewing in the City Clerk’s Office, the
Department of Community Development and Planning (DCDP), or on the City’s webpage —
www.gardner-ma.gov.

All persons interested in this matter and desire to offer testimony are invited to attend the
hearing.

Tts Liphhim,

Titi Siriphan
City Clerk



10892 11112

CITY of GARDNER
Office of the City Clerk
95 Pleasant Street, Room 121
Gardner, MA 01440
*Tel. 978-630-4058 *Fax: 978-630-2589

CITY OF GARDNER
NOTICE OF JOINT PUBLIC HEARING

Pursuant to G.L. 40A, 8 5, notice is hereby given that the City Council and Planning Board will
conduct a Joint Public Hearing on Monday, March 20, 2023 at 6:30 P.M. in the City Council
Chamber, Room 219, City Hall, 95 Pleasant Street, Gardner, to consider amending Chapter 675,
the Zoning Code of the City of Gardner. The proposed Amendment involves changing items:

e 10891 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 Thereof,
entitled “Zoning,” to Change the Classification of Certain Parcels of Land Along Route
140.

e 10892 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof,
entitled “Zoning,” to add “Sports Betting” to the Zoning Table of Uses.

e 10893 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof,
entitled “Zoning,” to Amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled, “Marijuana Establishments”
to increase the quota allowed by the Code of the City of Gardner

Information regarding this amendment is available for viewing in the City Clerk’s Office, the
Department of Community Development and Planning (DCDP), or on the City’s webpage —

www.gardner-ma.gov.

All persons interested in this matter and desire to offer testimony are invited to attend the
hearing.

s i jphiam,

Titi Siriphan
City Clerk



11112 10892

City of Gardner - Executive Department
Mayor Michael J. Nicholson

February 3, 2023

Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President
And City Councilors

Gardner City Hall, Rm 121

95 Pleasant St

Gardner, MA 01440

RE: Zoning Ordinance Proposal- Sports Betting Facilities

Dear Madam President and Councilors,

As you are likely aware, on August 10, 2022, former Governor Charlie Baker signed Chapter
173 of the Acts of 2022 into law, legalizing sports betting in the Commonwealth.

This new addition to the General Laws, some parts of which have already taken effect while
others will within the next few months, allows for the opening of new facilities across the
Commonwealth where individuals can gamble and place wagers on sporting games.

Currently, these types of facilities are not governed by our zoning ordinance, as they were not
allowed prior to the passage of this act. The attached ordinance proposal is being presented to
help protect the City so that we can regulate where facilities like this can go and make sure that
in the event that a facility like this looks to open in Gardner, it locates in a location that fits this
use rather than in a largely residential area that could cause disruptions to a neighborhood.

[ believe it is in the best interest of the City to be proactive in this matter in order to make sure
the City has the tools in place before any situations may arise.

Respectfully Submitted,

A Y/

Michael J. Nicholson
Mayor, City of Gardner

CC:
City Council Public Welfare Committee
Planning Board



11112 10892

CITY OF GARDNER POLICE DEPARTMENT

200 Main Street
Gardner, Massachusetts 01440
Phone: {978) 632-5600
Fax: (978) 632-9045

Eric P. McAvene Nicholas P. Maroni
Chief of Paolice Deputy Chief of Police
February 3, 2023

The Honorable Michael J. Nicholson, Mayor
Gardner City Hall

95 Pieasant Street

Gardner, MA 01440

Re: Sports Betting Zoning Ordinance

Dear Mayor,

) have reviewed the proposed addition of the new Sports Betting Ordinance and do not see any issues from the police
department. Any proposed facility should have a buffer between any residential zone and this ordinance reflects the
new law.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Very truly yours,

Eric P. McAvene
Chief of Police



11112 10892
City of Gardner

Department of Inspectional Services
115 Pleasant Street, Room 101
Gardner, MA 01440
Tel. (978) 630-4007 Fax: (978) 632-3313

Feb. 7, 2023

RE: Text Amendment
Dear Mr. Mayor,

Please accept this letter as my full support for your proposed text amendment to our Zoning Ordinance regarding sports
betting. | believe when new laws are enacted at a state level that a municipalities Zoning must change to reflect the new
law, or be forced to react to a potential problem.

Do not hesitate to contact me should you need any further assistance.

Nolal.

Roland Jean

Building Commissioner/Zoning Enforcement Officer
City Hall Annex

115 Pleasant St. RM 101

Gardner, MA 01440

(978) 630 4007

rjean@gardner-ma.gov

Mission Statement
To promote the safe and compalible development of the community through fair and consistent enforcement of
building codes and zoning ordinances



11112 10892

6107 ung ‘9 ddng

- 1 WAWYENY G19

dN

dS

dN

dN

,uado ay) ur 2Fe101s Juipnow
‘pied §,1010B1U03 pue ssauisng Sundenuo)

6%

=

dN

A[1oE)
uouNQLISIp asnoyalem ‘Jeuluwss) pnodsues |

‘8¢

dN

72

dN

sJaguassed
Joj uone)s proijiel 1o [eujuwLa) 10 UoHR]S sng

LS

dN

dN

dN

dN

dN

137891 1AW W
-9AUp JOOPINO FUIPN{oUL JOU NG 3Sh UOIIEIIII
JO JUAWISNWIR J0OPING [BIDIFWUIOD 1O DI|qn ]

9¢

dN

dN

dN

ds

dN

UOI)ea1321 J0OPING SULIBIjO

SINIDE] [RI2ISUIWLO0D JOY10 Jo syull Buneys
‘seae Fuidwed ‘sqn)d pfs ‘SHNOI s ‘sjood
Sunuunms se 4ans asn Jo suSUIYSI[qEISO
{RU0NEID21 10/PUR SON]D |212IDWLOI JOOPINO

66

dN

dN

dN

dN

dN

PUISIp

[eUDPISAL B WOY 139] 0] ueyl ss3] jou
Pa1ed0o] st pue sastwaid J1y) 0] asiou sulyuod
0} se paulejulsll pue paje|nsui os s1 Juipjing
ayy jeyy papracad ‘Ajquuasse Jjo aseld 1o aseid
[eUONESI521 10 ‘SS3UJ1J “JUIALIISAWE JoOpU]

ds

dN

dN

dN

Auadoad uo paniuad
2801015 (NM WOOIMOYS 10 90110 3|BSI|OYM

dN

dN

Ajuo sajdwies 100} 0y pajul)
931015 YA ‘LIOOIMOYS 10 IDILJO I[ESIOYM

dN

dS

ds

dN

WSWUIBLIUS [23IVEYIIW IO
A1 Yuar s38e1aAaq 10 poo} FulAlds JuLINE)SIY

‘1S

dN

dN

dS

dS

dN

dN

dN

ERINES
UI-9ALIP 1O Y3noay)-aAup apiacid 0] satmonns
weuaundde Juipnjour ‘pooj-isey ‘Jueine)sasy

08

dN

dN

ds

dN

ueme|say

oF

CANI

1ANI

[ TW0oD

TINOD

£dD

oy

THAS

asn) Jjo uopdpiasaq

dd00 YINGUVYD

JMUQ&«M\PNv muvABQALHv



11112 10892

HOUSE ..............No.5164

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts

The committee of conference on the disagreeing votes of the two branches with reference
to the Senate amendment (striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in place thereof
the text contained in Senate document numbered 2862) of the House Bill regulating sports
wagering (House, No. 3993), reports recommending passage of the accompanying bill (House,

No. 5164). August 1, 2022.

Jerald A, Parisella

Michael J. Rodrigues

Aaron Michlewitz

Eric P. Lesser

David K. Muradian

Patrick M. O’Connor

| of 49



(o8]

12

13

11112 10892

FILED ON: 8/1/2022

HOUSE ............... No.5164

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts

I the One Hundred and Nincty-Second General Court
(2021-2022)

An Act regulating sports wagering,

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives in General Court assembled, and by the authority
of the same, as follows:

SECTION 1. Section 7 of chapter 4 of the General Laws is hereby amended by striking
out clause Tenth, as appearing in the 2020 Official Edition, and inserting in place thereof the

following clause:-

Tenth, “Tllegal gaming™, a banking or percentage game played with cards, dice, tiles,
dominoes, or an electronic, electrical or mechanical device or machine for money, property,
checks, credit or any representative of value, but excluding: (i) a lottery game conducted by the
state lottery commission under sections 24, 24A and 27 of chapter 10; (ii) a game conducted
under chapter 23K; (iii) sports wagering conducted under chapter 23N; (iv) pari-mutuel wagering
on horse races under chapters 128A and 128C and greyhound races under said chapter 128C; (v)
a game of bingo conducted under chapter 271; (vi) charitable gaming conducted under said

chapter 271; and (vii) a fantasy contest conducted under scction 11M'%.

SECTION 2. Scction 7 of chapter 4 of the General Laws is hereby amended by striking

out clause Tenth, as inserted by section 1, and inserting in place thereof the following clause:-

2 0f 49



14

15

16

17

18

19

20

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

30

31

32

33

34

35

11112 10892

Tenth, “Illcgal gaming™, a banking or percentage game played with cards, dice, tiles,
dominoes, or an electronic, electrical or mechanical device or machine for money, property,
checks, credit or any representative of value, but excluding: (i) a lottery game conducted by the
state lottery commission under sections 24, 24A and 27 of chapter 10; (ii) a game conducted
under chapter 23K, (iii) sports wagering conducted under chapter 23N; (iv) pari-mutuel wagering
on horse races under chapters 128A and 128C; (v) a game of bingo conducted under chapter 271;

and (vi) charitable gaming conducted under said chapter 271.

SECTION 3. Chapter 12 of the General Laws is hereby amended by inserting after

section | 1M the following section:-

Section 11MY:. Notwithstanding sections 24, 24A and 27 of chapter 10, chapter 271 or
any other general or special law to the contrary, a person or entity that offers fantasy contests for
a cash prize to members of the public may offer a fantasy contest to residents of the
commonwealth pursuant to and in accordance with regulations promulgated by the attorney
general; provided further, for the purposes of section 7 of chapter 4, a fantasy contest shall not be
considered illegal gaming. “Fantasy contest” includes any fantasy or simulated game or contest,
including, but not limited to, any fantasy or simulated game or contest based on professional
sports events in which: (i) the value of all prizes and awards offered to winning participants are
established and made known to the participants in advance of the contest; (ii) all winning
outcomes reflect the relative knowledge and skill of the participants and shall be determined
predominantly by accumulated statistical results of the performance of individuals, including
athletes in the case of sports cvents; and (iii) no winning outcome is based on the score, point

spread, or any performance or performances of any single actual team or combination of such

3 of 49



36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

11112 10892

tcams or solely on any single performance of an individual athlcte or player in any single actual

event.

SECTION 4. Section 4 of chapter 23K of the General Laws, as appearing in the 2020

Official Edition, is hereby amended by inserting the following subscction:-

(42) regulate and enforce chapter 23N relating to sports wagering.

SECTION 5. The General Laws are hereby amended by inserting after chapter 23M the

following chapter:-

CHAPTER 23N

AUTHORIZATION AND REGULATION OF SPORTS WAGERING

Section 1. This chapter shall be known and may be cited as the “Massachusetts Sports

Wagering Act”.

Section 2. Notwithstanding any general or special law to the contrary, the operation of
sports wagering and ancillary activities shall be lawful when conducted in accordance with this

chapter and the rules and regulations of the commission.

Section 3. As used in this chapter the following words shall, unless the context clearly

requires otherwise, have the following meanings:

“Adjusted gross fantasy wagering receipts”, the total gross receipts from fantasy contests
as defined in section 11M1/2 of chapter 12, less only the total of all cash prizes paid to

participants in the fantasy contests; provided, however, that the total of all cash prizes paid to

4 of 49



35

56

57
58
59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66
67
68
69

70

71

72

73

74

75

11112 10892

participants shall not include the cash cquivalent of any merchandise or thing of value awarded

as a prize.

“Adjusted gross sports wagering receipts”, the total gross receipts from sports wagering
less the sum of? (i) the total of all winnings paid to participants; and (ii) all cxcise taxes paid
pursuant to federal law; provided, however, that the total of all winnings paid to participants

shall not include the cash equivalent of any merchandise or thing of value awarded as a prize.

“Aftiliate”, a person who directly or indirectly controls, or is controlled by, or is under

common control with, a specified person.

“Applicant”, a person who has applicd for a license to engage in activity regulated under

this chapter.

“Breaks”, the odd cents over any multiple of 10 cents of winnings per $1 wagered.

“Category 1 license”, a license issued by the commission that permits the operation of
sports wagering in person at a gaming establishment, as defined in section 2 of chapter 23K, and
through not more than 2 individually-branded mobile applications or other digital platforms
approved by the commission; provided, that the mobile applications or other digital platforms

shall be qualified for and issued a category 3 license.

“Category 2 license”, a license issued by the commission that permits the operation of
sports wagering in-person on the premises where either: (1) live horse racing is conducted in
accordance with chapter 128A or (2) the licensee is authorized by law to conduct simulcast
wagering on horse or greyhound racing, and through not more than 1 individually branded

mobile application or other digital platform approved by the commission: provided, that the

50f49



76

77

78

79

80

81

83

84

85

86

87

88

89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

11112 10892

mobile applications or other digital platforms shall be qualificd for and issucd a category 3
license; provided further, that the commission may issue a category 2 license to: (1) a person or
entity licensed by the commission in accordance with said chapter 128A to conduct a live horse
racing meeting, (2) a running horse racing licensee that conducted simulcast wagering as of
December 31, 2020 as authorized by law, or (3) a greyhound meeting licensee that conducted
simulcast wagering as of December 31, 2020 as authorized by law; provided further, a category 2
licensee shall make a capital investment of not Iess than $7,500,000 within 3 years after

receiving a sports wagering license.

“Category 3 license”, a license issued by the commission that permits the operation of
sports wagering through a mobile application and other digital platforms approved by the

commission.

“Close associatc™, a person who holds a relevant financial interest in, or is entitled to
exercise power in, the business of an applicant or licensee and, by virtue of that interest or
power, is able to exercisc a significant influence over the management or operation of a gaming

establishment or business licensed under this chapter.

“Collegiate sport or athletic event”, a sport or athletic event offered or sponsored by, or
played in connection with, a public or private institution that offers educational services beyond

the secondary level.

“Collegiate tournament”, a series of collegiate sports or athletic events involving four or

more collegiate teams that make up a single unit of competition.

“Commission”, the Massachusetts gaming commission established in section 3 of chapter

6 of 49



98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

11112 10892

“Electronic sports”, a single or multiplayer video game played competitively for

spectators.

“Governmental authority”, any governmental unit of a national, state or local body

exercising governmental functions, except the United States government.

“License”, any license applied for or issued by the commission under this chapter,

including, but not limited to: (i) an operator license or (ii) an occupational license.

“National criminal history background check”, a criminal history background check
conducted using the criminal history record system maintained by the Federal Bureau of
Investigation and based on fingerprint identification or any other method of positive

identification.

“Occupational license”, a license required to be held by an employee of an operator when
the employee performs duties directly related to the operation of sports wagering in the

commonwealth in a supervisory role.

“Official league data”, statistics, results, outcomes and other data relating to a sporting
event that is obtained pursuant to an agreement with the relevant sports governing body, or with
an cntity expressly authorized by the relevant sports governing body to provide such data to
sports wagering operators, which authorizes the use of such data for determining the outcome of

tier 2 sports wagers on such sporting event.

“Operator™ or “‘sports wagering operator”, any entity permitted under this chapter to offer
sports wagering to persons in the commonwealth through a category 1 license, category 2 license

ot category 3 license.

7 of 49



119

120

121

122

123

124

125

126

128

129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136

137

138

139

11112 10892

“Operator license”, a category 1 license, category 2 licensc or category 3 license to

operate sports wagering.

“Person”, an individual, corporation, association, operation, firm, partnership, trust or
*

other form of business association,

“Personal biometric data”, any information about an athlete that is derived from that
athlete’s physical or physiological characteristics, including, but not limited to, deoxyribonucleic
acid, heart rate, blood pressure, perspiration rate, internal or external body temperature, hormone
levels, glucose levels, hydration levels, vitamin levels, bone density, muscle density or sleep

patterns.

“Players association”, a professional sports association recognized by a sports governing

body that represents professional athletes.

“Professional sport or athletic event”, an event at which 2 or more persons participate in a
sport or athletic event and receive compensation in excess of actual expenses for their

participation in such event.

“Promotional gaming credit”, a sports wagering credit or other item issued by an operator

to a patron to cnable the placement of a sports wager.

“Qualified gaming cntity”, an entity that: (i) holds a gaming license as defined in section
2 of chapter 23K; (ii) (a) is licensed by the commission in accordance with chapter 128A o
conduct a live horse racing meeting, (b) is a running horse racing licensee that conducted
simulcast wagering as of December 31, 2020 as authorized by law or (c) is a greyhound meeting

licensee that conducted simulcast wagering as of December 31, 2020 as authorized by law; or

8 of 49



140

141

142

143

144

145

146

147

148

149

150

151

152

153

154

155

156

157

158

159

160

161

11112 10892

(iii) offers an interactive sports wagering platform through a mobile application or other digital

platform.

“Sports event” or “sporting event”, a professional sport or athletic event, collegiate sport
or athletic cvent, a collegiate tournament, motor race event, electronic sports event or other event
authorized by the commission under this chapter; provided, however, that “sporting event” shall
not include: (i) high school and youth sports or athletic events; or (ii) a collegiate sport or athletic
event involving | or more collegiate teams from the commonwealth unless they are involved in a

collegiate tournamenit.

“Sports governing body”, an organization that is headquartered in the United States and
prescribes final rules and enforces codes of conduct with respect to a sporting event and
participants therein; provided, however, that, notwithstanding the foregoing, the commission
shall adopt regulations to determine the governing body for clectronic sports for the purposes of

this chapter.

“Sports wager”, a wager on a sporting event or a portion of a sporting event.

“Sports wagering”, the business of accepting wagers on sporting events or portions of
sporting events, other events, the individual performance statistics of athletes in a sporting event
or other events or a combination of any of the same by any system or method of wagering
approved by the commission including, but not limited to, mobile applications and other digital
platforms; provided, that sports wagering shall not include the acceptance of any wager: (i) with
an outcome dependent on the performance of an individual athlete in any collegiate sport or
athletic event, including, but not limited, to in-game or in-play wagers; (ii) on a high school or

youth sporting event; (iii) on injuries, penalties, player discipline or replay review; and provided

9 of 49



162

163

164

165

166

167

168

169

170

171

172

173

174

175

176

177

178

179

180

181

182

11112 10892

further, that sports wagering shall not include fantasy contests as defined in section 11MY of
chapter 12. Sports wagering shall include, but shail not be limited to, single-game bets, teaser
bets, parlays, over-under, moneyline, pools, exchange wagering, in-game wagering, in-play bets,

proposition bets and straight bets.

“Sports wagering account”, a financial record established by an operator for a patron in
which the patron may deposit by any method approved by the commission and withdraw funds
for sports wagering and other authorized purchases and to which the operator may credit
winnings or other amounts due to or authorized by that patron; provided, however, that such
account may be established and funded by the patron electronically through an approved mobile
application or digital platform; and provided further, that a deposit into a sports wagering

account shall not be made using a credit card.

“Tier 1 sports wager”, a sports wager that is determined solely by the final score or
P g p 2 y by

outcome of a sporting event and is placed before the sporting event has begun.

“Tier 2 sports wager”, a sports wager that is not a tier | sports wager.
P g p g p 2

“Wager”, a sum of money or thing of value risked on an uncertain occurrence.

Section 4. (a) The commission shall regulate the conduct of sports wagering under this

chapter.

(b) The commission shall promulgate rules and regulations necessary for the
implementation, administration and enforcement of this chapter. The commission may
promulgate emergency rules and regulations in accordance with applicable procedures for the

promulgation of emergency rules and regulations.

10 of 49



183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193

194

195
196
197
198

199

200

201

11112 10892

(¢} The commission shall promulgate regulations to prohibit: (i) the purchase or other use
of any personal biometric data of an athlete for sports wagering or aiding a patron in placing a
wager with sports wagering operators; and (i) the following advertising, marketing and branding
activities: (A) advertisements, marketing and branding in such a manner that it is deceptive,
false, misleading, or untrue, or tends to deccive or create a misleading impression whether
directly, or by ambiguity or omission; (B) use of unsolicited pop-up advertisements on the
internet or by text message directed to an individual on the list of sclf-excluded persons
established pursuant to paragraph (2) of subsection () of section 13; (C) any form of advertising,
marketing or branding that the commission deems unacceptable or disruptive to the viewer
experience at a sports event; (D) advertising, marketing and branding deemed to appeal directly
to a person younger than 21 years old; and (E) advertising on any billboards, or any other public

signage, which fails to comply with any federal, state or local law.

(d)(1) The commission may promulgate rules and regulations including, but not limited
to, those governing the acceptance of wagers on a sports event, other event or a series of sports
cvents; types of wagering receipts which may be used; methods of issuing receipts; methods of
accounting to be used by operators; types of records to be kept; types of systems for wagering;

and any other sports wagering-related issues.

(2) The commission shall promulgate rules and regulations regarding protections for
patrons placing wagers and the promotion of social responsibility and responsible gaming that
shall include, but not be limited to, a requirement that an operator: (i) implement responsible
gaming programs that include comprehensive employce trainings on responding to
circumstances in which individuals present signs of gambling addiction; (ii} assess, prevent and

address problem gaming by an operator’s consumers; (iif) permit a consumer to permancntly

11 of 49



208

209

210

211

212

218

219

220

221

222

223

224

225

226

227

11112 10892

close an account registered to the consumer on any or all platforms owned or opcrated by the
operator at any time and for any reason; (iv) offer consumers access to their account history and
account details; (v) refrain from making claims as to a consumer’s winnings or money carned
that is not net of wagers placed; (vi) allow a consumer to withdraw funds without further
solicitation or promotion in the manner in which the funds were deposited; (vii) annually submit
a problem gaming plan for approval by the commission, in consultation with the department of
public health, that includes the objectives of and timetables for implementing the plan,
identification of the persons responsible for implementing and maintaining the plan, procedures
for identifying consumers with suspected or known problem gaming behavior, procedures for
providing information to consumers concerning problem gaming identification and resources,
procedures to prevent gaming by minors and self-excluded persons and any other information the

commission may require; and (viii) shall not offer or provide a line of credit to any consumer.

(3) The commission shall promulgate regulations that require mobile applications and
digital platforms authorized for sports wagering to prominently display upon each entry into the
application or platform the telephone number and website for a problem gambling hotline

overseen by the department of public health.

(e) The commission shall: (i) determine the eligibility of a person to hold or continue to
hold a license; (ii) issue all licenses; and (iii) maintain a record of all licenses issued under this

chapter.

(f) The commission shall levy and collect all fees, surcharges, civil penalties and taxes on
adjusted gross sports wagering receipts imposed by this chapter, except as otherwise provided

under this chapter.

12 of 49



232

233

234

235

236

242
243

244

246
247

248

11112 10892

() The commission shall have the authority to enforce this chapter and any rulc or
regulation of the commission and may request that the attorney general bring an action to enforce
this chapter or any rule or regulation of the commission by civil action or petition for injunctive

relief.

(k) The commission may hold hearings, administer oaths and issue subpoenas or
subpoenas duces tecum in order to enforce this chapter and the rules and regulations of the

commission.

(i) The commission may exercise any other powers necessary to cffectuate this chapter

and the rules and regulations of the commission.

Section 5. (a) A person shall not engage in any activity in connection with sports
wagering in the commonwealth unless all required licenses have been obtained in accordance

with this chapter and the rules and regulations of the commission.

(b) The commission shall not grant an operator license until it determines that each
person who has control of the applicant meets all qualifications for licensure. For the purposes of
this chapter, the following shall be considered to have control of an applicant: (i) a person who
owns 10 per cent or more of a corporate applicant and who has the ability to control the activities
of the corporate applicant; provided, however, that a bank or other licensed lending institution
that holds a mortgage or other lien acquired in the ordinary course of business shall not be
considered to have control of an applicant; (ii) a person who holds a beneficial or proprietary
interest of 10 per cent or more of a non-corporate applicant’s business operation and who has the

ability to control the activitics of the non-corporate applicant; and (iii) at the commission’s

13 of 49



251

252

253

254

255

262

263

264

265

266

11112 10892

discretion, an cxecutive, employce or agent having the power to exercise significant influence

over decisions concerning the applicant’s sports wagering operations in the commonweatth.

{c) A person having control of an applicant pursuant to subsection (b) shall submit to the
commission an application in a form determined by the commission. Each such person who is a
natural person shall also submit to the commission: (i) fingerprints for a national criminal records
check by the department of state police and the Federal Bureau of Investigation; and (ii) a signed
authorization for the release of the person’s information by the department of state police and the
Federal Bureau of Investigation; provided, however, that a person having control of an applicant
who is a natural person that has submitted to a national criminal records check in any jurisdiction
within the previous year shall not be required to submit to another national criminal records
check if such person submits to the commission the results of such previous national criminal
records check. Any applicant convicted of any disqualifying offense, as determined by the

commission, shall not be licensed.

(d) Each person licensed under this chapter shall give the commission written notice not
more than 30 days after any change to any material information provided in the application for a

license or renewal.

(¢) A commission employee shall not be an applicant for any license issued under this

chapter.

Section 6. (a} A licensed qualified gaming cntity may operate sports wagering upon the

approval of the commission.

(b)(1) The commission shall issue a category | license to any holder of a gaming license,
as defined in section 2 of chapter 23K, that meets the requirements of this chapter and the rules

14 of 49



271

272

273
274
275
276
277
278
279

280

282
283
284

285

286
287
288

289

11112 10892

and regulations of the commission; provided, however, that any holder of a category | license

shall not be issued a category 2 license.

(2) The commission shall issue a category 2 license to: (i) any holder of a license to
conduct a live horse racing meeting in accordance with chapter 128A; (ii) a running horse racing
licensee that conducted simulcast wagering as of December 31, 2020 as authorized by law; or
(ii1) a greyhound meeting licensee that conducted simulcast wagering as of December 31, 2020
as authorized by law; that meets the requirements of this chapter and the rules and regulations of
the commission; provided, however, that any holder of a category 2 license shall not be issued a
category 1 license; and provided further, that no more than 1 category 2 license shall be issued to

any | person, entity, or affiliate or close associate of such person or entity.

(3) The commission may issue a category 3 license to any entity that offers sports
wagering through a mobile application or other digital platform that meets the requirements of
this chapter and the rules and regulations of the commission; provided, however, the commission
shall issuc no more than 7 category 3 licenses that are not connected to a category | or category

2 license.

(4) A category 1 or category 2 licensee may enter into agreements related to mobile or
digital sports wagering with a category 3 licensee pursuant to the approval of the commission.
Nothing in this chapter shall require a category 3 licensee to partner with or have any

commercial relationship with a category 1 or 2 licensee.

(c)(1) A qualified gaming entity may submit to the commission a request for a temporary
license for the immediate commencement of sports wagering operations. Such request shall

include an initial licensing fee of $1,000,000 payable to the commission.

150f49



293

294

295

296

297

298

299

300

301

302

303

304

305

306

307

308

309

310

311

312

313

11112 10892

(2) Upon receiving a request for a temporary license, the executive director of the
commission shall review the request. If the executive director determines that the entity
requesting the temporary license is a qualificd gaming entity and has paid the sports wagering
initial licensing fee pursuant to paragraph (1), the commission shall authorize the qualified
gaming entity to conduct sports wagering for a period of 1 year under a temporary license or

until a final determination on its operator license application is made.

(3) All sports wagering conducted under authority of a temporary license shall comply

with the house rules adopted under section 10,

{d) Prior to issuing an operator license, the commission shall commence an investigation
into the suitability of the applicant. The commission may use information obtained from the
applicant pursuant to chapter 23K, chapter 128A, chapter 128C, or information from other
Jurisdictions where the applicant is authorized to conduct sports wagering. In evaluating the
suitability of the applicant, the commission shall consider the overall reputation of the applicant
including, but not limited to: (i) the integrity, honesty, good character and reputation of the
applicant; (ii) the financial stability, integrity and background of the applicant; (iii) the business
practices and the business ability of the applicant to establish and maintain a successful sports
wagering operation; (iv) whether the applicant has a history of compliance with gaming or sports
wagering licensing requirements in other jurisdictions; (v) whether the applicant, at the time of
application, is a defendant in litigation involving its business practices; and (vi) the suitability of
all parties in interest to the license, including affiliates and close associates, and the financial

resources of the applicant.

16 of 49



314

315

3l6

317

318

319

324

325

326

327

328

329

330

331

332

333

334

335

11112 10892

(¢) The commission may deny an application, if the commission determines during its
investigation that an applicant has failed to: (i) establish the applicant’s integrity or the integrity
of any affiliate, close associate, financial resources or any person required to be qualified by the
commission; (ii) demonstrate responsible business practices in any jurisdiction; or (iii) overcome
any other reason, as determined by the commission, as to why it would be injurious to the

interests of the commonwealth to award the applicant an operator license.

(f) Upon application by a qualified gaming entity that is not denied pursuant to subsection
(e) and payment of a $5,000,000 licensing fee, the commission shall grant an operator license to
a qualified gaming entity that provides the right to conduct sports wagering; provided, that the
qualified gaming entity shall meet the requirements for licensure under this chapter and the rules
and regulations of the commission. Such license shall be issued for a 5-year period, and may be
renewed for 5-year periods upon payment of a $5,000,000 renewal fee; provided, that the
operator shall continue to meet all requircments under this chapter and the rules and regulations
of the commission. The commission shall credit any initial licensing fee paid pursuant to
paragraph (1) of subsection (c) to a successful applicant for an operator license against the

licensing fee due under this subsection.

(2) An operator shall submit to the commission such documentation or information as the
commission may require to demonstrate that the operator continues to meet the requirements of
this chapter and the rules and regulations of the commission. An operator shall submit required
documentation or information no later than 5 years after issuance of its operator license and
every 5 years thereafter, or within lesser periods based on circumstances specified by the

commission.

17 of 49



336

337

338

339

340

341

342

343

344

345

346

347

348

349

350

351

352

353

354

355

356

11112 10892

(h) No licensee shall transfer an operator license, or any direct or indirect interest in the
license, without the majority approval of the commission. A person seeking to acquire such
license through a transfer shall qualify and otherwise be determined by the commission to be
eligible for licensure under this chapter. The commission may reject a proposed license transfer
or a proposed transfer of interest in the license to an unsuitable person and may reject a proposed
transfer that, in the determination of the commission, would be injurious to the interests of the
commonwealth. The commission may promulgate regulations governing this process which may

include assessment of a fee to reflect the cost associated with reviewing the proposed transfer.

(1) Applications for operator licenses shall be public records under section 10 of chapter
66; provided however, that trade secrets, competitively-sensitive or other proprietary information
provided in the course of an application for an operator license under this chapter, the disclosure
of which would place the applicant at a competitive disadvantage, may be withheld from

disclosure under said section 10 of said chapter 66.

Section 7. (a) An applicant for an operator license shall pay to the commission a
nonrefundable processing fee of $200,000 for the costs associated with the processing of the
application and investigation of the applicant; provided, however, that if the costs of the
investigation exceed the initial application fee, the applicant shall pay the additional amount to
the commission not more than 30 days after notification of insufficient fees or the application

shall be rejected.

(b) All fees in this section shall be deposited into the Sports Wagering Control Fund

established in section 14.

18 of 49



357

358

359

360

361

362

363

364

365

366

367

368

369

370

37

372

373

374

375

376

377

378

11112 10892

Scction 8. Section 8. (a) All persons employed by an operator to perform duties dircctly
related to the operation of sports wagering in the commonwealth in a supervisory role shall
maintain a valid occupational license issued by the commission. The commission shall issue such

occupational license to a person who meets the requirements of this section.

(b} An occupational license authorizes the licensee to be employed in the capacity
designated by the commission while the license is active. The commission may establish, by rule
or regulation, job classifications with different requirements based on the extent to which a

particular job impacts, or has the potential to impact, the lawful operation of sports wagering.

() An applicant for an occupational license shall submit any required application forms
established by the commission and shall pay a nonrefundable application fee of $100. An

employer may pay an application fee on behalf of an applicant.

{d) Not later than March 1 of the third calendar year following the issuance or renewal of
an occupational license, an occupational license holder shall pay a nonrefundable license rencwal
fee of $100 and submit a renewal application on a form established by the commission. An

employer may pay the license renewal fee on behalf of the licensed employee.

Section 9. Section 9. (a) The commission may deny a license to any applicant, reprimand
any licensee or suspend or revoke a license if the applicant or licensee: (i) has knowingly made a
false statement of a material fact to the commission; {ii) has had a license revoked by any
governmental authority responsible for regulation of gaming activities; (jii) has been convicted
of a felony or other crime involving embezzlement, theft, fraud, perjury, or a gambling-related
offense; (iv) has not demonstrated to the satisfaction of the commission financial responsibility

sufficient to adequately meet the requirements of the proposed enterprise; (v) has affiliates or

19 of 49



379
380
381
382

383

384

385

386
387
388
389
390

391

392

393

394

395

396

397

398

399

400

11112 10892

closc associates that would not qualify for a license or whose relationship with the applicant may
pose an injurious threat to the interests of the commonwealth in awarding an operator license to
the applicant; or (vi) in the casc of an operator or an applicant for an operator license, is not the
true owner of the business or is not the sole owner and has not disclosed the existence or identity

of other persons who have an ownership interest in the business.

(b) The commission may deny, suspend or revoke an operator license or reprimand any

licensee if the applicant or licensee has not met the requirements of this chapter.

Section 10. (a) An operator shall adopt comprehensive house rules for game play
governing sports wagering transactions with the operator’s patrons. The house rules shall specify
the amounts to be paid on winning wagers and the effect of sports event schedule changes, An
operator shall not conduct sports wagering until the commission has approved the house rules
and an operator shall not conduct sports wagering in a manner inconsistent with approved house

rules.

(b} The house rules, together with any other information the commission deems
appropriate, shall be accessible to any patrons of the sports wagering operator. The operator shall
make copies readily available to patrons and shall post the house rules as required by the
commission, including on a prominent place on the operator’s public website and mobile

application or other digital platform.

Section 11. (a) An operator shall employ commercially reasonable methods to: (i)
prohibit the operator, directors, officers, owners and employees of the operator and any relative
living in the same houschold as any such person from placing bets with the operator; (i1} prohibit

athletes, coaches, referees, team owners, employees of a sports governing body or its member

20 of 49



401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414

415

416

417

418

419

420

421

422

423

11112 10892

teams and player and referee union personnel from wagering on any sporting cvent of their
sport’s governing body; provided, however, that the operator shall use lists of such persons that a
sports governing body may provide to the commission to determine which persons are excluded
from placing wagers under this subsection; and provided further, that the commission may use
the list of barred employees from the operator and may work directly with a member team to
determine the risk posed by certain employees for obtaining nonpublic confidential information
on a sporting event and may remove an employee without knowledge of tcam strategy or game
operations from such a list if the commission determines any such risk is de minimis; (iii)
prohibit any individual with access to nonpublic confidential information held by the operator
from placing wagers with the operator; (iv) prohibit persons from placing wagers as agents or
proxies for others; and (v) maintain the security of wagering data, customer data and other
confidential information from unauthorized access and dissemination; provided, however, that
nothing in this chapter shall preciude the use of intemet or cloud-based hosting of such data and
information or disclosure as required by court order, other law or this chapter; and provided

further, that such data and information shall be hosted in the United States.

(b} A sports governing body or players association representing athletes who participate
in sporting events of the sports governing body may submit to the commission, in writing, by
providing notice in a form and manner as the commission may require, a request to restrict, limit
or exclude a certain type, form or category of sports wagering with respect to sporting events of
the sports governing body, if the sports governing body or players association believes that such
type, form or category of sports wagering with respect to sporting events of the sports governing
body: (i} is contrary to public policy; (ii) unfair to consumers; (iii) may undermine the perceived

integrity of the sports governing body, sporting events of the sports governing body or the

21 of 49



424

425

426

427

428

429

430

431

432

433

434

435

436

437

438

439

440

441

442

443

444

445

11112 10892

athletes participating therein; or (iv) affects the integrity of the sports governing body or sporting

events of the sports governing body or the athletes participating therein.

The commission shall request comment from operators on all such requests. After giving
due consideration to all comments received, the commission shall, upon a demonstration of good
cause from the requestor, grant the request. The commission shall respond to a request
concerning a particular event before the start of the event or, if it is not feasible to respond before
the start of the event, not later than 7 days after the request is made; provided, however, that if
the commission determines that the requestor is more likely than not to prevail in successfully
demonstrating good cause for its request, the commission may provisionally grant the request
until the commission makes a final determination as to whether the requestor has demonstrated
good cause. Absent a provisional grant by the commission, an operator may continue to offer
sports wagering on sporting events that are the subject of a request during the pendency of the

consideration of the applicable request.

(¢) The commission shall designate a state law enforcement entity to have primary
responsibility for conducting, or assisting the commission in conducting, investigations into
abnormal betting activity, match fixing and other conduct that corrupts a betting outcome of a

sporting event for purposes of financial gain.

(d) The commission and operators shall usec commercially reasonable cfforts to cooperate
with investigations conducted by sports governing bodies or law enforcement agencies,
including, but not limited to, using commercially reasonable efforts to provide or facilitate the
provision of anonymized account-level betting information and audio or video files relating to

persons placing wagers. All disclosures under this section are subject to the obligation of an

22 of 49



446

447

448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457

458

459
460
461
462

463

464
465
466

467

11112 10892

operator to comply with all federal, state and local laws and regulations, including, but not

limited to, laws and regulations relating to privacy and personally identifiable information.

(e) An operator shall immediately report to the commission any information relating to:
(1) criminal or disciplinary proceedings commenced against the operator in connection with its
operations; (i) abnormal betting activity or patterns that may indicate a concern with the
integrity of a sporting event; (iii) any potential breach of the internal rules and codes of conduct
pertaining to sports wagering of a relevant sports governing body; (iv) any other conduct that
corrupts a betting outcome of a sporting event for purposes of financial gain, including, but not
limited to, match fixing; or (v) suspicious or illegal wagering activities, including, but not limited
to: (A) use of funds derived from illegal activity; (B) wagers to conceal or launder funds derived
from illegal activity; (C) use of agents to place wagers; and (D) usc of false identification. An
operator shall immediately report information relating to conduct described in clauses (ii), (iii)

and (iv) of this subsection to the rclevant sports governing body.

(f) The commission and operators shall maintain the confidentiality of information
provided by a sports governing body for purposes of investigating or preventing the conduct
described in clauses (ii), (iii) and (iv) of subsection (e), unless disclosure is required by this
chapter, the commission, other law or court order or unless the sports governing body consents to

disclosure,

(g) With respect to any information provided by an operator to a sports governing body
relating to conduct described in clauses (ii), (1) and (iv) of subsection (c), a sports governing
body shail: (i) only use such information for integrity purposes and shall not use the information

for any commercial or other purpose; and (ii) maintain the confidentiality of such information,

23 of 49



468
469
470
471
472
473
474
475
476
477

478

479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486

487

488

489

490

11112 10892

unless disclosure is required by this chapter, the commission, other law or court order or unless
the operator consents to disclosure; provided, however, that the sports governing body may make
any disclosure necessary to conduct and resolve integrity-related investigations and may publicly
disclose such information if required by its integrity policies or if deemed by the sports
governing body in its reasonable judgment to be necessary to maintain the actual or perceived
integrity of its sporting events, and subject in all cases to the sports governing body’s compliance
with federal, state and local laws and regulations, including, but not limited to, laws and
regulations relating to privacy and personally identifiable information; and provided further, that
prior to any such public disclosure that would identify the operator by name, the sports
governing body shall provide the operator with notice of such disclosure and an opportunity to

object to such disclosure.

(h) An operator shall maintain records of all wagers placed by its patrons, including: (i)
personally identifiable information of a patron who places a sports wager through a mobile
application or other digital platform or a patron who places an in-person sports wager that
exceeds an amount determined by the commission; (ii) amount and type of the bet; (jii) the time
the bet was placed; (iv) the location of the bet, including the Internet Protocol address if
applicable; (v) the outcome of the bet; and (vi) records of abnormal betting activity for 3 years
after a sporting event occurs and video camera recordings in the case of in-person wagers for at
least | year after a sporting event occurs. An operator shall make these records available for

inspection upon request of the commission or as required by court order,

(i) An operator shall use commercially reasonable efforts to maintain, in real time and at
the account level, anonymized information for each patron, including: (i) the amount and type of

bet; (ii) the time the bet was placed; (iii) the location of the bet, including the Internet Protocol

24 of 49



49]

492

493

494

495

496
497
498
499
500
501
502
503
504
505
506
507

508

509

510

511

11112 10892

address if applicable; (iv) the outcome of the bet; and (v) records of abnormal betting activity.
The commission may request the information in the form and manner as it requires. Nothing in
this section shall require an operator to provide any information prohibited by federal, state or
local laws or regulations, including, but not limited to, laws and regulations relating to privacy

and personally identifiable information.

() If a sports governing body has notified the commission and demonstrated a need for
access to the information described in subsection (i) for wagers placed on sporting events of the
sports governing body for integrity monitoring purposes and demonstrated the capability to use
the data for the purpose of effectively monitoring the integrity of sporting events of the sports
goveming body, an operator shall share, in a commercially reasonable frequency, form and
manner, with the sports governing body or its designee the same information the operator is
required to maintain pursuant to said subsection (i) with respect to sports wagers on sporting
events of the sports governing body. A sports governing body and its designee shall only use
information received pursuant to this section for integrity-monitoring purposes and shall not use
information received pursuant to this section for any commercial or other purpose. Nothing in
this section shall require an operator to provide any information that is prchibited by federal,
state or local law or regulation, including, but not limited to, laws and regulations relating to

privacy and personally identiftable information,

(k}(1) An operator shall conduct a background check on each newly hired employee.
Background checks shail search for criminal history, charges or convictions involving corruption

or manipulation of sporting events and association with organized crime.

25 0f 49



512

313

514

515

516
517
518
519
520
521
522
523
524
525
526
527
528
529
530
531
532

533

11112 10892

(2) An operator shall conduct a single background check on any employee hired before
the operator was issued an operator license. Background checks shall search for criminal history,
charges or convictions involving corruption or manipulation of sporting cvents and association

with organized crime.

Section 12. (a) An operator shall: (i) employ a monitoring system utilizing software to
identify irregularities in volume or changes in odds that could signal suspicious activities and
promptly report such information to the commission for further investigation; provided,
however, that system requirements and specifications shall be developed according to industry
standards and implemented by the commission as part of the minimum internal control
standards; (ii} promptly report to the commission any facts or circumstances related to the
operation of a sports wagering license that constitute a violation of state or federal law and
promptly report to the appropriate state or federal authorities any suspicious betting over a
threshold set by the operator that has been approved by the commission; (iii) conduct all sports
wagering activities and functions in a manner that does not pose a threat to the public health,
safety or welfare of the residents of the commonwealth; (iv) keep current in all payments and
obligations to the commission; (v) prevent any person from tampering or interfering with the
operation of any sports wagering; (vi) ensure that mobile sports wagering occurs only using a
commission-approved mobile application or other digital platform to accept wagers initiated
within the commonwealth; (vii) maintain sufficient cash and other supplies to conduct sports
wagering at all times; (viii) maintain daily records showing the gross sports wagering receipts
and adjusted gross sports wagering receipts of the operator from sports wagering; (ix) timely file

with the commission any additional reports required by this chapter or by any rule or regulation;

26 of 49



534

535

536

537

538

539

540
541
542
543
544
545
546

547

548

549

550

551

552

553

11112 10892

and (x) usc commercially reasonable efforts to prevent a person under 21 years old from placing

a wager,

(b) Sports wagering operators may use any data source for determining;

(1) the results of any and all tier 1 sports wagers on any and all sporting events; and

(2) the results of any and all tier 2 sports wagers on sporting events of an organization

that is not headquartered in the United States.

(¢) A sports governing body may notify the commission that it desires sports wagering
operators to usc official league data to settle tier 2 sports wagers on sporting events of such
sports governing body. The notification shall be made in the form and manner as the commission
may require. Within 5 days of receipt of the notification, the commission shall notify each sports
wagering operator of the requirement to use official league data to settle tier 2 sports wagers. If a
sports governing body does not notify the commission of its desire to supply official league data,
a sports wagering operator may use any data source for determining the results of any and all tier

2 sports wagers on sporting events of the sports governing body.

(d) Within 60 days of the commission notifying a sport wagering operator of the
requirement to use official league data to settle tier 2 sports wagers pursuant to subsection (¢), or
such longer period as may be agreed between the sports governing body and the applicable
sports wagering opcrator, a sports wageting operator shall use only official league data to
determine the results of tier 2 sports wagers on sporting events of that sports governing body,

unless:

27 of 49



554
555
556
557

558

559
560

561

562
563

564

565

566

567

568

569

570

571

572
573

574

11112 10892

(1) the sports governing body or its designee cannot provide a feed of official league data
to determine the results of a particular type of tier 2 sports wager, in which case a sports
wagering operator may usc any data source for determining the results of the applicable tier 2
sports wager until such time a data feed becomes available from the sports goveming body on

commetcially reasonable terms and conditions; or

(2) a sports wagering operator can demonstrate to the commission that the sports
governing body or its designee will not provide a feed of official league data to the sports

wagering operator on commercially reasonable terms and conditions.

(e) In evaluating whether official league data is offered on commercially reasonable
terms and conditions for purposes of paragraphs (1) and (2) of subscction (d), the commission

may consider factors, including, but not limited to:

(1) the availability of official league data to a sports wagering operator from more than |

authorized source;

(2) market information, including, but not limited to, price and other terms and conditions
regarding the purchase by sports wagering operators of comparable data for the purpose of

settling sports wagers in the commonwealth and other jurisdictions;

(3) the nature and quantity of data, including the quality and complexity of the process

used for collecting the data; and

(4) the extent to which a sports governing body or its designee has made data used to
settle tier 2 wagers available to sports wagering operators and any terms and conditions relating

to the use of that data.

28 of 49



575
576
577
578
579
580
581

582

583
584
585
586

587

588
589

590

591

592

593

594

595

596

11112 10892

(f) Notwithstanding subscction (d) or any provision of this subscction to the contrary,
during the pendency of the determination of the commission as to whether a sports governing
body or its designee may provide official league data on commercially rcasonable terms, a sports
wagering operator may use any data source to determine the results of tier 2 sports wagers. The
determination shall be made within 120 days of the sports wagering operator notifying the
commission that it requests to demonstrate that the sports governing body or its designee will not
provide a feed of official lcague data to the sports wagering operator on commercially reasonable

terms.

() A sports governing body may enter into commercial agreements with a sports
wagering operator or other entity in which such sports govemning body may share in the amount
wagered or revenues derived from sports wagering on sporting events of the sports governing
body. A sports governing body shall not be required to obtain a license or any other approval

from the commission to lawfully accept such amounts or revenues.

Section 13. (a) Holders of category 1 and category 2 licenses may accept wagets on
sports events and other events authorized pursuant to this chapter in person at authorized

facilities.

(b) Holders of an operator license may accept wagers on sports events and other events
authorized pursuant to this chapter from individuals physically located within the commonwealth
using mobile applications or digital platforms approved by the commission, through the patron’s
sports wagering account. The branding for cach mobile application or digital platform shall be
determined by the operator. All bets authorized pursuant to this section must be initiated,

received and otherwise made within the commonwealth. Consistent with the intent of the federal

29 0f 49



597
598
599

600

601

602

603

604

605

606

607
608
609
610

611

612

613

614

615

616

617

618

11112 10892

Unlawful Internet Gambling Enforcement Act of 2006, 31 U.S.C. section 5361 to 5367,
inclusive, the intermediate routing of electronic data related to a lawful intrastate wager
authorized pursuant to this chapter shall not determine the location or locations in which the

wager is initiated, received or otherwise made.

(c) An operator may: (i) accept wagers placed by other operators and (ii) place wagers
with other operators; provided, that any operator that places a wager with another operator shall
inform the operator accepting the wager that the wager is being placed by an operator and shall

disclose the operator’s identity.

(d) An operator shall not accept: (i} a wager from a person who is less than 21 years of

age; or (ii) a credit card .

(e)(1) The commission or operator may ban any person from participating in the play or
operation of any sports wagering consistent with rules and regulations promulgated by the
commission. A list of all excluded patrons shall be kept by the commission and provided to cach
licensee. No patron on the exclusion list shall be permitted to conduct sports wagering pursuant

to this chapler.

(2) The commission shall establish a list of self-excluded persons from sports wagering.
A person may request their name to be placed on the list of self-excluded persons by filing a
statement with the commission acknowledging that they are a problem gambler and by agreeing
that, during any period of voluntary exclusion, they shail not collect any winnings or recover any
losses resulting from any sports wagering. The commission shall adopt further regulations for the
self-excluded persons list including procedures for placement, removal and transmittal of the list

to sports wagering operators. The commission may revoke, limit, condition, suspend or fine a

30 of 49



619
620

621

622
623

624

625

629

630

631

632

633

634

635

636

637

638

639

11112 10892

sports wagering operator if the operator knowingly or recklessly fails to exclude or cject from its
premises any person placed on the list of self-excluded persons. The list of self-excluded persons

from sports wagering shall not be open to public inspection.

(3) An operator that operates sports wagering through a mobile application or other
digital platform may allow patrons to set self-imposed limitations on sports wagering when the

patron joins the mobile application or digital platform.

(f) No employee may place a sports wager at any facility or through any mobile

application or digital platform owned or operated by their cmployer.

(g) Sections 24, 24A and 27 of chapter 10 of the General Laws shall not apply to an

operator conducting sports wagering in accordance with this chapter.

(h) Unclaimed winning sports wagers shall be retained by the operator for the person
entitled to the wager for | year after the game or event in which the wager was won. If no claim
is made for the wager within 1 year, the cash or equivalent cash value of the wager shall be

deposited in the Sports Wagering Control Fund established in section 15.

Section 14. (a) An excise is hereby imposed upon sports wagering operators in the
commonwealth at the rate of: (i) 15 per cent of the operator’s adjusted gross sports wagering
receipts from the operation of in-person sports wagering; (ii) 20 per cent of the operator’s
adjusted gross sports wagering receipts from the operation of sports wagering through mobile
applications and other digital platforms approved by the commission; and (iii) 15 per cent of the
adjusted gross fantasy wagering receipts of a person or entity that offers fantasy contests, as

defined in section 11M%. The accrual method of accounting shall be used for purposes of

31 of 49




640

641

642

643

644

645

646

647

648

649

650
651

652

653

654

655
656

657

658

659

11112 10892

calculating the amount of the tax owed by the licensee. The excise shall be paid to the

commission at the time provided for filing the return pursuant to subsection (b).

(b)(1) The excise imposed and collected pursuant to subsection (a) shall be due
and payable to the commission in monthly installments on or before the fifteenth calendar day

following the calendar month in which the adjusted gross sports wagering receipts were received.

(2) On or before the fifieenth calendar day of each month, the operator shall complete and
submit the return for the preceding month by electronic communication to the commission in a

form prescribed by the commission that provides:

(i) the total gross sports wagering receipts and adjusted gross sports wagering receipts

from operation of sports wagering during that month;

(ii) the total gross fantasy wagering receipts and adjusted gross fantasy wagering receipts
from the offering of fantasy contests, as defined in section 1 1MY: of chapter 12, during that

month;

(iii) the tax amount for which an operator or a person or entity that offers fantasy

contests, as defined in said section 11 M of said chapter 12, is liable; and

(iv) any additional information necessary in the computation and collection of the tax on
adjusted gross sports wagering receipts and adjusted gross fantasy wagering receipts required by

the commission.

(3) The excise amount shown to be due shall be remitted by electronic funds transfer

simultaneously with the filing of the return.

320f49



11112 10892

660 (4) When an operator’s adjusted gross sports wagering receipts for a month is a negative
661  number because the winnings paid to wagerers and excise taxes paid pursuant to federal law
662  excced the operator’s total gross receipts from sports wagering, the commission shall allow the
663  operator to carry over the negative amount to returns filed for subsequent months. The negative
664  amount of adjusted gross sports wagering receipts shall not be carried back to an carlicr month
665  and taxes previously received by the commission shall not be refunded unless the operator

666  surrenders its license and the operator’s last retum reported negative adjusted gross sports

667  wagering receipts.

668 (c) The excise on adjusted gross sports wagering receipts imposed by this section shall be
669  in lieu of all other state and local taxes and fees imposed on the operation of, or the proceeds

670  from operation of, sports wagering.

671 (d) Annually, not later than July 1, the commission shall publish on its website a report
672 stating the amount in fees, surcharges and civil penalties received from operators and taxes
673  received from operators and from people or entities that offer fantasy contests, as defined in

674  section 1IMY: of chapter 12.

675 Section 15. (a) There shall be established and set up on the books of the commonwealth a
676  separate fund to be known as the Sports Wagering Control Fund. The commission shall be the
677  trustee of the fund and shall expend money to finance the operational activitics of the

678  commission pertaining to sports wagering. The fund shall be credited with: (i) any appropriation,
679  bond proceeds or other monies authorized by the general court and specifically designated to be
680  credited thereto; (ii) the proceeds of any fees collected pursuant to this section unless otherwise

681  specified; (iii) fees collected pursuant to sections 7 and 8, (iv) breaks; and (v) such additional

33 0of 49




682

683

684

685

686

687

688

689

690

691

692

693

694

695

696

697

698

699

700

701

702

703

11112 10892

funds as are subject to the direction and control of the commission. All available money in the
fund that is unexpended at the end of each fiscal year shall not revert to the General Fund and

shall be available for expenditure in the subsequent fiscal year.

(b} The commission shall establish fees for any investigation into a violation of this
chapter or regulation promulgated hereunder by a sports wagering operator to be paid by the
sports wagering operator including, but not limited to, billable hours by commission staff
involved in the investigation and the costs of services, equipment or other expenses that are

incurred by the commission during the investigation.

(¢) Any remaining costs of the commission necessary to maintain regulatory control over
sports wagering operators that are not covered by: (i) the fees set forth in subsection (b); (ii) any
other fees assessed pursuant to this chapter; or (iii) any other designated sources of funding, shall
be annually assessed on sports wagering operators pursuant to this chapter in proportion to each
operator’s share of the commonwealth’s total adjusted gross sports wagering receipts. Each
operator shall pay the amount assessed against the operator not more than 30 days after the date

of the notice of assessment from the commission.

(d) If the fees collected pursuant to subsections (b) and (c) exceed the cost required to
maintain regulatory control, the surplus funds shall be credited in proportional shares against

cach sports wagering operator’s next assessment.

(¢) The commission shall annually assess and collect a $1,000,000 fee in shares to be
determined by the commission against each sports wagering operator that is not a category 1 or
category 2 gaming licensee, as defined in section 2 of chapter 23K. The fee collected pursuant to

this subsection shall be deposited into the Public Health Trust Fund established in section 58 of

34 0f 49



704

705

706
707
708
709
710
711
712
713
714
715
716

717

718
719
720
721

722

11112 10892

said chapter 23K and shall be used for the costs of services and public health programs provided

for in said section 58 of said chapter 23K.

Section 16. (a) The commission may assess a civil administrative penalty on an operator
who fails to comply with any provision of this chapter, house rules or any regulation or order
adopted by the commission; provided, however, that the noncompliance shall have occurred after
the commission has given such operator written notice of the noncompliance and the time stated
in the notice for coming into compliance has elapsed; provided further, that the commission may
assess a penalty without providing written notice if the failure to comply: (i) was part of a pattern
of noncompliance and not an isolated instance; (ii) was willful or neglectful and not the result of
error; (iii} resulted in a significant breach to the integrity of the operator or the sports wagering
laws of the commenwealth; or (iv) consisted of failure to promptly report to the commission any
knowledge of evidence or circumstances that would cause a reasonable person to believe that a
violation of this chapter has been committed. The civil administrative penalty shall be in addition

to any other civil penalty that may be prescribed by law.

(b) For the purpose of determining whether such noncompliance was part of a pattern of
noncompliance and not an isolated instance, the commission shall consider, but not be limited to;
(1) whether the commission had previously notified the operator of such noncompliance on more
than 1 occasion during the previous month or of any noncompliance with the same provision of a
law, regulation, order, license or approval as the current noncompliance during the previous 6-
month period; or (ii) whether the current and previous instances of noncompliance, considered
together, indicate a potential threat to the integrity of the operator and sports wagering in the
commonwealth or an interference with the commission’s ability to efficiently and effectively

rcgulate sports wagering in the commonwealth and enforce any regulation, license or order. If an

35 of 49



727

728

729

730

731

732

733

734

735

736

737

738

739

740

741

742

743

744

745

746

747

11112 10892

operator that has reccived a notice of noncompliance fails to come into compliance within the
time period stated in the notice, the civil administrative penalty may be assessed by the

commission upon the operator from the date of receipt of such notice.

(c) If the commission secks to asscss a civil administrative penalty on an operator, the
commission shall cause to be served upon the operator, by service in hand or by certified mail,
return receipt requested, a written notice of its intent to assess a civil administrative penalty that
shall include: (i) a concise statement of the alleged act or omission for which such civil
administrative penalty is sought to be assessed; (ii) each law, regulation, order, license or
approval that has not been complied with as a result of such alleged act or omission; (iii) the
amount that the commission seeks to assess as a civil administrative penalty for each alleged act
or omission; (iv) a statement of the operator’s right to an adjudicatory hearing on the proposed
assessment; (v) the requirements the operator shall comply with to avoid being deemed to have
waived the right to an adjudicatory hearing; and (vi) the manner of payment thereof if the
operator elects to pay the penalty and waive an adjudicatory hearing. After written notice of
noncompliance or intent to assess a civil administrative penalty has been given, each day
thereafter during which noncompliance occurs or continues shall constitute a separate offense
and shall be subject to a separate civil administrative penalty if reasonable efforts have not been

made by the operator to promptly come into compliance.

(d) If the commission seeks to assess a civil administrative penalty on an operator, the
operator shall have the right te an adjudicatory hearing under chapter 30A, the provisions of

which shall apply except when they are inconsistent with the provisions of this chapter.

36 of 49



748
749
750
751
752
753
754

755

756
757
758
759

760

761
762
763
764
765
766
767
768

769

11112 10892

(¢) An operator shall be deemed to have waived its right to an adjudicatory hearing
unless, not more than 21 days after the date of the commission’s notice that the commission
sceks to assess a civil administrative penalty, the operator files with the commission a written
statement denying the occurrence of any of the acts or omissions alleged by the commission in
the notice or asserting that the amount of the proposed civil administrative penalty is excessive.
In an adjudicatory hearing authorized under chapter 30A, the commission shall be required to
prove, by a prepondcrance of the evidence, the occurrence of cach act or omission alleged by the

commission in the notice.

(f) I an operator waives the right to an adjudicatory hearing, the proposed civil
administrative penalty shall be final immediately upon such waiver. If a civil administrative
penalty is assessed at the conclusion of an adjudicatory hearing, the civil administrative penalty
shall be final upon the expiration of 30 days unless an action for judicial review of the decision is

commenced under chapter 30A.

(2) An operator who institutes proceedings for judicial review of the final assessment of a
civil administrative penalty shall place the full amount of the final assessment in an interest-
bearing escrow account in the custody of the clerk or magistrate of the reviewing court. The
establishment of an interest-bearing escrow account shall be a condition precedent to the
Jurisdiction of the reviewing court unless the party seeking judicial review demonstrates, in a
preliminary hearing held not more than 20 days after the filing of the complaint, the presence of
a substantial question for review by the court or the operator’s inability to pay. Upon such a
decmonstration, the court may grant an extension or waiver of the intcrest-bearing escrow account

requirement or may require, in lieu of such interest-bearing escrow account, the posting of a

37 of 49



770

771

772
773
774
775
776
777
778
779
780
781

782

783
784
785
786
787
788
789

790

11112 10892

bond payable directly to the commonwealth in the amount of 125 per cent of the assessed

penalty.

If, after judicial review, in a case where the escrow account requirement has been waived,
and in cases where a bond has been posted in lieu of such requirement, the court affirms, in
whole or in part, the assessment of a civil administrative penalty, the commission shall be paid
the amount thereof together with interest at the rate provided in section 6C of chapter 231. If,
after judicial review in a case where an interest-bearing escrow account has been established, the
court affirms the assessment of such penalty, in whole or in part, the commission shall be paid
the amount thereof together with the accumulated interest in the interest-bearing escrow account.
If the court sets aside the assessment of a civil administrative penalty in a case where the amount
of such penalty has been deposited in an interest-bearing escrow account, the operator on whom
the civil administrative penalty was assessed shall be repaid the amount so set aside, together

with the accumulated interest thercon.

(h) Each operator who fails to timely pay a civil administrative penalty and each operator
who issues a bond under this section and fails to timely pay to the commission the amount
required for the bond, shall be liable to the commonwealth for up to 3 times the amount of the
civil administrative penalty, together with costs, plus interest accrued from the time the civil
administrative penalty became final and attorneys’ fees, including all costs and attorneys fees
incurred directly in the collection of the penalty. The rate of interest shall be the rate provided in
section 6C of chapter 231. The commission may require that the amount of a civil administrative

penalty imposed under this section exceed any economic benefit realized by a person.

38 of 49



791

792

793

794

795

796

797

798

799

800

801

802

803

8G4

805

806

807

808

809

810

811

11112 10892

(1) The commission may impose conditions on, suspend or revoke an operator’s license or
reprimand or assess a fine on an operator upon a finding that the operator: (i) has committed a
criminal or civil offense under this chapter or under any other law; (ii) is not in compliance with
sports wagering regulations promulgated pursuant to this chapter; (iii) is under criminal
investigation in another jurisdiction; (iv) has breached a condition of licensure; (v) has affiliates,
close associates or employees that are not qualified or licensed under this chapter with whom the
operator continues to conduct business or employ; (vi) is no longer capable of maintaining
operations as a sports wagering operator; or (vii) whose business practice, upon a determination

by the commission, is injurious to the policy objectives of this chapter.

Section 17. There shall be established and set up on the books of the commonwealth a
Sports Wagering Fund which shall reccive revenues collected pursuant to sections 6 and 14. The

commission shall be the trustee of the fund and shall transfer monies from the fund as follows:

(1) 45 per cent to the General Fund;

{2) 17.5 per cent to the Workforce Investment Trust Fund established in section 18;

(3)27.5 per cent to the Gaming Local Aid Fund established in section 63 of section 23K

(4) 1 per cent to the Youth Development and Achievement Fund established in section

19; and

(5) 9 per cent to the Public Health Trust Fund established in section 58 of section 23i.

Section 18. (a) There is hereby established and set up on the books of the commonwealth
a separate fund to be known as the Workforce Investment Trust Fund. There shall be credited to

the fund any sports wagering revenue transferred from the Sports Wagering Fund pursuant to

39 0f 49



812

813

814

815

816

817

818

819

823

824

825

826

827

828

829

830

831

832

833

834

11112 10892

section 16. Monies transferred to the fund shall be continuously expended, without regard for
fiscal year, exclusively for carrying out the purposes of this section. Money remaining in the

fund at the end of a fiscal year shall not revert to the General Fund.

(b) The fund shall be administered by the secretary of housing and cconomic
development. Money in the fund shall be competitively granted to develop and strengthen
workforce opportunities for low-income communities and vulnerable youth and young adults in
the commonwealth, including providing opportunities and strategies to promote stable

employment and wage growth.

{c) Eligible grant recipients shall provide opportunities which: (i) target at risk youth,
including resources to empower youth to succeed in the workforce; (ii) provide job skills
trainings, including programs offering trainings in multiple languages and areas for development,
including education and hands on skills; (iii) promote aduit literacy, including strategies to
master reading and writing and providing digital formats to increase accessibility; and (iv)
provide English language learning programs to promote access to the workforce. The secretary
of housing and economic development shall establish criteria to evaluate applications for the
grant program; provided, that the criteria shall include, but shall not be limited to, at risk
populations; provided further, that preference shall be given to eligible grant recipients providing
opportunities for individuals who meet at least 2 of the following: (i) is under 30 years of age;
(i) is a victim of violence; (iii) is over 18 years of age and does not have a high school diploma;
(iv) has been convicted of a felony; (v) has been unemployed or has had a family income below
250 per cent of the federal poverty level for not less than 6 months; (vi) lives in a census tract
where over 20 per cent of the populations fall below the federal poverty line; or (vii) is an

immigrant, refugee or person of color.

40 of 49



835
836
837

338

839
840
841
842

343

844
845
846

847

848

349

850

851

852

853

854

855

11112 10892

(d) Annually, not later than October 1, the secretary of housing and cconomic
development shall provide a report of the grants given and a breakdown of expenditures made by
the fund. The report shall be posted on the website of the executive office of housing and

economic development.

Section 18. There shall be established and set up on the books of the commonwealth a
fund to be known as the Youth Development and Achievement Fund. The fund shall be credited
any monies transferred from the Sports Wagering Fund pursuant to section 16 and all monies
credited to or transferred to the fund from any other fund or source. Expenditures from the fund

shall be subject to appropriation and shall be expended equally for the following purposes:

(1) For the purposes of providing financial assistance to students from the commonwealth
enrolled in and pursuing a program of higher education in any approved public or independent
college, university, school of nursing or any other approved institution furnishing a program of

higher education;

(2) For the purposes of funding after-school and out-of-school activities, including, but
not limited to, youth athletics and other activities that improve student health, literacy programs,
English language learning programs, academic tutoring, art, theater and music programs and

community service programs; and

(3) For the purposes of providing matching grants to elementary and secondary youth
sports, organizations, clubs and other school groups to attend events including, but not limited to,
academic events and programs, cultural events and award ceremonies both nationally and

internationally.

41 of 49



856
857
858
859
860
861
862
863
864
865
866
867
868
869
870
871
872
873
874
875

876

877

878

11112 10892

Section 20. The commission shall conduct a study into the feasibility of allowing retail
locations in the commonwealth to operate sports wagering kiosks. The study by the commission
shall include, but not be limited to, an analysis of: (i} the economic impact of this chapter on
retail establishments that serve alcoholic beverages for on premises consumption, such as
restaurants and bars; (ii) which retail locations have the ability to operate a sports wagering
kiosk; (iii) the economic impact to the commonwealth of authorizing retail locations to operate a
sports wagering kiosk; (iv) the methods and availability of payouts of winnings by a sports
wagering kiosks at retail locations; (v) the public health and safety impacts to the commonwealth
of authorizing retail locations to operate a sports wagering kiosk; (vi) the potential effect of
sports wagering kiosks at retail locations on problem gaming or gambling; (vii) the impact of
sports wagering kiosks at retail locations on minors; (viii) the economic impact of authorizing
this method of sports wagering on businesses owned by people of color; {(ix) the public health
and economic impact of this method of sports wagering as an alternative to the current black
market, particularly in communities far from authorized in-person sports wagering; and (x)
recommendations to ensure diversity, equity and inclusion are included in this method of sports
wagering. As part of the study, the commission shall consult retailers, convenience stores,
restaurants, women and minority owned businesses and small business owners. The commission
shall report on its findings and submit any recommendations to the clerks of the housc and
senate, the house and senate committees on ways and means, the joint committee on consumer
protection and professional licensure and the joint committee on economic development and

emerging technologies no later than December 31, 2022,

Section 21. (a} The commission may impose on any person who violates this chapter a

civil penalty not to exceed $2,000 for each violation or $5,000 for violations arising from the

42 of 49



879

380

881

882

883

884

885

886

887

888

889

890

891

892

893

894

895

896

897

898

899

11112 10892

same serics of events. Such penalty shall be imposed on all persons and is not limited to persons

licensed under this chapter.

{b) The commission may condition, suspend, reprimand, assess a fine or revoke an
operator license upon a finding that a licensce: (i) has committed a criminal or civil offense
under this chapter or under any other laws of the commonwealth; (ii) is not in compliance with
sports wagering regulations; (iii) is under criminal investigation in another jurisdiction; (iv) has
breached a condition of licensure; (v) has affiliates, close associates or employees that are not
qualified or licensed under this chapter with whom the licensee continues to conduct business or
employ; (vi) is no longer capable of maintaining operations as a sports wagering operator or data
supplier; or (vii) whose business practice, upon a determination by the commission,

is injurious to the policy objectives of this chapter.

Section 21. (a) Whoever, other than an operator under this chapter, engages in accepting,
facilitating or operating a sports wagering operation shall be punished by imprisonment in the
house of correction for not more than 90 days or by a fine not to exceed $10,000, or both; and for
a second offense, by imprisonment in the house of correction for not more than 6 months or by a
fine of not more than $50,000, or both; and in the case of a third or subsequent violation by
imprisonment in the state prison for not less than 1 but not more than 5 years or by a fine of not

less than $25,000 and not more than $100,000, or both.

Section 22. An operator shall not discharge, demote, suspend, threaten, harass or in any
other manner discriminate against an employee because of any lawful act done by the employee

to provide information, cause information to be provided or otherwise assist in an investigation

43 of 49



900

901

902

903

904

905

906

907

908

909

910

911

912

913

914

915

916

917

918

919

920

921

922

11112 10892

regarding any conduct that the employce rcasonably belicves constitutes a violation of this

chapter.

Section 23. (a) The commission shall develop an annual research agenda in order to
understand the social and economic effects of sports wagering in the commonwealth and to
obtain scientific information relative to the neuroscience, psychology, sociology, epidemiology
and etiology of sports wagering. The secretary of health and human services, with the advice and
consent of the commission, may expend funds from the Public Health Trust Fund established in
section 58 of chapter 23K to implement the objectives of the sports wagering research agenda;
provided, however, that the objectives of the sports wagering research agenda shall, to the extent
practicable, be substantially similar to the objectives of the research agenda established under
section 71 of said chapter 23K. The sports wagering research agenda shall also include, but not
be limited to: (i) an assessment of whether problem sports wagering is comorbid with problem
gambling; (i) an assessment as to whether the individuals participating in sports wagering are
different than those who participate in other forms of gaming or gambling; (iii) an assessment of
the impact of sports wagering on youth under the age of 25; (iv) an assessment of the impacts of
sports wagering on college athletics and professional sports; and (v) the costs of implementing

this chapter.

(b) Annually, the commission shall make scientifically-based recommendations that
reflect the results of the research under clause () to the clerks of the senate and house of
representatives, the senate and house committees on ways and means, the joint committee on
economic development and emerging technologies, the joint committec on mental health,
substance use and recovery and the joint committee on public health. The commission shall

consider any such recommendations, research and findings in all decisions related to cnhancing

44 of 49



923

924

925

926

927
928
929
930
931
932

933

934

935

936

937

938

939

940
941

942

11112 10892

responsible gambling and mitigating problem sports wagering. The recommendations shall be

posted on the commission’s website.

SECTION 6. Chapter 128C of the General Laws is hereby amended by inserting the

following new section:-

Section 9. Notwithstanding sections 1 to 8, inclusive, or any other general or special law
to the contrary, no racing meeting licensee, including licensees holding racing meetings in
connection with a state or county fair as defined in section 1 of chapter 128A, shall simulcast or
accept a wager on greyhound dog racing, and a running horse racing meeting licensee shall
conduct not less than 20 live racing days at a thoroughbred horse racing track, provided, the
commission may waive this requirement as necessary and appropriate to ensure the financial

ability of the licensee to develop and operate a race track.

SECTION 7. Section 1 of chapter 137 of the General Laws, as appearing in the 2018
Official Edition, is hereby amended by inserting after the figure “23K”, in linc 3, the following

words:- or sports wagering conducted pursuant to chapter 23N.

SECTION 8. Section 2 of said chapter 137, as so appearing, is hereby amended by
inserting after the figure “23K”, in line 3, the following words:- or an operator who offers sports

wagering pursuant to chapter 23N,

SECTION 9. Section 3 of said chapter 137, as so appcaring, is hereby amended by
inserting after the figure “23K”, in line 7, the following words:- or sports wagering conducted

pursuant to chapter 23N.

45 of 49



943

944

945

946

947

948

949

950

951

952

953

954

955

956

957

958

959

960

961

962

963

11112 10892

SECTION 10. Scction 1 of chapter 271 of the General Laws, as so appearing, is hercby
amended by striking out, in line 4, the words “chapter 23K” and inserting in place thereof the

following words:- chapters 23K and 23N.

SECTION 11. Section 2 of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hercby amended by
striking out, in line 4, the words “chapter 23K” and inserting in place thereof the following

words:- chapters 23K and 23N.

SECTION 12, Section 3 of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hereby amended by
striking out, in line 1, the words “chapter 23K” and inserting in place thereof the following

words:- chapters 23K and 23N.

SECTION 13. Section 5 of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hereby amended by
striking out, in line 1, the words “chapter 23K” and inserting in place thereof the following

words:- chapters 23K and 23N.

SECTION 14. Section 5A of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is further amended by
inserting after the words “chapter 23K”, in line 32, the following words:- or sporls wagering

conducted pursuant to chapter 23N.

SECTION 15. Section 5B of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hereby amended by
striking out, in line 58, the words “chapter 23K” and inserting in place thereof the following

words:- chapters 23K and 23N.

SECTION 16. Scction 8 of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hereby amended by
striking out, in lines 10 to 11, the words “other game of chance that is not being conducted in a

gaming establishment licensed under chapter 23K™ and inserting in place thereof the following

46 of 49



964

965

966
967

968

969

970

971
972
973
974
975
976
977
978
979
980
981
982
983
984

985

11112 10892

words:- other game that is not being conducted pursuant to chapter 23K and any other sports

wagering that is not being conducted pursuant to chapter 23N.

SECTION 17. Section 17 of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hereby amended by
inserting after the words “chapter 23K”, in line 27, the following words:- or for the purpose of

sports wagering conducted in accordance with chapter 23N,

SECTION 18. Said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hereby further amended by striking

out section 17A and inserting in place thereof the following section:-

Section 17A. Except as permitted under chapter 23N, whoever uses a telephone, internet
or other communications technology or, being the occupant in control of premises where a
telephone, internet or other communications technology is located or a subscriber for such
communications technology, knowingly permits another to use a telephone, intermct or other
communications technology so located or for which such person subscribes, as the case may be,
for the purposc of accepting wagers or bets, or buying or selling of pools, or for placing all or
any portion of a wager with another, upon the result of a trial or contest of skill, speed or
endurance of man, beast, bird or machine, or upon the result of an athletic game or contest, or
upon the lottery called the numbers game, or for the purpose of reporting the same to a
headquarters or booking office, or who under another name or otherwise falsely or fictitiously
procures telephone, internet or other communications technology service for oneself or another
for such purposes, shall be punished by a fine of not more than $2,000 or by imprisonment for
not more than | year; provided, however, that this section shall not apply to use of telephones or
other devices or means to place wagers authorized pursuant to the provisions of section 5C of

chapter 128A.

47 of 49



986

987

088

989

990

991

992

993

994

995

996

997

998

999

1000

1001

1002

1003

1004

1005

1006

11112 10892

SECTION 19. Section 19 of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hercby amended by
inserting after the words “chapter 23K”, in line 19, the following words:- and shall not apply to

advertising of sports wagering conducted pursuant to chapter 23N.

SECTION 20. Section 20 of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hereby amended by
adding the following sentence:- Nothing in this section shall prohibit an operator licensed under
chapter 23N from posting, advertising or displaying materials relevant to its sports wagering

operations.

SECTION 21. Section 23 of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hercby amended by
inserting after the words “chapter 23K”, in line 31, the following words:- and shall not apply to

sports wagering conducted pursuant to chapter 23N,

SECTION 22, Section 27 of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hereby amended by
inserting after the word “thereto”, in line 15, the following words:- ; provided, however, that

such provisions shall not apply to sports wagering conducting pursuant to chapter 23N.

SECTION 23, Section 28 of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hereby amended by
inserting after the word “prescribed”, in line 12, the following words:- ; provided, however, that

such provisions shall not apply to sports wagering conducted pursuant to chapter 23N,

SECTION 24. Section 42 of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hereby amended by
inserting after the word “both™, in line 4, the following words:- ; provided, however, that such

provisions shall not apply to sports wagering conducted pursuant to chapter 23N.

SECTION 25, The Massachusetts gaming commission shall conduct a study on the

participation by minority business enterprises, women business enterprises and veteran business

48 of 49



1007
1008
1009
1010
1011
1012
1013
1014
1015
1016
1017
1018
1019

1020

1021

1022

11112 10892

cnterprises in the sports wagering industry in the commonwealth. The study shall include, but not
be limited to, an analysis of: (i) participation in activities related to the regulation, licensing and
promotion of sports wagering operators; (ii) the level of participation of women, minority and
veteran employees working for sports wagering licensees and employers; (iii) the level of
participation by minority-owned and women-owned businesses that contract with or provide
services to sports wagering licensees and employers; (iv) any barriers to employment of women
and minorities in the sports wagering industry; and (v) methods for increasing racial and gender
diversity in the workforce in the sports wagering industry, including whether to set reasonable
and appropriate goals and procedures for increasing the number of minority business enterprises
providing sports wagering industry-related services to sports wagering licensees and employers.
The commission shall report on its findings and submit any recommendations to the clerks of the
senate and house of representatives, the house and senate committees on ways and means, the
Jjoint committee on racial equity, civil rights, and inclusion and the joint committee on economic

development and emerging technologies not later than December 31, 2022.

SECTION 26. Section 135 of chapter 219 of the acts of 2016 is hereby repealed.

SECTION 27. Sections 2 and 6 shall take effect | year after the effective date of this act.

49 of 49



CITY OF GARDNER

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
Manca Annex, 115 Pleasant Street, Room 201 Gardner, Massachusetts 01440
Phone: (978) 630-4014 ¢ Fax: (978) 632-1905 ¢ CDBG (978) 632-3800

5 O
December 14, 2023 ;35
President Elizabeth J. Kazinskas — -
c/o Titi Siriphan, City Clerk i T TR :
City Hall BN

95 Pleasant Street, Room 121
Gardner, MA 01440

Subject: An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof, entitled
“Zoning,” to Amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled, “Marijuana Establishments” to Change the Method to
Increase the Quota Allowed by the Code of the City of Gardner. (Submitted by Councilor Dana Heath)

At the Planning Board meeting on Tuesday, December 12, 2023, the Planning Board voted
unanimously (5-0) to recommend the City Council approve and adopt the requested Zoning
Amendment as referenced above to increase the quota. The Planning Board also voted to hold a
Joint Public Hearing with the City Council.

Please do not hesitate to contact Trevor M. Beauregard, Director of Community Development
and Planning if you have any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely,

Mark M. Schafron
Chairman

Cc: Mayor

Planning Board

City Council

Trevor M. Beauregard, Director
Thomas Zuppa, Building Commissioner




11112

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER, CHAPTER
675 THEREOF, ENTITLED “ZONING,” TO AMEND SECTION 1070 THEREOF,
ENTITLED, “MARIJUANA ESTABLISHMENTS” TO INCREASE THE QUOTE

ALLOWED BY THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS:
SECTION 1: Subsection (C)(8)(b) of Section 1070 of Chapter 675 of the Code of the City of
Gardner be amended by replacing “20%” with “35%" as follows:

b) The number of marijuana retail establishments shall not exceed 35% of liquor

licenses issued for retail sale of alcohol not consumed on the premises in the City

of Gardner, said number to be rounded up to the next whole number;

SECTION 2: That this ordinance take effect upon passage and publication as required by law.



CiTY OF GARDNER

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

March 30, 2023 P

Elizabeth Kazinskas, Council President :ﬁ»:g:f
C/o Titi Sirphan, City Clerk
95 Pleasant Street, Room 121
Gardner, MA 01440

RE: Petition 10893 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675
thereof, entitled “Zoning,” to Amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled, “Marijuana Establishments”
to increase the quota allowed by the Code of the City of Gardner.

Dear President Kazinskas:

At its meeting on March 22, 2023, the Planning Board voted unanimously, 5-0, to recommend
approving the proposed zoning amendment referenced above based on the information provided

to them by the petitioner.

The Planning Board looks forward to joining the City Council at the joint public hearing
scheduled on Monday, April 3, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. Please contact Trevor Beauregard if you have
any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely,

Mark M. Schafron, Planning Board Chairman

C: Mayor Michael J. Nicholson
Trevor M. Beauregard, Director
Richard Hanks, Interim Building Commissioner

City Hall Annex, 115 Pleasant Street, Room 201, Gardner, Massachusetts 01440
Telephone: (978) 630-4011 & Facsimile: (978) 632-1905 ¢ CDBG (978) 632-3800




11112

City of Gardner - Executive Department
Mayor Michael J. Nicholson 502

YR i s
“3Y CLERK'S orp:
&PA{:@?@ S aia !
March 29, 2023 S
Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President Mr. Mark Schafron, Chair
And City Councilors And Planning Board Members
Gardner City Hall, Rm 121 Gardner City Hall, Manca Annex, Rm 201
95 Pleasant St 115 Pleasant St
Gardner, MA 01440 Gardner, MA 01440

RE: Written Testimony: Item #10893: An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter
675 thereof, entitled “Zoning,” to amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled "Marijuana Establishments” to
increase the quota allowed by the Code of the City of Gardner

Dear Madam President, Councilors, Mr. Chairman, and Planning Board Members,
I am writing in support of the aforementioned zoning amendment proposal.

When the retail sale of cannabis products was legalized in the Commonwealth in 2019, several
municipalities, including Gardner, took steps to heavily regulate the industry since we didn’t really know
what would happen once the cannabis industry became legalized.

Since then we have seen that commercial enterprises like these do not cause as much of a strain on our
services as we had originally been concerned about and have not been a public safety concern at all for us.

This proposal seeks to loosen the market constraints in the City and simply let the economic market be
the market. If the City does not have the capability of handling more up to four (4) retain cannabis stores,
then the market will correct itself for that.

An example of this can be seen with the regular tobacco/vape smoke shops that used to exist in the
Downtown area. These businesses, unregulated in terms of number of facilities that could open in the
City, were not marketed by the City and simply opened and then consolidated from five (5) to one (1) on
their own because that was all the market was able to carry.

The purpose of this amendment, while it also provides a financial benefit to the City through statutorily
required sales tax and host community agreement fees, is simply to relax some of the regulations placed
on this industry and let the City’s economy play itself out. This does still regulate the retail cannabis
industry to four (4) locations, but it at least looses the restriction of only being able to allow two (2)
locations in the City.

7 S

/ Michael J. Nicholson
Mayor, City of Gardner



10893112

CITY of GARDNER
Office of the City Clerk
95 Pleasant Street, Room 121
Gardner, MA 01440
*Tel. 978-630-4058 *Fax: 978-630-2589

CITY OF GARDNER
NOTICE OF JOINT PUBLIC HEARING, continued

Pursuant to G.L. 40A, § 5, notice is hereby given that the City Council and Planning Board will
conduct a Joint Public Hearing on Monday, April 3, 2023 at 6:30 P.M. in the City Council
Chamber, Room 219, City Hall, 95 Pleasant Street, Gardner, to consider amending Chapter 675,
the Zoning Code of the City of Gardner. The proposed Amendment involves changing items:

e 10891 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 Thereof,
entitled “Zoning,” to Change the Classification of Certain Parcels of Land Along Route
140.

e 10892 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof,
entitled “Zoning,” to add “Sports Betting” to the Zoning Table of Uses.

e 10893 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof,
entitled “Zoning,” to Amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled, “Marijuana Establishments”
to increase the quota allowed by the Code of the City of Gardner

Information regarding this amendment is available for viewing in the City Clerk’s Office, the
Department of Community Development and Planning (DCDP), or on the City’s webpage —
www.gardner-ma.gov.

All persons interested in this matter and desire to offer testimony are invited to attend the
hearing.

Tts Liphhim,

Titi Siriphan
City Clerk



10893 11112

CITY of GARDNER
Office of the City Clerk
95 Pleasant Street, Room 121
Gardner, MA 01440
*Tel. 978-630-4058 *Fax: 978-630-2589

CITY OF GARDNER
NOTICE OF JOINT PUBLIC HEARING

Pursuant to G.L. 40A, 8 5, notice is hereby given that the City Council and Planning Board will
conduct a Joint Public Hearing on Monday, March 20, 2023 at 6:30 P.M. in the City Council
Chamber, Room 219, City Hall, 95 Pleasant Street, Gardner, to consider amending Chapter 675,
the Zoning Code of the City of Gardner. The proposed Amendment involves changing items:

e 10891 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 Thereof,
entitled “Zoning,” to Change the Classification of Certain Parcels of Land Along Route
140.

e 10892 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof,
entitled “Zoning,” to add “Sports Betting” to the Zoning Table of Uses.

e 10893 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof,
entitled “Zoning,” to Amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled, “Marijuana Establishments”
to increase the quota allowed by the Code of the City of Gardner

Information regarding this amendment is available for viewing in the City Clerk’s Office, the
Department of Community Development and Planning (DCDP), or on the City’s webpage —

www.gardner-ma.gov.

All persons interested in this matter and desire to offer testimony are invited to attend the
hearing.

s i jphiam,

Titi Siriphan
City Clerk



11112 10893

City of Gardner - Executive Department
Mayor Michael J. Nicholson

February 3, 2023

Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President
And City Councilors

Gardner City Hall, Rm 121

95 Pleasant St

Gardner, MA 01440

RE: An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof, entitled
“Zoning,” to amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled, “Marijuana Establishments” to increase the
quota allowed by the Code of the City of Gardner.

Dear Madam President and Councilors,

As you are aware, in 2018, the retail sale of cannabis products became legalized in the
Commonwealth.

When the City adopted the sale of Marijuana inte our ordinances in November of 2018, the
ordinances limited the number of establishments that could open in the City for the retail sale of
cannabis to twenty percent (20%) of “license issues for retail sale of alcohol not consumed on the
premises.” (Code of the City of Gardner 675-1070(C)(8)(b)).

Whereas the City is currently issued ten (10} liquor licenses that fit this category, this provision
of the City Code limited the number of retail cannabis locations to two (2) locations in the City.

One of the main reasons this quota limit was drafted was due to uncertainty as to how this new
market would run its course in the City and the Commonwealth as a whole. However, since then,
we have seen that these businesses do not provide a detriment to the City, and have seen the
financial benefit the City receives from this as well.

The City currently has one retail location open with Sanctuary, with a second location — Bloc
Cannabis — permitted at the Timpany Crossroads location.

This attached ordinance amendment proposal would increase the number of locations allowed in
the City from two (2) to four (4). It is the belief of the Administration that this would allow more
economic activity in the City based on inquiries that we have seen, keep the industry within a
workable range that we are seeing in market trends with the cannabis industry around the
Commonwealth, and done with the full support of our public safety departments.

Respectfully Submitted,

Sl

Michael J. Nicholson
Mayor, City of Gardner

CC:
City Council Public Welfare Committee
Planning Board



11112 10893

CITY OF GARDNER POLICE DEPARTMENT

200 Main Street
Gardner, Massachusetts 01440
Phone: (978) 632-5600
Fax: (978) 632-9045

Eric P. McAvene Nicholas P. Maroni
Chief of Police Deputy Chief of Police
February 2, 2023

The Honorable Michael J. Nicholson, Mayor
Gardner City Hall

95 Pleasant Street

Gardner, MA 01440

Re: Retail Marijuana Ordinance

Dear Mayor,

After reviewing the proposed ordinance change from two retail dispensary licenses to four, | do not see any
issue with this particular change moving forward. Retaif marijuana dispensaries have been operating in the state for the
past few years and are closely monitored and regulated by the Cannabis Control Commission. Any retail dispensaries
are required to have pre-determined surveillance camera coverage (inside and outside) and purpose-built safes for
stored retail product. ThisIs in addition to physical security during operating hours.

The Gardner Police Department has responded to calls at the current recreational retail dispensary, but the vast
majority of the calls are general service calls (accidents, lockouts, burglar alarms, etc.}. The police department rarely
deals with anything else thera.

We have conducted “compliance checks” at Sanctuary using underage youths to enter and purchase cannabis
products. Sanctuary has never failed 3 compliance check. In fact, no youth has ever made it past the front door. 1 have
spoken to law enforcement in ather host dispensary locations and have not heard of any major issues,

If there are any further questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me,

Very truly yours,

(72

Eric P, McAvene
Chief of Police



11112 10893
City of Gardner

Department of Inspectional Services
115 Plecasant Street, Room 101
Gardner, MA 01440
Tel. (978) 630-4007 Fax: (978) 632-3313

Feb. 7, 2023

RE: Marijuana Retail Establishments
Dear Mr. Mayor,

[ believe the text amendment regarding the number of Marijuana Retail Establishments will only increase opportunities in
the City for revenue, and jobs. From a Zoning standpoint | have seen no ill effects from the existing Marijuana Facility. |
currently have an application for a Building permit for a second facility which would leave us with no additional licenses,
This would in effect tie our hands regarding further growth. | am in full support of this proposal.

Do not hesitate to contact me should you need any further assistance.

Roland Jean

Building Commissioner/Zoning Enforcement Officer
City Hall Annex

115 Pleasant St. RM 101

Gardner, MA 01440

(978) 630 4007

rjean@gardner-ma.gov

Mission Statement
To promote the safe and compatible development of the community through fair and consistent enforcement of
building codes and zoning ordinances



11112 10893

Mazor

From: John Richard

Sent: Wednesday, February 1, 2023 11:14 AM

To: Mayor

Subject: Marijuana Fees History

Hi Mike

Here you go.

Description 2023 Actual |2022 Actual 2021 Actual [2020 Actual 2019 Actual
MARIJUANA HCA FEES 5 26,367.11 | 5124,076.56 | $ 132,015.11 5 118,394.64 | 547,072.12
MARIJUANA SALES EXCISE TAX | $104,773.64 | $237,668.25 | $ 306,969.74 | $ 383,850.54 | $50,330.46
TOTAL $131,140.75 | $361,744.81 | S 438,984.85 | S 502,245.18 | $97,402.58

John Richard
City Auditor

95 Pleasant Street, Room 114
Gardner, MA 01440-2630
978-632-1900 ext 8020

GGARDNER
e 1




11112 10893

Maxor

From: Ashley Metivier

Sent: Wednesday, February 1, 2023 11:04 AM
To: Mayor

Subject: Liquor Retail - Not Consumed on Premise
Hi Mike,

We have 10 locations licensed as retail sale, not consumed on premises:

Malt/Wine Packaged Goods

Town Convenience, 13 Pine St

BP, 221 Main St

South Gardner Mini Mart, 94 S. Main St
lays Variety, 32 E. Broadway

Price Chopper, 500 Main St

All Alcohol Packaged Goods
Beauregard Liquors, 11 West 5t

Brazells, 201 Pleasant St
Hannaford, 14-20 Timpany Blvd
Gardner Spirits, 364 Timpany Blvd
Anthony’s, 12 Pearson Blvd

Let me know if you need any more information!

Ashley Metivier

Administrative Assistant/License Commission Clerk
City of Gardner

95 Pleasant 5t, Room 29

Gardner, MA 01440

P: 978-630-4013 Ext: 8042

F: 978-632-4682

E: AMetivier@gardner-ma.gov

Confidentiality Notice: This email message, including any attachments, is for the use of the intended recipient(s) only and may contain information
that is privileged, confidential, and prohibited from unauthorized disclosure under applicable law. If you are not the intended recipient of this
message, any dissemination, distribution, or copying of this message is strictly prohibited. If you received this message in error, please notify the
sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the original message and attachments. Please be advised that the Massachusetts Secretary of State
considers e-mail to be a public record, and therefore subject to public access under the Massachusetts Public Records Law, M.G.L. ¢. 66 section 10




11112 10893

Select Language ¥

C vrren é
Orcline e Lt
Chapter 675. Zoning

Article X. Supplemental Regulations
§ 675-1070. Marijuana establishments.

A. Purpose.

(1) To provide for the placement of marijuana establishments in appropriate places and under conditions
in accordance with the provisions of MGL ¢. 94G,

(2) To minimize the adverse impacts of marijuana establishments on adjacent properties, residential
neighborhoods, schools and other places where children congregate, local historic districts, and other
sensitive land uses potentially incompatible with said establishments.

(3) To regulate the siting, design, placement, security, safety, monitoring, modification, and discontinuance
of marijuana establishments.

B. Applicability.

{1) No marijuana establishment shall be established except in compliance with the provisions of § 675-
410 (Schedule of permitted uses) and this § 675-1070 (Marijuana establishments).

(2) Nothing in this section shall be construed to supersede federal and state laws governing the sale and
distribution of Class 1 Controlled Substances.

(3) If any provision of this section or the application of any such provision to any person or circumstance
shall be held invalid, the remainder of this section, to the extent it can be given effect, or the
application of those provisions to persons or circumstances other than those to which it is held invalid,
shall not be affected thereby, and to this end the provisions of this section are severable.

C. General requirements and conditions for all marijuana establishments.
(1) All marijuana establishments shall be contained within a building or structure.

(2) The hours of operation of marijuana establishments shall be set by the special permit granting
authority.

(3) No marijuana establishment property line shall be located within 500 linear feet of a lot line where the
following districts, activity, or uses occur:

(@) (Reserved)"
[11  Editor's Note: Former Subsection C(3)(a), regarding nonconforming residential dwellings, was
repealed 9-3-2019 by Ord, No. 1625.

(b} Any church, public or private school or child-care facility; or place where minors frequent (e.g., a
library, ball field, park, sports or family recreation facility, religious facility or the like);

{c) Any other marijuana establishment;
(d) Any drug or alcohol rehabilitation facility; or
(e) Any correctional facility, halfway house or similar facility.

(4) No smoking, burning or consumpfion of any product containing marijuana or marijuana-related
products shall be permitted on the premises of a marijuana establishment.



11112 10893
(5) No marijuana establishment shall be located inside a building containing residential units, including

transient housing such as motels and dormitories, or inside a movable or mobile structure such as a
van or truck.

(6) Marijuana establishments shall provide the Gardner Police and Fire Depariments, Building
Commissioner, Board of Health, and the special permit granting authority with the names, phone
numbers and e-mail addresses of all management staff and key holders to whom one can provide
notice if there are operating problems associated with the establishment.

{(7) The City shall have access at any time to inspect the premises of the marijuana establishment to
ensure compliance with local and state regulations, excluding client health information protected under
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996.

(8) Pursuant to MGL c¢. 94G, § 3(a)(2)(i) to (iii), the maximum number of licensed marijuana
establishments in the City shall be consistent with the following provisions:

(@) Shall not prohibit one or more types of marijuana establishment;

(b) The number of marijuana retail establishments shall not exceed 20% of liquor licenses issued for
retail sale of alcohol not consumed on the premises in the City of Gardner, said number to be
rounded up to the next whole number;

{c) The number of marijuana establishments shall not prevent the conversion of a medical marijuana
treatment center licensed or registered no later than July 1, 2017, to a marijuana establishment
engaged in the same type of activity.

[Amended 9-3-2019 by Ord. No. 1625)

Special permit requirements.

(1} No special permit for any marijuana establishment shall be issued without site plan approval first
having been obtained from the Planning Board, § 675-1010, Site plan review, of this chapter. In
addition to the standards set forth within, the site plan must meet all dimensional, parking,
landscaping, and signage requirements within this chapter.

{2) A marijuana establishment shall only be allowed by special permit from the Gardner Planning Board in
accordance with MGL c. 40A, § 9, subject to the following statements, regulations, requirements,
conditions and limitations.

(3) A special permit for a marijuana establishment shall be limited to one or more of the following uses
that shall be specified by the special permit granting authority:

(a) Marijuana cultivalor;

{b) Marijuana product manufaclurer;

(c) Marijuana retailer;

(d) Marijuana testing facility;

{(e) Marijuana transportation or distribution facility; and

() Any other type of licensed marijuana-related business.

(4} In addition to the application requirements set forth above, a special permit application for a marijuana
establishment shall include the following:

(@) The name and address of each owner of the establishment;

(b) Copies of all required licenses and permits issued to the applicant by the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts Cannabis Control Commission and any of its other agencies for the
establishment;

(c) Evidence of the applicant's right to use the site of the establishment for the establishment, such
as a purchase and sale agreement, deed, owner's authorization, or lease;

(d) Proposed security measures for the marijuana establishment, including lighting, fencing, gates
and alarms, etc., to ensure the safety of persons and to protect the premises from theft. A letter



11112 10893
from the City of Gardner Police Chief, or designee, acknowledging review and approval of the

marijuana establishment security plan is required. To the extent allowed by law, all such
documents shali be confidential.

(5) Mandatory findings. The special permit granting authority shall not issue a special permit for a
marijuana establishment unless it finds that:

{a) The establishment is designed to minimize any adverse impacts on abutters and other parties in
interest, as defined in MGL c. 40A, § 11,

(b) The establishment demonstrates that it will meet all the permitting requirements of all applicable
agencies within the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and will comply with all applicable state
laws and regulations; and

{c} The applicant has satisfied all the conditions and requirements set forth herein.

{6} A special permit granted under this section shall have a term limited to the duration of the applicant's
ownership or ieasehold of the premises as a marijuana establishment. A special permit may be
transferred only with the approval of the special permit granting authority in the form of an amendment
to the special permit with all information required in this § 675-1070.

E. Abandonment or discontinuance of use,
(1) A special permit shall lapse if not exercised within one year of issuance.

(2) A marijuana establishment shall be required to remove all personal property, including but not limited
to all material, plants, equipment, accessories, paraphernalia, and any other property no later than the
earliest of;

(a) Prior to surrendering its state-issued licenses or permits; or

(b) Within six months of ceasing operations.



CITY OF GARDNER

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
Manca Annex, 115 Pleasant Street, Room 201 Gardner, Massachusetts 01440
Phone: (978) 630-4014 ¢ Fax: (978) 632-1905 ¢ CDBG (978) 632-3800

December 14, 2023

(]
President Elizabeth J. Kazinskas -~
c/o Titi Sirphan, City Clerk : B
City Hall o
95 Pleasant Street, Room 121 T
Gardner, MA 01440 ,w 4

iy

Subject: An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof, entitled
“Zoning,” to Add “Sports Betting” to the Zoning Table of Uses. (Submitted by Councilor Dana
Heath)

Dear President Kazinskas:

At the Planning Board meeting on Tuesday, December 12, 2023, the Planning Board voted
unanimously (5-0) to recommend the City Council approve and adopt the requested Zoning
Amendment as referenced above. In addition, the Planning Board recommends to amend the
Table of Uses by replacing Permitted by right (P) with Special Permit Planning Board (SPPB) in
each of the relevant columns. The Planning Board also voted to hold Joint Public Hearing with
the City Council.

Please do not hesitate to contact Trevor M. Beauregard, Director of Community Development
and Planning if you have any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely, r

Mark M. Schafron
Chairman

Cc: Mayor

Planning Board

City Council

Trevor M. Beauregard, Director
Thomas Zuppa, Building Commissioner




11112

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER, CHAPTER
675 THEREOF, ENTITLED “ZONING,” TO ADD “SPORTS BETTING” TO THE
ZONING TABLE OF USES.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS;

SECTION 1: That Section 210(B) of Chapter 675, entitled “Word Usage and Definitions,” be
amended by adding the following definition to its list:

Sports Betting Facility — An entity licensed by the Massachusetts Gaming
Commission under the provisions of Chapter 173 of the Acts of 2022 of the
General Laws to conduct sporting and wagering events.

SECTION 2: That Section 54 of Attachment | of Chapter 675 of the Code of the City of
Gardner, entitled “Zoning- Table of Uses,” be adding the term “Sports Betting Facility” to the
description of use as follows:

54. Indoor amusement, fitness, or recreational place or place of assembly,
provided that the building is so insulated and maintained as to confine noise to
the premises and is located not less than 100 feet from a residential district, or
a sports betting facility.

SECTION 2: That Section 56 of Attachment 1 of Chapter 675 of the Code of the City of
Gardner, entitled “Zoning- Table of Uses,” be adding the term “Sports Betting Facility” to the
description of use as follows:

56. Public or commercial outdoor amusement or recreation use, or a sporis
betting facility, but not including outdoor drive-in movie theater.

SECTION 3: This this ordinance take effect upon passage and publication as required by law.




CiTY OF GARDNER

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
March 30, 2023

Elizabeth Kazinskas, Council President
C/o Titi Sirphan, City Clerk

95 Pleasant Street, Room 121

Gardner, MA 01440

RE: Petition 10892 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675
thereof, entitled “Zoning,” to add “Sports Betting” to the Zoning Table of Uses.

Dear President Kazinskas:

At its meeting on March 22, 2023, the Planning Board voted unanimously, 5-0, to recommend
approving the proposed zoning amendment referenced above based on the information provided
to them by the petitioner.

If the proposed amendment is approved, the Planning Board recommends the rewording of
number 54 to read:

Indoor amusement, fitness, recreational place, place of assembly, or a sports betting
facility, provided that the building is so insulated and maintained as to confine noise to
the premises and is located not less than 100 feet from a residential district.

In addition, due to the potential significant scope and complexity of such a project if
implemented under this proposed zoning amendment, the Board recommends changing the use
table for number 54 from permitted by right (P) to Special Permit Planning Board (SPPB) for
Commercial 1 and Commercial 2 zones; and number 56 from permitted by right (P) to Special
Permit Planning Board (SPPB) for Commercial 2 and Industrial 1 zones.

The Planning Board looks forward to joining the City Council at the joint public hearing
scheduled on Monday, April 3, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. Please contact Trevor Beauregard if you have
any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely,

Mark M. Schafron, Planning Board Chairman

C: Mayor Michael J. Nicholson
Trevor M. Beauregard, Director
Richard Hanks, Interim Building Commissioner

City Hall Annex, 115 Pleasant Street, Room 201, Gardner, Massachusetts 01440
Telephone: (978) 630-4011 & Facsimile: (978) 632-1905 ¢ CDBG (978) 632-3800



City of Gardner - Executive Department RE Cisy Vi
Mayor Michael J. Nicholson 27n #R,?g
?”?v 8L e Pﬁ I:ZI
:’t’("‘\: fo« P :'% § w‘,w ,"? -
ST i
& e »'%

March 29, 2023

Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President
And City Councilors

Gardner City Hall, Rm 121

95 Pleasant St

Gardner, MA 01440

RE: Item #: 10892 - Planning Board Follow Up

Dear Madam President and Councilors,

At the Planning Board Meeting of March 22, 2023, the Planning Board recommended changing
the proposal from a permitted use (“P”) in the table to a use requiring a special permit (“SP”).

The Administration is more than acceptable to this proposal and would be amenable to it being

made.

Respectfully Submitted,

A I

Michael J. Nicholson
Mayor, City of Gardner



. . i £
City of Gardner - Executive Department RE CE} VE&
Mayor Michael J. Nicholson SB¥nan
‘.:‘.‘ meg Pa hzl
Y ELERE - e
March 15, 2023 ARG P
Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President Mr. Mark Schafron, Chair
And City Councilors And Planning Board Members
Gardner City Hall, Rm 121 Gardner City Hall, Manca Annex, Rm 201
95 Pleasant St 115 Pleasant St
Gardner, MA 01440 Gardner, MA 01440

RE: Joint Public Hearing Written Testimony — Item #10892: An Ordinance to Amend the Code
of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675, thereof entitled “Zoning,” to add “Sports Betting” to the
Zoning Table of Uses

Dear Madam President and Councilors,

I am writing in favor of the Administration’s proposed Zoning Amendment to add the term
“Sports Betting,” to line items 54 and 56 the Zoning Table of Uses.

In May of 2018, the United States Supreme Court stuck down the federal Professional and
Amateur Sports Protection Act (“PASPA™)!, also known as the Bradley Act, as unconstitutional
in their ruling of Murphy v. National Collegiate Athletic Association %. This federal statue had
effectively outlawed sports betting nationwide, except for a few excluded states. The Supreme
Court had ruled this act as unconstitutional, thus paving the way for several states to legalize
sports betting.

In August of 2023, former Governor Charlie Baker signed House Bill 5164 into law, legalizing
online, retail, and kiosk sports betting in the Commonwealth for residents ages 21 and older.
Retail sports betting went live on January 31, 2023, and online sports betting launched on March
10, 2023. Kiosk sports betting will go live later this year.

There are currently three (3) approved retail sites and ten (10) approved mobile betting
applications. When kiosk sports betting goes live later this year, they will be allowed across the
Commonwealth in locations that follow a specific procedure as outlined by the new law.

The Supreme Court of the United States has ruled on several occasions, that under the First
Amendment of the Constitution, a municipality cannot outright ban a particular industry or
business from opening within its borders, but can limit where these businesses are located.

Since the City cannot bar this type of business from opening in Gardner, and since this type of
activity is not currently listed in the City’s Zoning Table of Uses, it leaves the City open to

128 U.S.C. ch.178 §3701 et seq.
2 Murphy v. NCAA, 138 S.Ct. 1461 (2018).



11112

liability of not being able to control whether these types of facility are located in largely
residential neighborhoods or in areas in the City that may not be suited for this type of activity.

As such, it is the request of my Administration that this use by added to the City Code’s Zoning
table of uses under Line 54: Indoor Amusement, and Line 56: Outdoor Amusement, as these
items fit the closest to the realm of sports betting.

This amendment to the Zoning Table of Uses, does not waive the other requirements these
locations would have to go through should any sports betting facility open in Gardner in the
future.

Per the requirements of the sports betting enabling legislation, any sports betting facility would
have to enter into a Host Community Agreement (“HCA”) similar to cannabis facilities in the
Commonwealth. The Expanded Gaming Act requires that all applicants for sports betting
licenses must first submit to the Massachusetts Gaming commission:

“a signed agreement between the host community and the applicant setting forth
the conditions to have a gaming establishment located within the host community;
provided, however, that the agreement shall include a community impact fee for
the host community and all stipulations of responsibilities between the host
community and the applicant, including stipulations of known impacts from the
development and operation of a gaming establishment.”

Additionally, after the HCA is approved by the City Council and signed by the Mayor, the City
Council must then annually vote to allow the proposed establishment to operate a sports betting
facility within the City at its location.

Lastly, before any facility should open, they must also go through the regular requirements for
site plan approval and Development Review Committee vetting, both listed in Chapter §675-
1010 of the City Code.

As such, this action to add this type of use to the Zoning Ordinances still requires this type of
industry to be heavily regulated and vetted by the City by both branches of its government and
its boards and commissions.

This action is simply being put forward to protect the City in the long run and pre-plan should
one of these facilities come to Gardner rather than waiting and reacting if this should ever come

up.
Respectfully Submitted,

L7

Michael J. Nicholson
Mayor, City of Gardner




11112

CITY of GARDNER
Office of the City Clerk
95 Pleasant Street, Room 121
Gardner, MA 01440
*Tel. 978-630-4058 *Fax: 978-630-2589

CITY OF GARDNER
NOTICE OF JOINT PUBLIC HEARING, continued

Pursuant to G.L. 40A, § 5, notice is hereby given that the City Council and Planning Board will
conduct a Joint Public Hearing on Monday, April 3, 2023 at 6:30 P.M. in the City Council
Chamber, Room 219, City Hall, 95 Pleasant Street, Gardner, to consider amending Chapter 675,
the Zoning Code of the City of Gardner. The proposed Amendment involves changing items:

e 10891 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 Thereof,
entitled “Zoning,” to Change the Classification of Certain Parcels of Land Along Route
140.

e 10892 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof,
entitled “Zoning,” to add “Sports Betting” to the Zoning Table of Uses.

e 10893 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof,
entitled “Zoning,” to Amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled, “Marijuana Establishments”
to increase the quota allowed by the Code of the City of Gardner

Information regarding this amendment is available for viewing in the City Clerk’s Office, the
Department of Community Development and Planning (DCDP), or on the City’s webpage —
www.gardner-ma.gov.

All persons interested in this matter and desire to offer testimony are invited to attend the
hearing.

Tts Liphhim,

Titi Siriphan
City Clerk



10892 11112

CITY of GARDNER
Office of the City Clerk
95 Pleasant Street, Room 121
Gardner, MA 01440
*Tel. 978-630-4058 *Fax: 978-630-2589

CITY OF GARDNER
NOTICE OF JOINT PUBLIC HEARING

Pursuant to G.L. 40A, 8 5, notice is hereby given that the City Council and Planning Board will
conduct a Joint Public Hearing on Monday, March 20, 2023 at 6:30 P.M. in the City Council
Chamber, Room 219, City Hall, 95 Pleasant Street, Gardner, to consider amending Chapter 675,
the Zoning Code of the City of Gardner. The proposed Amendment involves changing items:

e 10891 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 Thereof,
entitled “Zoning,” to Change the Classification of Certain Parcels of Land Along Route
140.

e 10892 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof,
entitled “Zoning,” to add “Sports Betting” to the Zoning Table of Uses.

e 10893 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof,
entitled “Zoning,” to Amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled, “Marijuana Establishments”
to increase the quota allowed by the Code of the City of Gardner

Information regarding this amendment is available for viewing in the City Clerk’s Office, the
Department of Community Development and Planning (DCDP), or on the City’s webpage —

www.gardner-ma.gov.

All persons interested in this matter and desire to offer testimony are invited to attend the
hearing.

s i jphiam,

Titi Siriphan
City Clerk



11112 10892

City of Gardner - Executive Department
Mayor Michael J. Nicholson

February 3, 2023

Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President
And City Councilors

Gardner City Hall, Rm 121

95 Pleasant St

Gardner, MA 01440

RE: Zoning Ordinance Proposal- Sports Betting Facilities

Dear Madam President and Councilors,

As you are likely aware, on August 10, 2022, former Governor Charlie Baker signed Chapter
173 of the Acts of 2022 into law, legalizing sports betting in the Commonwealth.

This new addition to the General Laws, some parts of which have already taken effect while
others will within the next few months, allows for the opening of new facilities across the
Commonwealth where individuals can gamble and place wagers on sporting games.

Currently, these types of facilities are not governed by our zoning ordinance, as they were not
allowed prior to the passage of this act. The attached ordinance proposal is being presented to
help protect the City so that we can regulate where facilities like this can go and make sure that
in the event that a facility like this looks to open in Gardner, it locates in a location that fits this
use rather than in a largely residential area that could cause disruptions to a neighborhood.

[ believe it is in the best interest of the City to be proactive in this matter in order to make sure
the City has the tools in place before any situations may arise.

Respectfully Submitted,

A Y/

Michael J. Nicholson
Mayor, City of Gardner

CC:
City Council Public Welfare Committee
Planning Board



11112 10892

CITY OF GARDNER POLICE DEPARTMENT

200 Main Street
Gardner, Massachusetts 01440
Phone: {978) 632-5600
Fax: (978) 632-9045

Eric P. McAvene Nicholas P. Maroni
Chief of Paolice Deputy Chief of Police
February 3, 2023

The Honorable Michael J. Nicholson, Mayor
Gardner City Hall

95 Pieasant Street

Gardner, MA 01440

Re: Sports Betting Zoning Ordinance

Dear Mayor,

) have reviewed the proposed addition of the new Sports Betting Ordinance and do not see any issues from the police
department. Any proposed facility should have a buffer between any residential zone and this ordinance reflects the
new law.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Very truly yours,

Eric P. McAvene
Chief of Police



11112 10892
City of Gardner

Department of Inspectional Services
115 Pleasant Street, Room 101
Gardner, MA 01440
Tel. (978) 630-4007 Fax: (978) 632-3313

Feb. 7, 2023

RE: Text Amendment
Dear Mr. Mayor,

Please accept this letter as my full support for your proposed text amendment to our Zoning Ordinance regarding sports
betting. | believe when new laws are enacted at a state level that a municipalities Zoning must change to reflect the new
law, or be forced to react to a potential problem.

Do not hesitate to contact me should you need any further assistance.

Nolal.

Roland Jean

Building Commissioner/Zoning Enforcement Officer
City Hall Annex

115 Pleasant St. RM 101

Gardner, MA 01440

(978) 630 4007

rjean@gardner-ma.gov

Mission Statement
To promote the safe and compalible development of the community through fair and consistent enforcement of
building codes and zoning ordinances



11112 10892

6107 ung ‘9 ddng

- 1 WAWYENY G19

dN

dS

dN

dN

,uado ay) ur 2Fe101s Juipnow
‘pied §,1010B1U03 pue ssauisng Sundenuo)

6%

=

dN

A[1oE)
uouNQLISIp asnoyalem ‘Jeuluwss) pnodsues |

‘8¢

dN

72

dN

sJaguassed
Joj uone)s proijiel 1o [eujuwLa) 10 UoHR]S sng

LS

dN

dN

dN

dN

dN

137891 1AW W
-9AUp JOOPINO FUIPN{oUL JOU NG 3Sh UOIIEIIII
JO JUAWISNWIR J0OPING [BIDIFWUIOD 1O DI|qn ]

9¢

dN

dN

dN

ds

dN

UOI)ea1321 J0OPING SULIBIjO

SINIDE] [RI2ISUIWLO0D JOY10 Jo syull Buneys
‘seae Fuidwed ‘sqn)d pfs ‘SHNOI s ‘sjood
Sunuunms se 4ans asn Jo suSUIYSI[qEISO
{RU0NEID21 10/PUR SON]D |212IDWLOI JOOPINO

66

dN

dN

dN

dN

dN

PUISIp

[eUDPISAL B WOY 139] 0] ueyl ss3] jou
Pa1ed0o] st pue sastwaid J1y) 0] asiou sulyuod
0} se paulejulsll pue paje|nsui os s1 Juipjing
ayy jeyy papracad ‘Ajquuasse Jjo aseld 1o aseid
[eUONESI521 10 ‘SS3UJ1J “JUIALIISAWE JoOpU]

ds

dN

dN

dN

Auadoad uo paniuad
2801015 (NM WOOIMOYS 10 90110 3|BSI|OYM

dN

dN

Ajuo sajdwies 100} 0y pajul)
931015 YA ‘LIOOIMOYS 10 IDILJO I[ESIOYM

dN

dS

ds

dN

WSWUIBLIUS [23IVEYIIW IO
A1 Yuar s38e1aAaq 10 poo} FulAlds JuLINE)SIY

‘1S

dN

dN

dS

dS

dN

dN

dN

ERINES
UI-9ALIP 1O Y3noay)-aAup apiacid 0] satmonns
weuaundde Juipnjour ‘pooj-isey ‘Jueine)sasy

08

dN

dN

ds

dN

ueme|say

oF

CANI

1ANI

[ TW0oD

TINOD

£dD

oy

THAS

asn) Jjo uopdpiasaq

dd00 YINGUVYD

JMUQ&«M\PNv muvABQALHv



11112 10892

HOUSE ..............No.5164

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts

The committee of conference on the disagreeing votes of the two branches with reference
to the Senate amendment (striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in place thereof
the text contained in Senate document numbered 2862) of the House Bill regulating sports
wagering (House, No. 3993), reports recommending passage of the accompanying bill (House,

No. 5164). August 1, 2022.

Jerald A, Parisella

Michael J. Rodrigues

Aaron Michlewitz

Eric P. Lesser

David K. Muradian

Patrick M. O’Connor

| of 49



(o8]

12

13

11112 10892

FILED ON: 8/1/2022

HOUSE ............... No.5164

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts

I the One Hundred and Nincty-Second General Court
(2021-2022)

An Act regulating sports wagering,

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives in General Court assembled, and by the authority
of the same, as follows:

SECTION 1. Section 7 of chapter 4 of the General Laws is hereby amended by striking
out clause Tenth, as appearing in the 2020 Official Edition, and inserting in place thereof the

following clause:-

Tenth, “Tllegal gaming™, a banking or percentage game played with cards, dice, tiles,
dominoes, or an electronic, electrical or mechanical device or machine for money, property,
checks, credit or any representative of value, but excluding: (i) a lottery game conducted by the
state lottery commission under sections 24, 24A and 27 of chapter 10; (ii) a game conducted
under chapter 23K; (iii) sports wagering conducted under chapter 23N; (iv) pari-mutuel wagering
on horse races under chapters 128A and 128C and greyhound races under said chapter 128C; (v)
a game of bingo conducted under chapter 271; (vi) charitable gaming conducted under said

chapter 271; and (vii) a fantasy contest conducted under scction 11M'%.

SECTION 2. Scction 7 of chapter 4 of the General Laws is hereby amended by striking

out clause Tenth, as inserted by section 1, and inserting in place thereof the following clause:-

2 0f 49



14

15

16

17

18

19

20

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

30

31

32

33

34

35

11112 10892

Tenth, “Illcgal gaming™, a banking or percentage game played with cards, dice, tiles,
dominoes, or an electronic, electrical or mechanical device or machine for money, property,
checks, credit or any representative of value, but excluding: (i) a lottery game conducted by the
state lottery commission under sections 24, 24A and 27 of chapter 10; (ii) a game conducted
under chapter 23K, (iii) sports wagering conducted under chapter 23N; (iv) pari-mutuel wagering
on horse races under chapters 128A and 128C; (v) a game of bingo conducted under chapter 271;

and (vi) charitable gaming conducted under said chapter 271.

SECTION 3. Chapter 12 of the General Laws is hereby amended by inserting after

section | 1M the following section:-

Section 11MY:. Notwithstanding sections 24, 24A and 27 of chapter 10, chapter 271 or
any other general or special law to the contrary, a person or entity that offers fantasy contests for
a cash prize to members of the public may offer a fantasy contest to residents of the
commonwealth pursuant to and in accordance with regulations promulgated by the attorney
general; provided further, for the purposes of section 7 of chapter 4, a fantasy contest shall not be
considered illegal gaming. “Fantasy contest” includes any fantasy or simulated game or contest,
including, but not limited to, any fantasy or simulated game or contest based on professional
sports events in which: (i) the value of all prizes and awards offered to winning participants are
established and made known to the participants in advance of the contest; (ii) all winning
outcomes reflect the relative knowledge and skill of the participants and shall be determined
predominantly by accumulated statistical results of the performance of individuals, including
athletes in the case of sports cvents; and (iii) no winning outcome is based on the score, point

spread, or any performance or performances of any single actual team or combination of such

3 of 49



36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

11112 10892

tcams or solely on any single performance of an individual athlcte or player in any single actual

event.

SECTION 4. Section 4 of chapter 23K of the General Laws, as appearing in the 2020

Official Edition, is hereby amended by inserting the following subscction:-

(42) regulate and enforce chapter 23N relating to sports wagering.

SECTION 5. The General Laws are hereby amended by inserting after chapter 23M the

following chapter:-

CHAPTER 23N

AUTHORIZATION AND REGULATION OF SPORTS WAGERING

Section 1. This chapter shall be known and may be cited as the “Massachusetts Sports

Wagering Act”.

Section 2. Notwithstanding any general or special law to the contrary, the operation of
sports wagering and ancillary activities shall be lawful when conducted in accordance with this

chapter and the rules and regulations of the commission.

Section 3. As used in this chapter the following words shall, unless the context clearly

requires otherwise, have the following meanings:

“Adjusted gross fantasy wagering receipts”, the total gross receipts from fantasy contests
as defined in section 11M1/2 of chapter 12, less only the total of all cash prizes paid to

participants in the fantasy contests; provided, however, that the total of all cash prizes paid to

4 of 49



35

56

57
58
59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66
67
68
69

70

71

72

73

74

75

11112 10892

participants shall not include the cash cquivalent of any merchandise or thing of value awarded

as a prize.

“Adjusted gross sports wagering receipts”, the total gross receipts from sports wagering
less the sum of? (i) the total of all winnings paid to participants; and (ii) all cxcise taxes paid
pursuant to federal law; provided, however, that the total of all winnings paid to participants

shall not include the cash equivalent of any merchandise or thing of value awarded as a prize.

“Aftiliate”, a person who directly or indirectly controls, or is controlled by, or is under

common control with, a specified person.

“Applicant”, a person who has applicd for a license to engage in activity regulated under

this chapter.

“Breaks”, the odd cents over any multiple of 10 cents of winnings per $1 wagered.

“Category 1 license”, a license issued by the commission that permits the operation of
sports wagering in person at a gaming establishment, as defined in section 2 of chapter 23K, and
through not more than 2 individually-branded mobile applications or other digital platforms
approved by the commission; provided, that the mobile applications or other digital platforms

shall be qualified for and issued a category 3 license.

“Category 2 license”, a license issued by the commission that permits the operation of
sports wagering in-person on the premises where either: (1) live horse racing is conducted in
accordance with chapter 128A or (2) the licensee is authorized by law to conduct simulcast
wagering on horse or greyhound racing, and through not more than 1 individually branded

mobile application or other digital platform approved by the commission: provided, that the

50f49



76

77

78

79

80

81

83

84

85

86

87

88

89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

11112 10892

mobile applications or other digital platforms shall be qualificd for and issucd a category 3
license; provided further, that the commission may issue a category 2 license to: (1) a person or
entity licensed by the commission in accordance with said chapter 128A to conduct a live horse
racing meeting, (2) a running horse racing licensee that conducted simulcast wagering as of
December 31, 2020 as authorized by law, or (3) a greyhound meeting licensee that conducted
simulcast wagering as of December 31, 2020 as authorized by law; provided further, a category 2
licensee shall make a capital investment of not Iess than $7,500,000 within 3 years after

receiving a sports wagering license.

“Category 3 license”, a license issued by the commission that permits the operation of
sports wagering through a mobile application and other digital platforms approved by the

commission.

“Close associatc™, a person who holds a relevant financial interest in, or is entitled to
exercise power in, the business of an applicant or licensee and, by virtue of that interest or
power, is able to exercisc a significant influence over the management or operation of a gaming

establishment or business licensed under this chapter.

“Collegiate sport or athletic event”, a sport or athletic event offered or sponsored by, or
played in connection with, a public or private institution that offers educational services beyond

the secondary level.

“Collegiate tournament”, a series of collegiate sports or athletic events involving four or

more collegiate teams that make up a single unit of competition.

“Commission”, the Massachusetts gaming commission established in section 3 of chapter

6 of 49



98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

11112 10892

“Electronic sports”, a single or multiplayer video game played competitively for

spectators.

“Governmental authority”, any governmental unit of a national, state or local body

exercising governmental functions, except the United States government.

“License”, any license applied for or issued by the commission under this chapter,

including, but not limited to: (i) an operator license or (ii) an occupational license.

“National criminal history background check”, a criminal history background check
conducted using the criminal history record system maintained by the Federal Bureau of
Investigation and based on fingerprint identification or any other method of positive

identification.

“Occupational license”, a license required to be held by an employee of an operator when
the employee performs duties directly related to the operation of sports wagering in the

commonwealth in a supervisory role.

“Official league data”, statistics, results, outcomes and other data relating to a sporting
event that is obtained pursuant to an agreement with the relevant sports governing body, or with
an cntity expressly authorized by the relevant sports governing body to provide such data to
sports wagering operators, which authorizes the use of such data for determining the outcome of

tier 2 sports wagers on such sporting event.

“Operator™ or “‘sports wagering operator”, any entity permitted under this chapter to offer
sports wagering to persons in the commonwealth through a category 1 license, category 2 license

ot category 3 license.

7 of 49



119

120

121

122

123

124

125

126

128

129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136

137

138

139

11112 10892

“Operator license”, a category 1 license, category 2 licensc or category 3 license to

operate sports wagering.

“Person”, an individual, corporation, association, operation, firm, partnership, trust or
*

other form of business association,

“Personal biometric data”, any information about an athlete that is derived from that
athlete’s physical or physiological characteristics, including, but not limited to, deoxyribonucleic
acid, heart rate, blood pressure, perspiration rate, internal or external body temperature, hormone
levels, glucose levels, hydration levels, vitamin levels, bone density, muscle density or sleep

patterns.

“Players association”, a professional sports association recognized by a sports governing

body that represents professional athletes.

“Professional sport or athletic event”, an event at which 2 or more persons participate in a
sport or athletic event and receive compensation in excess of actual expenses for their

participation in such event.

“Promotional gaming credit”, a sports wagering credit or other item issued by an operator

to a patron to cnable the placement of a sports wager.

“Qualified gaming cntity”, an entity that: (i) holds a gaming license as defined in section
2 of chapter 23K; (ii) (a) is licensed by the commission in accordance with chapter 128A o
conduct a live horse racing meeting, (b) is a running horse racing licensee that conducted
simulcast wagering as of December 31, 2020 as authorized by law or (c) is a greyhound meeting

licensee that conducted simulcast wagering as of December 31, 2020 as authorized by law; or

8 of 49



140

141

142

143

144

145

146

147

148

149

150

151

152

153

154

155

156

157

158

159

160

161

11112 10892

(iii) offers an interactive sports wagering platform through a mobile application or other digital

platform.

“Sports event” or “sporting event”, a professional sport or athletic event, collegiate sport
or athletic cvent, a collegiate tournament, motor race event, electronic sports event or other event
authorized by the commission under this chapter; provided, however, that “sporting event” shall
not include: (i) high school and youth sports or athletic events; or (ii) a collegiate sport or athletic
event involving | or more collegiate teams from the commonwealth unless they are involved in a

collegiate tournamenit.

“Sports governing body”, an organization that is headquartered in the United States and
prescribes final rules and enforces codes of conduct with respect to a sporting event and
participants therein; provided, however, that, notwithstanding the foregoing, the commission
shall adopt regulations to determine the governing body for clectronic sports for the purposes of

this chapter.

“Sports wager”, a wager on a sporting event or a portion of a sporting event.

“Sports wagering”, the business of accepting wagers on sporting events or portions of
sporting events, other events, the individual performance statistics of athletes in a sporting event
or other events or a combination of any of the same by any system or method of wagering
approved by the commission including, but not limited to, mobile applications and other digital
platforms; provided, that sports wagering shall not include the acceptance of any wager: (i) with
an outcome dependent on the performance of an individual athlete in any collegiate sport or
athletic event, including, but not limited, to in-game or in-play wagers; (ii) on a high school or

youth sporting event; (iii) on injuries, penalties, player discipline or replay review; and provided

9 of 49



162

163

164

165

166

167

168

169

170

171

172

173

174

175

176

177

178

179

180

181

182

11112 10892

further, that sports wagering shall not include fantasy contests as defined in section 11MY of
chapter 12. Sports wagering shall include, but shail not be limited to, single-game bets, teaser
bets, parlays, over-under, moneyline, pools, exchange wagering, in-game wagering, in-play bets,

proposition bets and straight bets.

“Sports wagering account”, a financial record established by an operator for a patron in
which the patron may deposit by any method approved by the commission and withdraw funds
for sports wagering and other authorized purchases and to which the operator may credit
winnings or other amounts due to or authorized by that patron; provided, however, that such
account may be established and funded by the patron electronically through an approved mobile
application or digital platform; and provided further, that a deposit into a sports wagering

account shall not be made using a credit card.

“Tier 1 sports wager”, a sports wager that is determined solely by the final score or
P g p 2 y by

outcome of a sporting event and is placed before the sporting event has begun.

“Tier 2 sports wager”, a sports wager that is not a tier | sports wager.
P g p g p 2

“Wager”, a sum of money or thing of value risked on an uncertain occurrence.

Section 4. (a) The commission shall regulate the conduct of sports wagering under this

chapter.

(b) The commission shall promulgate rules and regulations necessary for the
implementation, administration and enforcement of this chapter. The commission may
promulgate emergency rules and regulations in accordance with applicable procedures for the

promulgation of emergency rules and regulations.

10 of 49



183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193

194

195
196
197
198

199

200

201

11112 10892

(¢} The commission shall promulgate regulations to prohibit: (i) the purchase or other use
of any personal biometric data of an athlete for sports wagering or aiding a patron in placing a
wager with sports wagering operators; and (i) the following advertising, marketing and branding
activities: (A) advertisements, marketing and branding in such a manner that it is deceptive,
false, misleading, or untrue, or tends to deccive or create a misleading impression whether
directly, or by ambiguity or omission; (B) use of unsolicited pop-up advertisements on the
internet or by text message directed to an individual on the list of sclf-excluded persons
established pursuant to paragraph (2) of subsection () of section 13; (C) any form of advertising,
marketing or branding that the commission deems unacceptable or disruptive to the viewer
experience at a sports event; (D) advertising, marketing and branding deemed to appeal directly
to a person younger than 21 years old; and (E) advertising on any billboards, or any other public

signage, which fails to comply with any federal, state or local law.

(d)(1) The commission may promulgate rules and regulations including, but not limited
to, those governing the acceptance of wagers on a sports event, other event or a series of sports
cvents; types of wagering receipts which may be used; methods of issuing receipts; methods of
accounting to be used by operators; types of records to be kept; types of systems for wagering;

and any other sports wagering-related issues.

(2) The commission shall promulgate rules and regulations regarding protections for
patrons placing wagers and the promotion of social responsibility and responsible gaming that
shall include, but not be limited to, a requirement that an operator: (i) implement responsible
gaming programs that include comprehensive employce trainings on responding to
circumstances in which individuals present signs of gambling addiction; (ii} assess, prevent and

address problem gaming by an operator’s consumers; (iif) permit a consumer to permancntly

11 of 49



208

209

210

211

212

218

219

220

221

222

223

224

225

226

227

11112 10892

close an account registered to the consumer on any or all platforms owned or opcrated by the
operator at any time and for any reason; (iv) offer consumers access to their account history and
account details; (v) refrain from making claims as to a consumer’s winnings or money carned
that is not net of wagers placed; (vi) allow a consumer to withdraw funds without further
solicitation or promotion in the manner in which the funds were deposited; (vii) annually submit
a problem gaming plan for approval by the commission, in consultation with the department of
public health, that includes the objectives of and timetables for implementing the plan,
identification of the persons responsible for implementing and maintaining the plan, procedures
for identifying consumers with suspected or known problem gaming behavior, procedures for
providing information to consumers concerning problem gaming identification and resources,
procedures to prevent gaming by minors and self-excluded persons and any other information the

commission may require; and (viii) shall not offer or provide a line of credit to any consumer.

(3) The commission shall promulgate regulations that require mobile applications and
digital platforms authorized for sports wagering to prominently display upon each entry into the
application or platform the telephone number and website for a problem gambling hotline

overseen by the department of public health.

(e) The commission shall: (i) determine the eligibility of a person to hold or continue to
hold a license; (ii) issue all licenses; and (iii) maintain a record of all licenses issued under this

chapter.

(f) The commission shall levy and collect all fees, surcharges, civil penalties and taxes on
adjusted gross sports wagering receipts imposed by this chapter, except as otherwise provided

under this chapter.

12 of 49



232

233

234

235

236

242
243

244

246
247

248

11112 10892

() The commission shall have the authority to enforce this chapter and any rulc or
regulation of the commission and may request that the attorney general bring an action to enforce
this chapter or any rule or regulation of the commission by civil action or petition for injunctive

relief.

(k) The commission may hold hearings, administer oaths and issue subpoenas or
subpoenas duces tecum in order to enforce this chapter and the rules and regulations of the

commission.

(i) The commission may exercise any other powers necessary to cffectuate this chapter

and the rules and regulations of the commission.

Section 5. (a) A person shall not engage in any activity in connection with sports
wagering in the commonwealth unless all required licenses have been obtained in accordance

with this chapter and the rules and regulations of the commission.

(b) The commission shall not grant an operator license until it determines that each
person who has control of the applicant meets all qualifications for licensure. For the purposes of
this chapter, the following shall be considered to have control of an applicant: (i) a person who
owns 10 per cent or more of a corporate applicant and who has the ability to control the activities
of the corporate applicant; provided, however, that a bank or other licensed lending institution
that holds a mortgage or other lien acquired in the ordinary course of business shall not be
considered to have control of an applicant; (ii) a person who holds a beneficial or proprietary
interest of 10 per cent or more of a non-corporate applicant’s business operation and who has the

ability to control the activitics of the non-corporate applicant; and (iii) at the commission’s

13 of 49



251

252

253

254

255

262

263

264

265

266

11112 10892

discretion, an cxecutive, employce or agent having the power to exercise significant influence

over decisions concerning the applicant’s sports wagering operations in the commonweatth.

{c) A person having control of an applicant pursuant to subsection (b) shall submit to the
commission an application in a form determined by the commission. Each such person who is a
natural person shall also submit to the commission: (i) fingerprints for a national criminal records
check by the department of state police and the Federal Bureau of Investigation; and (ii) a signed
authorization for the release of the person’s information by the department of state police and the
Federal Bureau of Investigation; provided, however, that a person having control of an applicant
who is a natural person that has submitted to a national criminal records check in any jurisdiction
within the previous year shall not be required to submit to another national criminal records
check if such person submits to the commission the results of such previous national criminal
records check. Any applicant convicted of any disqualifying offense, as determined by the

commission, shall not be licensed.

(d) Each person licensed under this chapter shall give the commission written notice not
more than 30 days after any change to any material information provided in the application for a

license or renewal.

(¢) A commission employee shall not be an applicant for any license issued under this

chapter.

Section 6. (a} A licensed qualified gaming cntity may operate sports wagering upon the

approval of the commission.

(b)(1) The commission shall issue a category | license to any holder of a gaming license,
as defined in section 2 of chapter 23K, that meets the requirements of this chapter and the rules

14 of 49



271

272

273
274
275
276
277
278
279

280

282
283
284

285

286
287
288

289

11112 10892

and regulations of the commission; provided, however, that any holder of a category | license

shall not be issued a category 2 license.

(2) The commission shall issue a category 2 license to: (i) any holder of a license to
conduct a live horse racing meeting in accordance with chapter 128A; (ii) a running horse racing
licensee that conducted simulcast wagering as of December 31, 2020 as authorized by law; or
(ii1) a greyhound meeting licensee that conducted simulcast wagering as of December 31, 2020
as authorized by law; that meets the requirements of this chapter and the rules and regulations of
the commission; provided, however, that any holder of a category 2 license shall not be issued a
category 1 license; and provided further, that no more than 1 category 2 license shall be issued to

any | person, entity, or affiliate or close associate of such person or entity.

(3) The commission may issue a category 3 license to any entity that offers sports
wagering through a mobile application or other digital platform that meets the requirements of
this chapter and the rules and regulations of the commission; provided, however, the commission
shall issuc no more than 7 category 3 licenses that are not connected to a category | or category

2 license.

(4) A category 1 or category 2 licensee may enter into agreements related to mobile or
digital sports wagering with a category 3 licensee pursuant to the approval of the commission.
Nothing in this chapter shall require a category 3 licensee to partner with or have any

commercial relationship with a category 1 or 2 licensee.

(c)(1) A qualified gaming entity may submit to the commission a request for a temporary
license for the immediate commencement of sports wagering operations. Such request shall

include an initial licensing fee of $1,000,000 payable to the commission.

150f49



293

294

295

296

297

298

299

300

301

302

303

304

305

306

307

308

309

310

311

312

313

11112 10892

(2) Upon receiving a request for a temporary license, the executive director of the
commission shall review the request. If the executive director determines that the entity
requesting the temporary license is a qualificd gaming entity and has paid the sports wagering
initial licensing fee pursuant to paragraph (1), the commission shall authorize the qualified
gaming entity to conduct sports wagering for a period of 1 year under a temporary license or

until a final determination on its operator license application is made.

(3) All sports wagering conducted under authority of a temporary license shall comply

with the house rules adopted under section 10,

{d) Prior to issuing an operator license, the commission shall commence an investigation
into the suitability of the applicant. The commission may use information obtained from the
applicant pursuant to chapter 23K, chapter 128A, chapter 128C, or information from other
Jurisdictions where the applicant is authorized to conduct sports wagering. In evaluating the
suitability of the applicant, the commission shall consider the overall reputation of the applicant
including, but not limited to: (i) the integrity, honesty, good character and reputation of the
applicant; (ii) the financial stability, integrity and background of the applicant; (iii) the business
practices and the business ability of the applicant to establish and maintain a successful sports
wagering operation; (iv) whether the applicant has a history of compliance with gaming or sports
wagering licensing requirements in other jurisdictions; (v) whether the applicant, at the time of
application, is a defendant in litigation involving its business practices; and (vi) the suitability of
all parties in interest to the license, including affiliates and close associates, and the financial

resources of the applicant.

16 of 49



314

315

3l6

317

318

319

324

325

326

327

328

329

330

331

332

333

334

335

11112 10892

(¢) The commission may deny an application, if the commission determines during its
investigation that an applicant has failed to: (i) establish the applicant’s integrity or the integrity
of any affiliate, close associate, financial resources or any person required to be qualified by the
commission; (ii) demonstrate responsible business practices in any jurisdiction; or (iii) overcome
any other reason, as determined by the commission, as to why it would be injurious to the

interests of the commonwealth to award the applicant an operator license.

(f) Upon application by a qualified gaming entity that is not denied pursuant to subsection
(e) and payment of a $5,000,000 licensing fee, the commission shall grant an operator license to
a qualified gaming entity that provides the right to conduct sports wagering; provided, that the
qualified gaming entity shall meet the requirements for licensure under this chapter and the rules
and regulations of the commission. Such license shall be issued for a 5-year period, and may be
renewed for 5-year periods upon payment of a $5,000,000 renewal fee; provided, that the
operator shall continue to meet all requircments under this chapter and the rules and regulations
of the commission. The commission shall credit any initial licensing fee paid pursuant to
paragraph (1) of subsection (c) to a successful applicant for an operator license against the

licensing fee due under this subsection.

(2) An operator shall submit to the commission such documentation or information as the
commission may require to demonstrate that the operator continues to meet the requirements of
this chapter and the rules and regulations of the commission. An operator shall submit required
documentation or information no later than 5 years after issuance of its operator license and
every 5 years thereafter, or within lesser periods based on circumstances specified by the

commission.

17 of 49



336

337

338

339

340

341

342

343

344

345

346

347

348

349

350

351

352

353

354

355

356

11112 10892

(h) No licensee shall transfer an operator license, or any direct or indirect interest in the
license, without the majority approval of the commission. A person seeking to acquire such
license through a transfer shall qualify and otherwise be determined by the commission to be
eligible for licensure under this chapter. The commission may reject a proposed license transfer
or a proposed transfer of interest in the license to an unsuitable person and may reject a proposed
transfer that, in the determination of the commission, would be injurious to the interests of the
commonwealth. The commission may promulgate regulations governing this process which may

include assessment of a fee to reflect the cost associated with reviewing the proposed transfer.

(1) Applications for operator licenses shall be public records under section 10 of chapter
66; provided however, that trade secrets, competitively-sensitive or other proprietary information
provided in the course of an application for an operator license under this chapter, the disclosure
of which would place the applicant at a competitive disadvantage, may be withheld from

disclosure under said section 10 of said chapter 66.

Section 7. (a) An applicant for an operator license shall pay to the commission a
nonrefundable processing fee of $200,000 for the costs associated with the processing of the
application and investigation of the applicant; provided, however, that if the costs of the
investigation exceed the initial application fee, the applicant shall pay the additional amount to
the commission not more than 30 days after notification of insufficient fees or the application

shall be rejected.

(b) All fees in this section shall be deposited into the Sports Wagering Control Fund

established in section 14.

18 of 49



357

358

359

360

361

362

363

364

365

366

367

368

369

370

37

372

373

374

375

376

377

378

11112 10892

Scction 8. Section 8. (a) All persons employed by an operator to perform duties dircctly
related to the operation of sports wagering in the commonwealth in a supervisory role shall
maintain a valid occupational license issued by the commission. The commission shall issue such

occupational license to a person who meets the requirements of this section.

(b} An occupational license authorizes the licensee to be employed in the capacity
designated by the commission while the license is active. The commission may establish, by rule
or regulation, job classifications with different requirements based on the extent to which a

particular job impacts, or has the potential to impact, the lawful operation of sports wagering.

() An applicant for an occupational license shall submit any required application forms
established by the commission and shall pay a nonrefundable application fee of $100. An

employer may pay an application fee on behalf of an applicant.

{d) Not later than March 1 of the third calendar year following the issuance or renewal of
an occupational license, an occupational license holder shall pay a nonrefundable license rencwal
fee of $100 and submit a renewal application on a form established by the commission. An

employer may pay the license renewal fee on behalf of the licensed employee.

Section 9. Section 9. (a) The commission may deny a license to any applicant, reprimand
any licensee or suspend or revoke a license if the applicant or licensee: (i) has knowingly made a
false statement of a material fact to the commission; {ii) has had a license revoked by any
governmental authority responsible for regulation of gaming activities; (jii) has been convicted
of a felony or other crime involving embezzlement, theft, fraud, perjury, or a gambling-related
offense; (iv) has not demonstrated to the satisfaction of the commission financial responsibility

sufficient to adequately meet the requirements of the proposed enterprise; (v) has affiliates or

19 of 49



379
380
381
382

383

384

385

386
387
388
389
390

391

392

393

394

395

396

397

398

399

400

11112 10892

closc associates that would not qualify for a license or whose relationship with the applicant may
pose an injurious threat to the interests of the commonwealth in awarding an operator license to
the applicant; or (vi) in the casc of an operator or an applicant for an operator license, is not the
true owner of the business or is not the sole owner and has not disclosed the existence or identity

of other persons who have an ownership interest in the business.

(b) The commission may deny, suspend or revoke an operator license or reprimand any

licensee if the applicant or licensee has not met the requirements of this chapter.

Section 10. (a) An operator shall adopt comprehensive house rules for game play
governing sports wagering transactions with the operator’s patrons. The house rules shall specify
the amounts to be paid on winning wagers and the effect of sports event schedule changes, An
operator shall not conduct sports wagering until the commission has approved the house rules
and an operator shall not conduct sports wagering in a manner inconsistent with approved house

rules.

(b} The house rules, together with any other information the commission deems
appropriate, shall be accessible to any patrons of the sports wagering operator. The operator shall
make copies readily available to patrons and shall post the house rules as required by the
commission, including on a prominent place on the operator’s public website and mobile

application or other digital platform.

Section 11. (a) An operator shall employ commercially reasonable methods to: (i)
prohibit the operator, directors, officers, owners and employees of the operator and any relative
living in the same houschold as any such person from placing bets with the operator; (i1} prohibit

athletes, coaches, referees, team owners, employees of a sports governing body or its member

20 of 49



401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414

415

416

417

418

419

420

421

422

423

11112 10892

teams and player and referee union personnel from wagering on any sporting cvent of their
sport’s governing body; provided, however, that the operator shall use lists of such persons that a
sports governing body may provide to the commission to determine which persons are excluded
from placing wagers under this subsection; and provided further, that the commission may use
the list of barred employees from the operator and may work directly with a member team to
determine the risk posed by certain employees for obtaining nonpublic confidential information
on a sporting event and may remove an employee without knowledge of tcam strategy or game
operations from such a list if the commission determines any such risk is de minimis; (iii)
prohibit any individual with access to nonpublic confidential information held by the operator
from placing wagers with the operator; (iv) prohibit persons from placing wagers as agents or
proxies for others; and (v) maintain the security of wagering data, customer data and other
confidential information from unauthorized access and dissemination; provided, however, that
nothing in this chapter shall preciude the use of intemet or cloud-based hosting of such data and
information or disclosure as required by court order, other law or this chapter; and provided

further, that such data and information shall be hosted in the United States.

(b} A sports governing body or players association representing athletes who participate
in sporting events of the sports governing body may submit to the commission, in writing, by
providing notice in a form and manner as the commission may require, a request to restrict, limit
or exclude a certain type, form or category of sports wagering with respect to sporting events of
the sports governing body, if the sports governing body or players association believes that such
type, form or category of sports wagering with respect to sporting events of the sports governing
body: (i} is contrary to public policy; (ii) unfair to consumers; (iii) may undermine the perceived

integrity of the sports governing body, sporting events of the sports governing body or the

21 of 49



424

425

426

427

428

429

430

431

432

433

434

435

436

437

438

439

440

441

442

443

444

445

11112 10892

athletes participating therein; or (iv) affects the integrity of the sports governing body or sporting

events of the sports governing body or the athletes participating therein.

The commission shall request comment from operators on all such requests. After giving
due consideration to all comments received, the commission shall, upon a demonstration of good
cause from the requestor, grant the request. The commission shall respond to a request
concerning a particular event before the start of the event or, if it is not feasible to respond before
the start of the event, not later than 7 days after the request is made; provided, however, that if
the commission determines that the requestor is more likely than not to prevail in successfully
demonstrating good cause for its request, the commission may provisionally grant the request
until the commission makes a final determination as to whether the requestor has demonstrated
good cause. Absent a provisional grant by the commission, an operator may continue to offer
sports wagering on sporting events that are the subject of a request during the pendency of the

consideration of the applicable request.

(¢) The commission shall designate a state law enforcement entity to have primary
responsibility for conducting, or assisting the commission in conducting, investigations into
abnormal betting activity, match fixing and other conduct that corrupts a betting outcome of a

sporting event for purposes of financial gain.

(d) The commission and operators shall usec commercially reasonable cfforts to cooperate
with investigations conducted by sports governing bodies or law enforcement agencies,
including, but not limited to, using commercially reasonable efforts to provide or facilitate the
provision of anonymized account-level betting information and audio or video files relating to

persons placing wagers. All disclosures under this section are subject to the obligation of an

22 of 49



446

447

448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457

458

459
460
461
462

463

464
465
466

467

11112 10892

operator to comply with all federal, state and local laws and regulations, including, but not

limited to, laws and regulations relating to privacy and personally identifiable information.

(e) An operator shall immediately report to the commission any information relating to:
(1) criminal or disciplinary proceedings commenced against the operator in connection with its
operations; (i) abnormal betting activity or patterns that may indicate a concern with the
integrity of a sporting event; (iii) any potential breach of the internal rules and codes of conduct
pertaining to sports wagering of a relevant sports governing body; (iv) any other conduct that
corrupts a betting outcome of a sporting event for purposes of financial gain, including, but not
limited to, match fixing; or (v) suspicious or illegal wagering activities, including, but not limited
to: (A) use of funds derived from illegal activity; (B) wagers to conceal or launder funds derived
from illegal activity; (C) use of agents to place wagers; and (D) usc of false identification. An
operator shall immediately report information relating to conduct described in clauses (ii), (iii)

and (iv) of this subsection to the rclevant sports governing body.

(f) The commission and operators shall maintain the confidentiality of information
provided by a sports governing body for purposes of investigating or preventing the conduct
described in clauses (ii), (iii) and (iv) of subsection (e), unless disclosure is required by this
chapter, the commission, other law or court order or unless the sports governing body consents to

disclosure,

(g) With respect to any information provided by an operator to a sports governing body
relating to conduct described in clauses (ii), (1) and (iv) of subsection (c), a sports governing
body shail: (i) only use such information for integrity purposes and shall not use the information

for any commercial or other purpose; and (ii) maintain the confidentiality of such information,

23 of 49



468
469
470
471
472
473
474
475
476
477

478

479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486

487

488

489

490

11112 10892

unless disclosure is required by this chapter, the commission, other law or court order or unless
the operator consents to disclosure; provided, however, that the sports governing body may make
any disclosure necessary to conduct and resolve integrity-related investigations and may publicly
disclose such information if required by its integrity policies or if deemed by the sports
governing body in its reasonable judgment to be necessary to maintain the actual or perceived
integrity of its sporting events, and subject in all cases to the sports governing body’s compliance
with federal, state and local laws and regulations, including, but not limited to, laws and
regulations relating to privacy and personally identifiable information; and provided further, that
prior to any such public disclosure that would identify the operator by name, the sports
governing body shall provide the operator with notice of such disclosure and an opportunity to

object to such disclosure.

(h) An operator shall maintain records of all wagers placed by its patrons, including: (i)
personally identifiable information of a patron who places a sports wager through a mobile
application or other digital platform or a patron who places an in-person sports wager that
exceeds an amount determined by the commission; (ii) amount and type of the bet; (jii) the time
the bet was placed; (iv) the location of the bet, including the Internet Protocol address if
applicable; (v) the outcome of the bet; and (vi) records of abnormal betting activity for 3 years
after a sporting event occurs and video camera recordings in the case of in-person wagers for at
least | year after a sporting event occurs. An operator shall make these records available for

inspection upon request of the commission or as required by court order,

(i) An operator shall use commercially reasonable efforts to maintain, in real time and at
the account level, anonymized information for each patron, including: (i) the amount and type of

bet; (ii) the time the bet was placed; (iii) the location of the bet, including the Internet Protocol

24 of 49



49]

492

493

494

495

496
497
498
499
500
501
502
503
504
505
506
507

508

509

510

511

11112 10892

address if applicable; (iv) the outcome of the bet; and (v) records of abnormal betting activity.
The commission may request the information in the form and manner as it requires. Nothing in
this section shall require an operator to provide any information prohibited by federal, state or
local laws or regulations, including, but not limited to, laws and regulations relating to privacy

and personally identifiable information.

() If a sports governing body has notified the commission and demonstrated a need for
access to the information described in subsection (i) for wagers placed on sporting events of the
sports governing body for integrity monitoring purposes and demonstrated the capability to use
the data for the purpose of effectively monitoring the integrity of sporting events of the sports
goveming body, an operator shall share, in a commercially reasonable frequency, form and
manner, with the sports governing body or its designee the same information the operator is
required to maintain pursuant to said subsection (i) with respect to sports wagers on sporting
events of the sports governing body. A sports governing body and its designee shall only use
information received pursuant to this section for integrity-monitoring purposes and shall not use
information received pursuant to this section for any commercial or other purpose. Nothing in
this section shall require an operator to provide any information that is prchibited by federal,
state or local law or regulation, including, but not limited to, laws and regulations relating to

privacy and personally identiftable information,

(k}(1) An operator shall conduct a background check on each newly hired employee.
Background checks shail search for criminal history, charges or convictions involving corruption

or manipulation of sporting events and association with organized crime.

25 0f 49



512

313

514

515

516
517
518
519
520
521
522
523
524
525
526
527
528
529
530
531
532

533

11112 10892

(2) An operator shall conduct a single background check on any employee hired before
the operator was issued an operator license. Background checks shall search for criminal history,
charges or convictions involving corruption or manipulation of sporting cvents and association

with organized crime.

Section 12. (a) An operator shall: (i) employ a monitoring system utilizing software to
identify irregularities in volume or changes in odds that could signal suspicious activities and
promptly report such information to the commission for further investigation; provided,
however, that system requirements and specifications shall be developed according to industry
standards and implemented by the commission as part of the minimum internal control
standards; (ii} promptly report to the commission any facts or circumstances related to the
operation of a sports wagering license that constitute a violation of state or federal law and
promptly report to the appropriate state or federal authorities any suspicious betting over a
threshold set by the operator that has been approved by the commission; (iii) conduct all sports
wagering activities and functions in a manner that does not pose a threat to the public health,
safety or welfare of the residents of the commonwealth; (iv) keep current in all payments and
obligations to the commission; (v) prevent any person from tampering or interfering with the
operation of any sports wagering; (vi) ensure that mobile sports wagering occurs only using a
commission-approved mobile application or other digital platform to accept wagers initiated
within the commonwealth; (vii) maintain sufficient cash and other supplies to conduct sports
wagering at all times; (viii) maintain daily records showing the gross sports wagering receipts
and adjusted gross sports wagering receipts of the operator from sports wagering; (ix) timely file

with the commission any additional reports required by this chapter or by any rule or regulation;

26 of 49



534

535

536

537

538

539

540
541
542
543
544
545
546

547

548

549

550

551

552

553

11112 10892

and (x) usc commercially reasonable efforts to prevent a person under 21 years old from placing

a wager,

(b) Sports wagering operators may use any data source for determining;

(1) the results of any and all tier 1 sports wagers on any and all sporting events; and

(2) the results of any and all tier 2 sports wagers on sporting events of an organization

that is not headquartered in the United States.

(¢) A sports governing body may notify the commission that it desires sports wagering
operators to usc official league data to settle tier 2 sports wagers on sporting events of such
sports governing body. The notification shall be made in the form and manner as the commission
may require. Within 5 days of receipt of the notification, the commission shall notify each sports
wagering operator of the requirement to use official league data to settle tier 2 sports wagers. If a
sports governing body does not notify the commission of its desire to supply official league data,
a sports wagering operator may use any data source for determining the results of any and all tier

2 sports wagers on sporting events of the sports governing body.

(d) Within 60 days of the commission notifying a sport wagering operator of the
requirement to use official league data to settle tier 2 sports wagers pursuant to subsection (¢), or
such longer period as may be agreed between the sports governing body and the applicable
sports wagering opcrator, a sports wageting operator shall use only official league data to
determine the results of tier 2 sports wagers on sporting events of that sports governing body,

unless:

27 of 49



554
555
556
557

558

559
560

561

562
563

564

565

566

567

568

569

570

571

572
573

574

11112 10892

(1) the sports governing body or its designee cannot provide a feed of official league data
to determine the results of a particular type of tier 2 sports wager, in which case a sports
wagering operator may usc any data source for determining the results of the applicable tier 2
sports wager until such time a data feed becomes available from the sports goveming body on

commetcially reasonable terms and conditions; or

(2) a sports wagering operator can demonstrate to the commission that the sports
governing body or its designee will not provide a feed of official league data to the sports

wagering operator on commercially reasonable terms and conditions.

(e) In evaluating whether official league data is offered on commercially reasonable
terms and conditions for purposes of paragraphs (1) and (2) of subscction (d), the commission

may consider factors, including, but not limited to:

(1) the availability of official league data to a sports wagering operator from more than |

authorized source;

(2) market information, including, but not limited to, price and other terms and conditions
regarding the purchase by sports wagering operators of comparable data for the purpose of

settling sports wagers in the commonwealth and other jurisdictions;

(3) the nature and quantity of data, including the quality and complexity of the process

used for collecting the data; and

(4) the extent to which a sports governing body or its designee has made data used to
settle tier 2 wagers available to sports wagering operators and any terms and conditions relating

to the use of that data.

28 of 49



575
576
577
578
579
580
581

582

583
584
585
586

587

588
589

590

591

592

593

594

595

596

11112 10892

(f) Notwithstanding subscction (d) or any provision of this subscction to the contrary,
during the pendency of the determination of the commission as to whether a sports governing
body or its designee may provide official league data on commercially rcasonable terms, a sports
wagering operator may use any data source to determine the results of tier 2 sports wagers. The
determination shall be made within 120 days of the sports wagering operator notifying the
commission that it requests to demonstrate that the sports governing body or its designee will not
provide a feed of official lcague data to the sports wagering operator on commercially reasonable

terms.

() A sports governing body may enter into commercial agreements with a sports
wagering operator or other entity in which such sports govemning body may share in the amount
wagered or revenues derived from sports wagering on sporting events of the sports governing
body. A sports governing body shall not be required to obtain a license or any other approval

from the commission to lawfully accept such amounts or revenues.

Section 13. (a) Holders of category 1 and category 2 licenses may accept wagets on
sports events and other events authorized pursuant to this chapter in person at authorized

facilities.

(b) Holders of an operator license may accept wagers on sports events and other events
authorized pursuant to this chapter from individuals physically located within the commonwealth
using mobile applications or digital platforms approved by the commission, through the patron’s
sports wagering account. The branding for cach mobile application or digital platform shall be
determined by the operator. All bets authorized pursuant to this section must be initiated,

received and otherwise made within the commonwealth. Consistent with the intent of the federal

29 0f 49



597
598
599

600

601

602

603

604

605

606

607
608
609
610

611

612

613

614

615

616

617

618

11112 10892

Unlawful Internet Gambling Enforcement Act of 2006, 31 U.S.C. section 5361 to 5367,
inclusive, the intermediate routing of electronic data related to a lawful intrastate wager
authorized pursuant to this chapter shall not determine the location or locations in which the

wager is initiated, received or otherwise made.

(c) An operator may: (i) accept wagers placed by other operators and (ii) place wagers
with other operators; provided, that any operator that places a wager with another operator shall
inform the operator accepting the wager that the wager is being placed by an operator and shall

disclose the operator’s identity.

(d) An operator shall not accept: (i} a wager from a person who is less than 21 years of

age; or (ii) a credit card .

(e)(1) The commission or operator may ban any person from participating in the play or
operation of any sports wagering consistent with rules and regulations promulgated by the
commission. A list of all excluded patrons shall be kept by the commission and provided to cach
licensee. No patron on the exclusion list shall be permitted to conduct sports wagering pursuant

to this chapler.

(2) The commission shall establish a list of self-excluded persons from sports wagering.
A person may request their name to be placed on the list of self-excluded persons by filing a
statement with the commission acknowledging that they are a problem gambler and by agreeing
that, during any period of voluntary exclusion, they shail not collect any winnings or recover any
losses resulting from any sports wagering. The commission shall adopt further regulations for the
self-excluded persons list including procedures for placement, removal and transmittal of the list

to sports wagering operators. The commission may revoke, limit, condition, suspend or fine a

30 of 49



619
620

621

622
623

624

625

629

630

631

632

633

634

635

636

637

638

639

11112 10892

sports wagering operator if the operator knowingly or recklessly fails to exclude or cject from its
premises any person placed on the list of self-excluded persons. The list of self-excluded persons

from sports wagering shall not be open to public inspection.

(3) An operator that operates sports wagering through a mobile application or other
digital platform may allow patrons to set self-imposed limitations on sports wagering when the

patron joins the mobile application or digital platform.

(f) No employee may place a sports wager at any facility or through any mobile

application or digital platform owned or operated by their cmployer.

(g) Sections 24, 24A and 27 of chapter 10 of the General Laws shall not apply to an

operator conducting sports wagering in accordance with this chapter.

(h) Unclaimed winning sports wagers shall be retained by the operator for the person
entitled to the wager for | year after the game or event in which the wager was won. If no claim
is made for the wager within 1 year, the cash or equivalent cash value of the wager shall be

deposited in the Sports Wagering Control Fund established in section 15.

Section 14. (a) An excise is hereby imposed upon sports wagering operators in the
commonwealth at the rate of: (i) 15 per cent of the operator’s adjusted gross sports wagering
receipts from the operation of in-person sports wagering; (ii) 20 per cent of the operator’s
adjusted gross sports wagering receipts from the operation of sports wagering through mobile
applications and other digital platforms approved by the commission; and (iii) 15 per cent of the
adjusted gross fantasy wagering receipts of a person or entity that offers fantasy contests, as

defined in section 11M%. The accrual method of accounting shall be used for purposes of

31 of 49




640

641

642

643

644

645

646

647

648

649

650
651

652

653

654

655
656

657

658

659

11112 10892

calculating the amount of the tax owed by the licensee. The excise shall be paid to the

commission at the time provided for filing the return pursuant to subsection (b).

(b)(1) The excise imposed and collected pursuant to subsection (a) shall be due
and payable to the commission in monthly installments on or before the fifteenth calendar day

following the calendar month in which the adjusted gross sports wagering receipts were received.

(2) On or before the fifieenth calendar day of each month, the operator shall complete and
submit the return for the preceding month by electronic communication to the commission in a

form prescribed by the commission that provides:

(i) the total gross sports wagering receipts and adjusted gross sports wagering receipts

from operation of sports wagering during that month;

(ii) the total gross fantasy wagering receipts and adjusted gross fantasy wagering receipts
from the offering of fantasy contests, as defined in section 1 1MY: of chapter 12, during that

month;

(iii) the tax amount for which an operator or a person or entity that offers fantasy

contests, as defined in said section 11 M of said chapter 12, is liable; and

(iv) any additional information necessary in the computation and collection of the tax on
adjusted gross sports wagering receipts and adjusted gross fantasy wagering receipts required by

the commission.

(3) The excise amount shown to be due shall be remitted by electronic funds transfer

simultaneously with the filing of the return.

320f49



11112 10892

660 (4) When an operator’s adjusted gross sports wagering receipts for a month is a negative
661  number because the winnings paid to wagerers and excise taxes paid pursuant to federal law
662  excced the operator’s total gross receipts from sports wagering, the commission shall allow the
663  operator to carry over the negative amount to returns filed for subsequent months. The negative
664  amount of adjusted gross sports wagering receipts shall not be carried back to an carlicr month
665  and taxes previously received by the commission shall not be refunded unless the operator

666  surrenders its license and the operator’s last retum reported negative adjusted gross sports

667  wagering receipts.

668 (c) The excise on adjusted gross sports wagering receipts imposed by this section shall be
669  in lieu of all other state and local taxes and fees imposed on the operation of, or the proceeds

670  from operation of, sports wagering.

671 (d) Annually, not later than July 1, the commission shall publish on its website a report
672 stating the amount in fees, surcharges and civil penalties received from operators and taxes
673  received from operators and from people or entities that offer fantasy contests, as defined in

674  section 1IMY: of chapter 12.

675 Section 15. (a) There shall be established and set up on the books of the commonwealth a
676  separate fund to be known as the Sports Wagering Control Fund. The commission shall be the
677  trustee of the fund and shall expend money to finance the operational activitics of the

678  commission pertaining to sports wagering. The fund shall be credited with: (i) any appropriation,
679  bond proceeds or other monies authorized by the general court and specifically designated to be
680  credited thereto; (ii) the proceeds of any fees collected pursuant to this section unless otherwise

681  specified; (iii) fees collected pursuant to sections 7 and 8, (iv) breaks; and (v) such additional

33 0of 49




682

683

684

685

686

687

688

689

690

691

692

693

694

695

696

697

698

699

700

701

702

703

11112 10892

funds as are subject to the direction and control of the commission. All available money in the
fund that is unexpended at the end of each fiscal year shall not revert to the General Fund and

shall be available for expenditure in the subsequent fiscal year.

(b} The commission shall establish fees for any investigation into a violation of this
chapter or regulation promulgated hereunder by a sports wagering operator to be paid by the
sports wagering operator including, but not limited to, billable hours by commission staff
involved in the investigation and the costs of services, equipment or other expenses that are

incurred by the commission during the investigation.

(¢) Any remaining costs of the commission necessary to maintain regulatory control over
sports wagering operators that are not covered by: (i) the fees set forth in subsection (b); (ii) any
other fees assessed pursuant to this chapter; or (iii) any other designated sources of funding, shall
be annually assessed on sports wagering operators pursuant to this chapter in proportion to each
operator’s share of the commonwealth’s total adjusted gross sports wagering receipts. Each
operator shall pay the amount assessed against the operator not more than 30 days after the date

of the notice of assessment from the commission.

(d) If the fees collected pursuant to subsections (b) and (c) exceed the cost required to
maintain regulatory control, the surplus funds shall be credited in proportional shares against

cach sports wagering operator’s next assessment.

(¢) The commission shall annually assess and collect a $1,000,000 fee in shares to be
determined by the commission against each sports wagering operator that is not a category 1 or
category 2 gaming licensee, as defined in section 2 of chapter 23K. The fee collected pursuant to

this subsection shall be deposited into the Public Health Trust Fund established in section 58 of

34 0f 49



704

705

706
707
708
709
710
711
712
713
714
715
716

717

718
719
720
721

722

11112 10892

said chapter 23K and shall be used for the costs of services and public health programs provided

for in said section 58 of said chapter 23K.

Section 16. (a) The commission may assess a civil administrative penalty on an operator
who fails to comply with any provision of this chapter, house rules or any regulation or order
adopted by the commission; provided, however, that the noncompliance shall have occurred after
the commission has given such operator written notice of the noncompliance and the time stated
in the notice for coming into compliance has elapsed; provided further, that the commission may
assess a penalty without providing written notice if the failure to comply: (i) was part of a pattern
of noncompliance and not an isolated instance; (ii) was willful or neglectful and not the result of
error; (iii} resulted in a significant breach to the integrity of the operator or the sports wagering
laws of the commenwealth; or (iv) consisted of failure to promptly report to the commission any
knowledge of evidence or circumstances that would cause a reasonable person to believe that a
violation of this chapter has been committed. The civil administrative penalty shall be in addition

to any other civil penalty that may be prescribed by law.

(b) For the purpose of determining whether such noncompliance was part of a pattern of
noncompliance and not an isolated instance, the commission shall consider, but not be limited to;
(1) whether the commission had previously notified the operator of such noncompliance on more
than 1 occasion during the previous month or of any noncompliance with the same provision of a
law, regulation, order, license or approval as the current noncompliance during the previous 6-
month period; or (ii) whether the current and previous instances of noncompliance, considered
together, indicate a potential threat to the integrity of the operator and sports wagering in the
commonwealth or an interference with the commission’s ability to efficiently and effectively

rcgulate sports wagering in the commonwealth and enforce any regulation, license or order. If an

35 of 49



727

728

729

730

731

732

733

734

735

736

737

738

739

740

741

742

743

744

745

746

747

11112 10892

operator that has reccived a notice of noncompliance fails to come into compliance within the
time period stated in the notice, the civil administrative penalty may be assessed by the

commission upon the operator from the date of receipt of such notice.

(c) If the commission secks to asscss a civil administrative penalty on an operator, the
commission shall cause to be served upon the operator, by service in hand or by certified mail,
return receipt requested, a written notice of its intent to assess a civil administrative penalty that
shall include: (i) a concise statement of the alleged act or omission for which such civil
administrative penalty is sought to be assessed; (ii) each law, regulation, order, license or
approval that has not been complied with as a result of such alleged act or omission; (iii) the
amount that the commission seeks to assess as a civil administrative penalty for each alleged act
or omission; (iv) a statement of the operator’s right to an adjudicatory hearing on the proposed
assessment; (v) the requirements the operator shall comply with to avoid being deemed to have
waived the right to an adjudicatory hearing; and (vi) the manner of payment thereof if the
operator elects to pay the penalty and waive an adjudicatory hearing. After written notice of
noncompliance or intent to assess a civil administrative penalty has been given, each day
thereafter during which noncompliance occurs or continues shall constitute a separate offense
and shall be subject to a separate civil administrative penalty if reasonable efforts have not been

made by the operator to promptly come into compliance.

(d) If the commission seeks to assess a civil administrative penalty on an operator, the
operator shall have the right te an adjudicatory hearing under chapter 30A, the provisions of

which shall apply except when they are inconsistent with the provisions of this chapter.

36 of 49



748
749
750
751
752
753
754

755

756
757
758
759

760

761
762
763
764
765
766
767
768

769

11112 10892

(¢) An operator shall be deemed to have waived its right to an adjudicatory hearing
unless, not more than 21 days after the date of the commission’s notice that the commission
sceks to assess a civil administrative penalty, the operator files with the commission a written
statement denying the occurrence of any of the acts or omissions alleged by the commission in
the notice or asserting that the amount of the proposed civil administrative penalty is excessive.
In an adjudicatory hearing authorized under chapter 30A, the commission shall be required to
prove, by a prepondcrance of the evidence, the occurrence of cach act or omission alleged by the

commission in the notice.

(f) I an operator waives the right to an adjudicatory hearing, the proposed civil
administrative penalty shall be final immediately upon such waiver. If a civil administrative
penalty is assessed at the conclusion of an adjudicatory hearing, the civil administrative penalty
shall be final upon the expiration of 30 days unless an action for judicial review of the decision is

commenced under chapter 30A.

(2) An operator who institutes proceedings for judicial review of the final assessment of a
civil administrative penalty shall place the full amount of the final assessment in an interest-
bearing escrow account in the custody of the clerk or magistrate of the reviewing court. The
establishment of an interest-bearing escrow account shall be a condition precedent to the
Jurisdiction of the reviewing court unless the party seeking judicial review demonstrates, in a
preliminary hearing held not more than 20 days after the filing of the complaint, the presence of
a substantial question for review by the court or the operator’s inability to pay. Upon such a
decmonstration, the court may grant an extension or waiver of the intcrest-bearing escrow account

requirement or may require, in lieu of such interest-bearing escrow account, the posting of a

37 of 49



770

771

772
773
774
775
776
777
778
779
780
781

782

783
784
785
786
787
788
789

790

11112 10892

bond payable directly to the commonwealth in the amount of 125 per cent of the assessed

penalty.

If, after judicial review, in a case where the escrow account requirement has been waived,
and in cases where a bond has been posted in lieu of such requirement, the court affirms, in
whole or in part, the assessment of a civil administrative penalty, the commission shall be paid
the amount thereof together with interest at the rate provided in section 6C of chapter 231. If,
after judicial review in a case where an interest-bearing escrow account has been established, the
court affirms the assessment of such penalty, in whole or in part, the commission shall be paid
the amount thereof together with the accumulated interest in the interest-bearing escrow account.
If the court sets aside the assessment of a civil administrative penalty in a case where the amount
of such penalty has been deposited in an interest-bearing escrow account, the operator on whom
the civil administrative penalty was assessed shall be repaid the amount so set aside, together

with the accumulated interest thercon.

(h) Each operator who fails to timely pay a civil administrative penalty and each operator
who issues a bond under this section and fails to timely pay to the commission the amount
required for the bond, shall be liable to the commonwealth for up to 3 times the amount of the
civil administrative penalty, together with costs, plus interest accrued from the time the civil
administrative penalty became final and attorneys’ fees, including all costs and attorneys fees
incurred directly in the collection of the penalty. The rate of interest shall be the rate provided in
section 6C of chapter 231. The commission may require that the amount of a civil administrative

penalty imposed under this section exceed any economic benefit realized by a person.

38 of 49



791

792

793

794

795

796

797

798

799

800

801

802

803

8G4

805

806

807

808

809

810

811

11112 10892

(1) The commission may impose conditions on, suspend or revoke an operator’s license or
reprimand or assess a fine on an operator upon a finding that the operator: (i) has committed a
criminal or civil offense under this chapter or under any other law; (ii) is not in compliance with
sports wagering regulations promulgated pursuant to this chapter; (iii) is under criminal
investigation in another jurisdiction; (iv) has breached a condition of licensure; (v) has affiliates,
close associates or employees that are not qualified or licensed under this chapter with whom the
operator continues to conduct business or employ; (vi) is no longer capable of maintaining
operations as a sports wagering operator; or (vii) whose business practice, upon a determination

by the commission, is injurious to the policy objectives of this chapter.

Section 17. There shall be established and set up on the books of the commonwealth a
Sports Wagering Fund which shall reccive revenues collected pursuant to sections 6 and 14. The

commission shall be the trustee of the fund and shall transfer monies from the fund as follows:

(1) 45 per cent to the General Fund;

{2) 17.5 per cent to the Workforce Investment Trust Fund established in section 18;

(3)27.5 per cent to the Gaming Local Aid Fund established in section 63 of section 23K

(4) 1 per cent to the Youth Development and Achievement Fund established in section

19; and

(5) 9 per cent to the Public Health Trust Fund established in section 58 of section 23i.

Section 18. (a) There is hereby established and set up on the books of the commonwealth
a separate fund to be known as the Workforce Investment Trust Fund. There shall be credited to

the fund any sports wagering revenue transferred from the Sports Wagering Fund pursuant to

39 0f 49



812

813

814

815

816

817

818

819

823

824

825

826

827

828

829

830

831

832

833

834

11112 10892

section 16. Monies transferred to the fund shall be continuously expended, without regard for
fiscal year, exclusively for carrying out the purposes of this section. Money remaining in the

fund at the end of a fiscal year shall not revert to the General Fund.

(b) The fund shall be administered by the secretary of housing and cconomic
development. Money in the fund shall be competitively granted to develop and strengthen
workforce opportunities for low-income communities and vulnerable youth and young adults in
the commonwealth, including providing opportunities and strategies to promote stable

employment and wage growth.

{c) Eligible grant recipients shall provide opportunities which: (i) target at risk youth,
including resources to empower youth to succeed in the workforce; (ii) provide job skills
trainings, including programs offering trainings in multiple languages and areas for development,
including education and hands on skills; (iii) promote aduit literacy, including strategies to
master reading and writing and providing digital formats to increase accessibility; and (iv)
provide English language learning programs to promote access to the workforce. The secretary
of housing and economic development shall establish criteria to evaluate applications for the
grant program; provided, that the criteria shall include, but shall not be limited to, at risk
populations; provided further, that preference shall be given to eligible grant recipients providing
opportunities for individuals who meet at least 2 of the following: (i) is under 30 years of age;
(i) is a victim of violence; (iii) is over 18 years of age and does not have a high school diploma;
(iv) has been convicted of a felony; (v) has been unemployed or has had a family income below
250 per cent of the federal poverty level for not less than 6 months; (vi) lives in a census tract
where over 20 per cent of the populations fall below the federal poverty line; or (vii) is an

immigrant, refugee or person of color.

40 of 49



835
836
837

338

839
840
841
842

343

844
845
846

847

848

349

850

851

852

853

854

855

11112 10892

(d) Annually, not later than October 1, the secretary of housing and cconomic
development shall provide a report of the grants given and a breakdown of expenditures made by
the fund. The report shall be posted on the website of the executive office of housing and

economic development.

Section 18. There shall be established and set up on the books of the commonwealth a
fund to be known as the Youth Development and Achievement Fund. The fund shall be credited
any monies transferred from the Sports Wagering Fund pursuant to section 16 and all monies
credited to or transferred to the fund from any other fund or source. Expenditures from the fund

shall be subject to appropriation and shall be expended equally for the following purposes:

(1) For the purposes of providing financial assistance to students from the commonwealth
enrolled in and pursuing a program of higher education in any approved public or independent
college, university, school of nursing or any other approved institution furnishing a program of

higher education;

(2) For the purposes of funding after-school and out-of-school activities, including, but
not limited to, youth athletics and other activities that improve student health, literacy programs,
English language learning programs, academic tutoring, art, theater and music programs and

community service programs; and

(3) For the purposes of providing matching grants to elementary and secondary youth
sports, organizations, clubs and other school groups to attend events including, but not limited to,
academic events and programs, cultural events and award ceremonies both nationally and

internationally.

41 of 49



856
857
858
859
860
861
862
863
864
865
866
867
868
869
870
871
872
873
874
875

876

877

878

11112 10892

Section 20. The commission shall conduct a study into the feasibility of allowing retail
locations in the commonwealth to operate sports wagering kiosks. The study by the commission
shall include, but not be limited to, an analysis of: (i} the economic impact of this chapter on
retail establishments that serve alcoholic beverages for on premises consumption, such as
restaurants and bars; (ii) which retail locations have the ability to operate a sports wagering
kiosk; (iii) the economic impact to the commonwealth of authorizing retail locations to operate a
sports wagering kiosk; (iv) the methods and availability of payouts of winnings by a sports
wagering kiosks at retail locations; (v) the public health and safety impacts to the commonwealth
of authorizing retail locations to operate a sports wagering kiosk; (vi) the potential effect of
sports wagering kiosks at retail locations on problem gaming or gambling; (vii) the impact of
sports wagering kiosks at retail locations on minors; (viii) the economic impact of authorizing
this method of sports wagering on businesses owned by people of color; {(ix) the public health
and economic impact of this method of sports wagering as an alternative to the current black
market, particularly in communities far from authorized in-person sports wagering; and (x)
recommendations to ensure diversity, equity and inclusion are included in this method of sports
wagering. As part of the study, the commission shall consult retailers, convenience stores,
restaurants, women and minority owned businesses and small business owners. The commission
shall report on its findings and submit any recommendations to the clerks of the housc and
senate, the house and senate committees on ways and means, the joint committee on consumer
protection and professional licensure and the joint committee on economic development and

emerging technologies no later than December 31, 2022,

Section 21. (a} The commission may impose on any person who violates this chapter a

civil penalty not to exceed $2,000 for each violation or $5,000 for violations arising from the

42 of 49



879

380

881

882

883

884

885

886

887

888

889

890

891

892

893

894

895

896

897

898

899

11112 10892

same serics of events. Such penalty shall be imposed on all persons and is not limited to persons

licensed under this chapter.

{b) The commission may condition, suspend, reprimand, assess a fine or revoke an
operator license upon a finding that a licensce: (i) has committed a criminal or civil offense
under this chapter or under any other laws of the commonwealth; (ii) is not in compliance with
sports wagering regulations; (iii) is under criminal investigation in another jurisdiction; (iv) has
breached a condition of licensure; (v) has affiliates, close associates or employees that are not
qualified or licensed under this chapter with whom the licensee continues to conduct business or
employ; (vi) is no longer capable of maintaining operations as a sports wagering operator or data
supplier; or (vii) whose business practice, upon a determination by the commission,

is injurious to the policy objectives of this chapter.

Section 21. (a) Whoever, other than an operator under this chapter, engages in accepting,
facilitating or operating a sports wagering operation shall be punished by imprisonment in the
house of correction for not more than 90 days or by a fine not to exceed $10,000, or both; and for
a second offense, by imprisonment in the house of correction for not more than 6 months or by a
fine of not more than $50,000, or both; and in the case of a third or subsequent violation by
imprisonment in the state prison for not less than 1 but not more than 5 years or by a fine of not

less than $25,000 and not more than $100,000, or both.

Section 22. An operator shall not discharge, demote, suspend, threaten, harass or in any
other manner discriminate against an employee because of any lawful act done by the employee

to provide information, cause information to be provided or otherwise assist in an investigation

43 of 49



900

901

902

903

904

905

906

907

908

909

910

911

912

913

914

915

916

917

918

919

920

921

922

11112 10892

regarding any conduct that the employce rcasonably belicves constitutes a violation of this

chapter.

Section 23. (a) The commission shall develop an annual research agenda in order to
understand the social and economic effects of sports wagering in the commonwealth and to
obtain scientific information relative to the neuroscience, psychology, sociology, epidemiology
and etiology of sports wagering. The secretary of health and human services, with the advice and
consent of the commission, may expend funds from the Public Health Trust Fund established in
section 58 of chapter 23K to implement the objectives of the sports wagering research agenda;
provided, however, that the objectives of the sports wagering research agenda shall, to the extent
practicable, be substantially similar to the objectives of the research agenda established under
section 71 of said chapter 23K. The sports wagering research agenda shall also include, but not
be limited to: (i) an assessment of whether problem sports wagering is comorbid with problem
gambling; (i) an assessment as to whether the individuals participating in sports wagering are
different than those who participate in other forms of gaming or gambling; (iii) an assessment of
the impact of sports wagering on youth under the age of 25; (iv) an assessment of the impacts of
sports wagering on college athletics and professional sports; and (v) the costs of implementing

this chapter.

(b) Annually, the commission shall make scientifically-based recommendations that
reflect the results of the research under clause () to the clerks of the senate and house of
representatives, the senate and house committees on ways and means, the joint committee on
economic development and emerging technologies, the joint committec on mental health,
substance use and recovery and the joint committee on public health. The commission shall

consider any such recommendations, research and findings in all decisions related to cnhancing

44 of 49



923

924

925

926

927
928
929
930
931
932

933

934

935

936

937

938

939

940
941

942

11112 10892

responsible gambling and mitigating problem sports wagering. The recommendations shall be

posted on the commission’s website.

SECTION 6. Chapter 128C of the General Laws is hereby amended by inserting the

following new section:-

Section 9. Notwithstanding sections 1 to 8, inclusive, or any other general or special law
to the contrary, no racing meeting licensee, including licensees holding racing meetings in
connection with a state or county fair as defined in section 1 of chapter 128A, shall simulcast or
accept a wager on greyhound dog racing, and a running horse racing meeting licensee shall
conduct not less than 20 live racing days at a thoroughbred horse racing track, provided, the
commission may waive this requirement as necessary and appropriate to ensure the financial

ability of the licensee to develop and operate a race track.

SECTION 7. Section 1 of chapter 137 of the General Laws, as appearing in the 2018
Official Edition, is hereby amended by inserting after the figure “23K”, in linc 3, the following

words:- or sports wagering conducted pursuant to chapter 23N.

SECTION 8. Section 2 of said chapter 137, as so appearing, is hereby amended by
inserting after the figure “23K”, in line 3, the following words:- or an operator who offers sports

wagering pursuant to chapter 23N,

SECTION 9. Section 3 of said chapter 137, as so appcaring, is hereby amended by
inserting after the figure “23K”, in line 7, the following words:- or sports wagering conducted

pursuant to chapter 23N.

45 of 49



943

944

945

946

947

948

949

950

951

952

953

954

955

956

957

958

959

960

961

962

963

11112 10892

SECTION 10. Scction 1 of chapter 271 of the General Laws, as so appearing, is hercby
amended by striking out, in line 4, the words “chapter 23K” and inserting in place thereof the

following words:- chapters 23K and 23N.

SECTION 11. Section 2 of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hercby amended by
striking out, in line 4, the words “chapter 23K” and inserting in place thereof the following

words:- chapters 23K and 23N.

SECTION 12, Section 3 of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hereby amended by
striking out, in line 1, the words “chapter 23K” and inserting in place thereof the following

words:- chapters 23K and 23N.

SECTION 13. Section 5 of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hereby amended by
striking out, in line 1, the words “chapter 23K” and inserting in place thereof the following

words:- chapters 23K and 23N.

SECTION 14. Section 5A of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is further amended by
inserting after the words “chapter 23K”, in line 32, the following words:- or sporls wagering

conducted pursuant to chapter 23N.

SECTION 15. Section 5B of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hereby amended by
striking out, in line 58, the words “chapter 23K” and inserting in place thereof the following

words:- chapters 23K and 23N.

SECTION 16. Scction 8 of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hereby amended by
striking out, in lines 10 to 11, the words “other game of chance that is not being conducted in a

gaming establishment licensed under chapter 23K™ and inserting in place thereof the following

46 of 49



964

965

966
967

968

969

970

971
972
973
974
975
976
977
978
979
980
981
982
983
984

985

11112 10892

words:- other game that is not being conducted pursuant to chapter 23K and any other sports

wagering that is not being conducted pursuant to chapter 23N.

SECTION 17. Section 17 of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hereby amended by
inserting after the words “chapter 23K”, in line 27, the following words:- or for the purpose of

sports wagering conducted in accordance with chapter 23N,

SECTION 18. Said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hereby further amended by striking

out section 17A and inserting in place thereof the following section:-

Section 17A. Except as permitted under chapter 23N, whoever uses a telephone, internet
or other communications technology or, being the occupant in control of premises where a
telephone, internet or other communications technology is located or a subscriber for such
communications technology, knowingly permits another to use a telephone, intermct or other
communications technology so located or for which such person subscribes, as the case may be,
for the purposc of accepting wagers or bets, or buying or selling of pools, or for placing all or
any portion of a wager with another, upon the result of a trial or contest of skill, speed or
endurance of man, beast, bird or machine, or upon the result of an athletic game or contest, or
upon the lottery called the numbers game, or for the purpose of reporting the same to a
headquarters or booking office, or who under another name or otherwise falsely or fictitiously
procures telephone, internet or other communications technology service for oneself or another
for such purposes, shall be punished by a fine of not more than $2,000 or by imprisonment for
not more than | year; provided, however, that this section shall not apply to use of telephones or
other devices or means to place wagers authorized pursuant to the provisions of section 5C of

chapter 128A.

47 of 49



986

987

088

989

990

991

992

993

994

995

996

997

998

999

1000

1001

1002

1003

1004

1005

1006

11112 10892

SECTION 19. Section 19 of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hercby amended by
inserting after the words “chapter 23K”, in line 19, the following words:- and shall not apply to

advertising of sports wagering conducted pursuant to chapter 23N.

SECTION 20. Section 20 of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hereby amended by
adding the following sentence:- Nothing in this section shall prohibit an operator licensed under
chapter 23N from posting, advertising or displaying materials relevant to its sports wagering

operations.

SECTION 21. Section 23 of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hercby amended by
inserting after the words “chapter 23K”, in line 31, the following words:- and shall not apply to

sports wagering conducted pursuant to chapter 23N,

SECTION 22, Section 27 of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hereby amended by
inserting after the word “thereto”, in line 15, the following words:- ; provided, however, that

such provisions shall not apply to sports wagering conducting pursuant to chapter 23N.

SECTION 23, Section 28 of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hereby amended by
inserting after the word “prescribed”, in line 12, the following words:- ; provided, however, that

such provisions shall not apply to sports wagering conducted pursuant to chapter 23N,

SECTION 24. Section 42 of said chapter 271, as so appearing, is hereby amended by
inserting after the word “both™, in line 4, the following words:- ; provided, however, that such

provisions shall not apply to sports wagering conducted pursuant to chapter 23N.

SECTION 25, The Massachusetts gaming commission shall conduct a study on the

participation by minority business enterprises, women business enterprises and veteran business

48 of 49



1007
1008
1009
1010
1011
1012
1013
1014
1015
1016
1017
1018
1019

1020

1021

1022

11112 10892

cnterprises in the sports wagering industry in the commonwealth. The study shall include, but not
be limited to, an analysis of: (i) participation in activities related to the regulation, licensing and
promotion of sports wagering operators; (ii) the level of participation of women, minority and
veteran employees working for sports wagering licensees and employers; (iii) the level of
participation by minority-owned and women-owned businesses that contract with or provide
services to sports wagering licensees and employers; (iv) any barriers to employment of women
and minorities in the sports wagering industry; and (v) methods for increasing racial and gender
diversity in the workforce in the sports wagering industry, including whether to set reasonable
and appropriate goals and procedures for increasing the number of minority business enterprises
providing sports wagering industry-related services to sports wagering licensees and employers.
The commission shall report on its findings and submit any recommendations to the clerks of the
senate and house of representatives, the house and senate committees on ways and means, the
Jjoint committee on racial equity, civil rights, and inclusion and the joint committee on economic

development and emerging technologies not later than December 31, 2022.

SECTION 26. Section 135 of chapter 219 of the acts of 2016 is hereby repealed.

SECTION 27. Sections 2 and 6 shall take effect | year after the effective date of this act.

49 of 49



CITY OF GARDNER
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

Manca Annex, 115 Pleasant Street, Room 201 Gardner, Massachusetts 01440
Phone: (978) 630-4014 ¢ Fax: (978) 632-1905 ¢ CDBG (978) 632-3800

February 23, 2024

President Elizabeth J. Kazinskas 38 ey

c/o Titi Sirphan, City Clerk Ted e
City Hall - =z -
95 Pleasant Street, Room 121 VLR :
Gardner, MA 01440 e

i

Subject: Zoning Amendment - Marijuana Establishments / Final Recommendation

Following the City Council/Planning Board Joint Public Hearing held on Tuesday, January 16,
2024, on the above referenced item, the Planning Board held a meeting on February 20, 2024,
and voted unanimously to recommend adoption of the subject zoning amendment by the City
Council.

Please feel free to contact Trevor M. Beauregard, Director of Community Development and
Planning if you have any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely,

Mark M. Schafron
Chairman

Cc: Mayor

Planning Board

City Council

Trevor M. Beauregard, Director
Thomas Zuppa, Building Commissioner




AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER, CHAPTER
675 THEREOF, ENTITLED “ZONING,” TO AMEND SECTION 1070 THEREOF,
ENTITLED, “MARIJUANA ESTABLISHMENTS” TO INCREASE THE QUOTE
ALLOWED BY THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1: Subsection (C)(8)(b) of Section 1070 of Chapter 675 of the Code of the City of
Gardner be amended by replacing “20%” with “35%” as follows:

b) The number of marijuana retail establishments shall not exceed 35% of liquor licenses issued
for retail sale of alcohol not consumed on the premises in the City of Gardner, said number to be

rounded up to the next whole number;

SECTION 2: That this ordinance take effect upon passage and publication as required by law.



11113

CITY of GARDNER
Office of the City Clerk
95 Pleasant Street, Room 121
Gardner, MA 01440
*Tel. 978-630-4058 *Fax: 978-630-2589

CITY OF GARDNER
NOTICE OF JOINT PUBLIC HEARING

Pursuant to G.L. 40A, § 5, notice is hereby given that the City Council and Planning Board will
conduct a Joint Public Hearing on Tuesday, January 16, 2024 at 6:45 P.M. in the City
Council Chamber, Room 219, City Hall, 95 Pleasant Street, Gardner, to consider amending
Chapter 675, the Zoning Code of the City of Gardner. The proposed Amendment involves
changing items:

11112 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675
thereof, entitled “Zoning,” to Add “Sports Betting” to the Zoning Table of
Uses. (Submitted by Councillor Dana Heath; In the City Council,
Referred to Planning Board 12/4/2023, More Time 12/18/2023)

11113 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675
thereof, entitled “Zoning,” to Amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled,
“Marijuana Establishments” to Change the Method to Increase the Quota
Allowed by the Code of the City of Gardner. (Submitted by Councillor
Dana Heath, In the City Council, Referred to Planning Board 12/4/2023;
More Time 12/18/2023)

Information regarding this amendment is available for viewing in the City Clerk’s Office, the
Department of Community Development and Planning (DCDP), or on the City’s webpage —
www.gardner-ma.gov.

All persons interested in this matter and desire to offer testimony are invited to attend the
hearing.

Tts i jphiiam,

Titi Siriphan
City Clerk


http://www.gardner-ma.gov/

CITY OF GARDNER

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
Manca Annex, 115 Pleasant Street, Room 201 Gardner, Massachusetts 01440
Phone: (978) 630-4014 ¢ Fax: (978) 632-1905 ¢ CDBG (978) 632-3800

5 O
December 14, 2023 ;35
President Elizabeth J. Kazinskas — -
c/o Titi Siriphan, City Clerk i T TR :
City Hall BN

95 Pleasant Street, Room 121
Gardner, MA 01440

Subject: An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof, entitled
“Zoning,” to Amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled, “Marijuana Establishments” to Change the Method to
Increase the Quota Allowed by the Code of the City of Gardner. (Submitted by Councilor Dana Heath)

At the Planning Board meeting on Tuesday, December 12, 2023, the Planning Board voted
unanimously (5-0) to recommend the City Council approve and adopt the requested Zoning
Amendment as referenced above to increase the quota. The Planning Board also voted to hold a
Joint Public Hearing with the City Council.

Please do not hesitate to contact Trevor M. Beauregard, Director of Community Development
and Planning if you have any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely,

Mark M. Schafron
Chairman

Cc: Mayor

Planning Board

City Council

Trevor M. Beauregard, Director
Thomas Zuppa, Building Commissioner




11113

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER, CHAPTER
675 THEREOF, ENTITLED “ZONING,” TO AMEND SECTION 1070 THEREOF,
ENTITLED, “MARIJUANA ESTABLISHMENTS” TO INCREASE THE QUOTE

ALLOWED BY THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER AS FOLLOWS:
SECTION 1: Subsection (C)(8)(b) of Section 1070 of Chapter 675 of the Code of the City of
Gardner be amended by replacing “20%” with “35%" as follows:

b) The number of marijuana retail establishments shall not exceed 35% of liquor

licenses issued for retail sale of alcohol not consumed on the premises in the City

of Gardner, said number to be rounded up to the next whole number;

SECTION 2: That this ordinance take effect upon passage and publication as required by law.



CiTY OF GARDNER

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

March 30, 2023 P

Elizabeth Kazinskas, Council President :ﬁ»:g:f
C/o Titi Sirphan, City Clerk
95 Pleasant Street, Room 121
Gardner, MA 01440

RE: Petition 10893 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675
thereof, entitled “Zoning,” to Amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled, “Marijuana Establishments”
to increase the quota allowed by the Code of the City of Gardner.

Dear President Kazinskas:

At its meeting on March 22, 2023, the Planning Board voted unanimously, 5-0, to recommend
approving the proposed zoning amendment referenced above based on the information provided

to them by the petitioner.

The Planning Board looks forward to joining the City Council at the joint public hearing
scheduled on Monday, April 3, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. Please contact Trevor Beauregard if you have
any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely,

Mark M. Schafron, Planning Board Chairman

C: Mayor Michael J. Nicholson
Trevor M. Beauregard, Director
Richard Hanks, Interim Building Commissioner

City Hall Annex, 115 Pleasant Street, Room 201, Gardner, Massachusetts 01440
Telephone: (978) 630-4011 & Facsimile: (978) 632-1905 ¢ CDBG (978) 632-3800




11113

City of Gardner - Executive Department
Mayor Michael J. Nicholson 502

YR i s
“3Y CLERK'S orp:
&PA{:@?@ S aia !
March 29, 2023 S
Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President Mr. Mark Schafron, Chair
And City Councilors And Planning Board Members
Gardner City Hall, Rm 121 Gardner City Hall, Manca Annex, Rm 201
95 Pleasant St 115 Pleasant St
Gardner, MA 01440 Gardner, MA 01440

RE: Written Testimony: Item #10893: An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter
675 thereof, entitled “Zoning,” to amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled "Marijuana Establishments” to
increase the quota allowed by the Code of the City of Gardner

Dear Madam President, Councilors, Mr. Chairman, and Planning Board Members,
I am writing in support of the aforementioned zoning amendment proposal.

When the retail sale of cannabis products was legalized in the Commonwealth in 2019, several
municipalities, including Gardner, took steps to heavily regulate the industry since we didn’t really know
what would happen once the cannabis industry became legalized.

Since then we have seen that commercial enterprises like these do not cause as much of a strain on our
services as we had originally been concerned about and have not been a public safety concern at all for us.

This proposal seeks to loosen the market constraints in the City and simply let the economic market be
the market. If the City does not have the capability of handling more up to four (4) retain cannabis stores,
then the market will correct itself for that.

An example of this can be seen with the regular tobacco/vape smoke shops that used to exist in the
Downtown area. These businesses, unregulated in terms of number of facilities that could open in the
City, were not marketed by the City and simply opened and then consolidated from five (5) to one (1) on
their own because that was all the market was able to carry.

The purpose of this amendment, while it also provides a financial benefit to the City through statutorily
required sales tax and host community agreement fees, is simply to relax some of the regulations placed
on this industry and let the City’s economy play itself out. This does still regulate the retail cannabis
industry to four (4) locations, but it at least looses the restriction of only being able to allow two (2)
locations in the City.

7 S

/ Michael J. Nicholson
Mayor, City of Gardner



10893113

CITY of GARDNER
Office of the City Clerk
95 Pleasant Street, Room 121
Gardner, MA 01440
*Tel. 978-630-4058 *Fax: 978-630-2589

CITY OF GARDNER
NOTICE OF JOINT PUBLIC HEARING, continued

Pursuant to G.L. 40A, § 5, notice is hereby given that the City Council and Planning Board will
conduct a Joint Public Hearing on Monday, April 3, 2023 at 6:30 P.M. in the City Council
Chamber, Room 219, City Hall, 95 Pleasant Street, Gardner, to consider amending Chapter 675,
the Zoning Code of the City of Gardner. The proposed Amendment involves changing items:

e 10891 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 Thereof,
entitled “Zoning,” to Change the Classification of Certain Parcels of Land Along Route
140.

e 10892 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof,
entitled “Zoning,” to add “Sports Betting” to the Zoning Table of Uses.

e 10893 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof,
entitled “Zoning,” to Amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled, “Marijuana Establishments”
to increase the quota allowed by the Code of the City of Gardner

Information regarding this amendment is available for viewing in the City Clerk’s Office, the
Department of Community Development and Planning (DCDP), or on the City’s webpage —
www.gardner-ma.gov.

All persons interested in this matter and desire to offer testimony are invited to attend the
hearing.

Tts Liphhim,

Titi Siriphan
City Clerk



10893 11113

CITY of GARDNER
Office of the City Clerk
95 Pleasant Street, Room 121
Gardner, MA 01440
*Tel. 978-630-4058 *Fax: 978-630-2589

CITY OF GARDNER
NOTICE OF JOINT PUBLIC HEARING

Pursuant to G.L. 40A, 8 5, notice is hereby given that the City Council and Planning Board will
conduct a Joint Public Hearing on Monday, March 20, 2023 at 6:30 P.M. in the City Council
Chamber, Room 219, City Hall, 95 Pleasant Street, Gardner, to consider amending Chapter 675,
the Zoning Code of the City of Gardner. The proposed Amendment involves changing items:

e 10891 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 Thereof,
entitled “Zoning,” to Change the Classification of Certain Parcels of Land Along Route
140.

e 10892 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof,
entitled “Zoning,” to add “Sports Betting” to the Zoning Table of Uses.

e 10893 — An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof,
entitled “Zoning,” to Amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled, “Marijuana Establishments”
to increase the quota allowed by the Code of the City of Gardner

Information regarding this amendment is available for viewing in the City Clerk’s Office, the
Department of Community Development and Planning (DCDP), or on the City’s webpage —

www.gardner-ma.gov.

All persons interested in this matter and desire to offer testimony are invited to attend the
hearing.

s i jphiam,

Titi Siriphan
City Clerk



11113 10893

City of Gardner - Executive Department
Mayor Michael J. Nicholson

February 3, 2023

Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President
And City Councilors

Gardner City Hall, Rm 121

95 Pleasant St

Gardner, MA 01440

RE: An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner, Chapter 675 thereof, entitled
“Zoning,” to amend Section 1070 thereof, entitled, “Marijuana Establishments” to increase the
quota allowed by the Code of the City of Gardner.

Dear Madam President and Councilors,

As you are aware, in 2018, the retail sale of cannabis products became legalized in the
Commonwealth.

When the City adopted the sale of Marijuana inte our ordinances in November of 2018, the
ordinances limited the number of establishments that could open in the City for the retail sale of
cannabis to twenty percent (20%) of “license issues for retail sale of alcohol not consumed on the
premises.” (Code of the City of Gardner 675-1070(C)(8)(b)).

Whereas the City is currently issued ten (10} liquor licenses that fit this category, this provision
of the City Code limited the number of retail cannabis locations to two (2) locations in the City.

One of the main reasons this quota limit was drafted was due to uncertainty as to how this new
market would run its course in the City and the Commonwealth as a whole. However, since then,
we have seen that these businesses do not provide a detriment to the City, and have seen the
financial benefit the City receives from this as well.

The City currently has one retail location open with Sanctuary, with a second location — Bloc
Cannabis — permitted at the Timpany Crossroads location.

This attached ordinance amendment proposal would increase the number of locations allowed in
the City from two (2) to four (4). It is the belief of the Administration that this would allow more
economic activity in the City based on inquiries that we have seen, keep the industry within a
workable range that we are seeing in market trends with the cannabis industry around the
Commonwealth, and done with the full support of our public safety departments.

Respectfully Submitted,

Sl

Michael J. Nicholson
Mayor, City of Gardner

CC:
City Council Public Welfare Committee
Planning Board



11113 10893

CITY OF GARDNER POLICE DEPARTMENT

200 Main Street
Gardner, Massachusetts 01440
Phone: (978) 632-5600
Fax: (978) 632-9045

Eric P. McAvene Nicholas P. Maroni
Chief of Police Deputy Chief of Police
February 2, 2023

The Honorable Michael J. Nicholson, Mayor
Gardner City Hall

95 Pleasant Street

Gardner, MA 01440

Re: Retail Marijuana Ordinance

Dear Mayor,

After reviewing the proposed ordinance change from two retail dispensary licenses to four, | do not see any
issue with this particular change moving forward. Retaif marijuana dispensaries have been operating in the state for the
past few years and are closely monitored and regulated by the Cannabis Control Commission. Any retail dispensaries
are required to have pre-determined surveillance camera coverage (inside and outside) and purpose-built safes for
stored retail product. ThisIs in addition to physical security during operating hours.

The Gardner Police Department has responded to calls at the current recreational retail dispensary, but the vast
majority of the calls are general service calls (accidents, lockouts, burglar alarms, etc.}. The police department rarely
deals with anything else thera.

We have conducted “compliance checks” at Sanctuary using underage youths to enter and purchase cannabis
products. Sanctuary has never failed 3 compliance check. In fact, no youth has ever made it past the front door. 1 have
spoken to law enforcement in ather host dispensary locations and have not heard of any major issues,

If there are any further questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me,

Very truly yours,

(72

Eric P, McAvene
Chief of Police



11113 10893
City of Gardner

Department of Inspectional Services
115 Plecasant Street, Room 101
Gardner, MA 01440
Tel. (978) 630-4007 Fax: (978) 632-3313

Feb. 7, 2023

RE: Marijuana Retail Establishments
Dear Mr. Mayor,

[ believe the text amendment regarding the number of Marijuana Retail Establishments will only increase opportunities in
the City for revenue, and jobs. From a Zoning standpoint | have seen no ill effects from the existing Marijuana Facility. |
currently have an application for a Building permit for a second facility which would leave us with no additional licenses,
This would in effect tie our hands regarding further growth. | am in full support of this proposal.

Do not hesitate to contact me should you need any further assistance.

Roland Jean

Building Commissioner/Zoning Enforcement Officer
City Hall Annex

115 Pleasant St. RM 101

Gardner, MA 01440

(978) 630 4007

rjean@gardner-ma.gov

Mission Statement
To promote the safe and compatible development of the community through fair and consistent enforcement of
building codes and zoning ordinances



11113 10893

Mazor

From: John Richard

Sent: Wednesday, February 1, 2023 11:14 AM

To: Mayor

Subject: Marijuana Fees History

Hi Mike

Here you go.

Description 2023 Actual |2022 Actual 2021 Actual [2020 Actual 2019 Actual
MARIJUANA HCA FEES 5 26,367.11 | 5124,076.56 | $ 132,015.11 5 118,394.64 | 547,072.12
MARIJUANA SALES EXCISE TAX | $104,773.64 | $237,668.25 | $ 306,969.74 | $ 383,850.54 | $50,330.46
TOTAL $131,140.75 | $361,744.81 | S 438,984.85 | S 502,245.18 | $97,402.58

John Richard
City Auditor

95 Pleasant Street, Room 114
Gardner, MA 01440-2630
978-632-1900 ext 8020

GGARDNER
e 1




11113 10893

Maxor

From: Ashley Metivier

Sent: Wednesday, February 1, 2023 11:04 AM
To: Mayor

Subject: Liquor Retail - Not Consumed on Premise
Hi Mike,

We have 10 locations licensed as retail sale, not consumed on premises:

Malt/Wine Packaged Goods

Town Convenience, 13 Pine St

BP, 221 Main St

South Gardner Mini Mart, 94 S. Main St
lays Variety, 32 E. Broadway

Price Chopper, 500 Main St

All Alcohol Packaged Goods
Beauregard Liquors, 11 West 5t

Brazells, 201 Pleasant St
Hannaford, 14-20 Timpany Blvd
Gardner Spirits, 364 Timpany Blvd
Anthony’s, 12 Pearson Blvd

Let me know if you need any more information!

Ashley Metivier

Administrative Assistant/License Commission Clerk
City of Gardner

95 Pleasant 5t, Room 29

Gardner, MA 01440

P: 978-630-4013 Ext: 8042

F: 978-632-4682

E: AMetivier@gardner-ma.gov

Confidentiality Notice: This email message, including any attachments, is for the use of the intended recipient(s) only and may contain information
that is privileged, confidential, and prohibited from unauthorized disclosure under applicable law. If you are not the intended recipient of this
message, any dissemination, distribution, or copying of this message is strictly prohibited. If you received this message in error, please notify the
sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the original message and attachments. Please be advised that the Massachusetts Secretary of State
considers e-mail to be a public record, and therefore subject to public access under the Massachusetts Public Records Law, M.G.L. ¢. 66 section 10




11113 10893

Select Language ¥

C vrren é
Orcline e Lt
Chapter 675. Zoning

Article X. Supplemental Regulations
§ 675-1070. Marijuana establishments.

A. Purpose.

(1) To provide for the placement of marijuana establishments in appropriate places and under conditions
in accordance with the provisions of MGL ¢. 94G,

(2) To minimize the adverse impacts of marijuana establishments on adjacent properties, residential
neighborhoods, schools and other places where children congregate, local historic districts, and other
sensitive land uses potentially incompatible with said establishments.

(3) To regulate the siting, design, placement, security, safety, monitoring, modification, and discontinuance
of marijuana establishments.

B. Applicability.

{1) No marijuana establishment shall be established except in compliance with the provisions of § 675-
410 (Schedule of permitted uses) and this § 675-1070 (Marijuana establishments).

(2) Nothing in this section shall be construed to supersede federal and state laws governing the sale and
distribution of Class 1 Controlled Substances.

(3) If any provision of this section or the application of any such provision to any person or circumstance
shall be held invalid, the remainder of this section, to the extent it can be given effect, or the
application of those provisions to persons or circumstances other than those to which it is held invalid,
shall not be affected thereby, and to this end the provisions of this section are severable.

C. General requirements and conditions for all marijuana establishments.
(1) All marijuana establishments shall be contained within a building or structure.

(2) The hours of operation of marijuana establishments shall be set by the special permit granting
authority.

(3) No marijuana establishment property line shall be located within 500 linear feet of a lot line where the
following districts, activity, or uses occur:

(@) (Reserved)"
[11  Editor's Note: Former Subsection C(3)(a), regarding nonconforming residential dwellings, was
repealed 9-3-2019 by Ord, No. 1625.

(b} Any church, public or private school or child-care facility; or place where minors frequent (e.g., a
library, ball field, park, sports or family recreation facility, religious facility or the like);

{c) Any other marijuana establishment;
(d) Any drug or alcohol rehabilitation facility; or
(e) Any correctional facility, halfway house or similar facility.

(4) No smoking, burning or consumpfion of any product containing marijuana or marijuana-related
products shall be permitted on the premises of a marijuana establishment.



11113 10893
(5) No marijuana establishment shall be located inside a building containing residential units, including

transient housing such as motels and dormitories, or inside a movable or mobile structure such as a
van or truck.

(6) Marijuana establishments shall provide the Gardner Police and Fire Depariments, Building
Commissioner, Board of Health, and the special permit granting authority with the names, phone
numbers and e-mail addresses of all management staff and key holders to whom one can provide
notice if there are operating problems associated with the establishment.

{(7) The City shall have access at any time to inspect the premises of the marijuana establishment to
ensure compliance with local and state regulations, excluding client health information protected under
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996.

(8) Pursuant to MGL c¢. 94G, § 3(a)(2)(i) to (iii), the maximum number of licensed marijuana
establishments in the City shall be consistent with the following provisions:

(@) Shall not prohibit one or more types of marijuana establishment;

(b) The number of marijuana retail establishments shall not exceed 20% of liquor licenses issued for
retail sale of alcohol not consumed on the premises in the City of Gardner, said number to be
rounded up to the next whole number;

{c) The number of marijuana establishments shall not prevent the conversion of a medical marijuana
treatment center licensed or registered no later than July 1, 2017, to a marijuana establishment
engaged in the same type of activity.

[Amended 9-3-2019 by Ord. No. 1625)

Special permit requirements.

(1} No special permit for any marijuana establishment shall be issued without site plan approval first
having been obtained from the Planning Board, § 675-1010, Site plan review, of this chapter. In
addition to the standards set forth within, the site plan must meet all dimensional, parking,
landscaping, and signage requirements within this chapter.

{2) A marijuana establishment shall only be allowed by special permit from the Gardner Planning Board in
accordance with MGL c. 40A, § 9, subject to the following statements, regulations, requirements,
conditions and limitations.

(3) A special permit for a marijuana establishment shall be limited to one or more of the following uses
that shall be specified by the special permit granting authority:

(a) Marijuana cultivalor;

{b) Marijuana product manufaclurer;

(c) Marijuana retailer;

(d) Marijuana testing facility;

{(e) Marijuana transportation or distribution facility; and

() Any other type of licensed marijuana-related business.

(4} In addition to the application requirements set forth above, a special permit application for a marijuana
establishment shall include the following:

(@) The name and address of each owner of the establishment;

(b) Copies of all required licenses and permits issued to the applicant by the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts Cannabis Control Commission and any of its other agencies for the
establishment;

(c) Evidence of the applicant's right to use the site of the establishment for the establishment, such
as a purchase and sale agreement, deed, owner's authorization, or lease;

(d) Proposed security measures for the marijuana establishment, including lighting, fencing, gates
and alarms, etc., to ensure the safety of persons and to protect the premises from theft. A letter



11113 10893
from the City of Gardner Police Chief, or designee, acknowledging review and approval of the

marijuana establishment security plan is required. To the extent allowed by law, all such
documents shali be confidential.

(5) Mandatory findings. The special permit granting authority shall not issue a special permit for a
marijuana establishment unless it finds that:

{a) The establishment is designed to minimize any adverse impacts on abutters and other parties in
interest, as defined in MGL c. 40A, § 11,

(b) The establishment demonstrates that it will meet all the permitting requirements of all applicable
agencies within the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and will comply with all applicable state
laws and regulations; and

{c} The applicant has satisfied all the conditions and requirements set forth herein.

{6} A special permit granted under this section shall have a term limited to the duration of the applicant's
ownership or ieasehold of the premises as a marijuana establishment. A special permit may be
transferred only with the approval of the special permit granting authority in the form of an amendment
to the special permit with all information required in this § 675-1070.

E. Abandonment or discontinuance of use,
(1) A special permit shall lapse if not exercised within one year of issuance.

(2) A marijuana establishment shall be required to remove all personal property, including but not limited
to all material, plants, equipment, accessories, paraphernalia, and any other property no later than the
earliest of;

(a) Prior to surrendering its state-issued licenses or permits; or

(b) Within six months of ceasing operations.



11180

CITY OF GARDNER - EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT
Michael J. Nicholson, Mayor

February 26, 2024

Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President
And City Councilors

Gardner City Hall, Rm 121

95 Pleasant Street

Gardner, MA 01440

RE: A Communication regarding Informal Meeting of Tuesday, February 20, 2024 relating to
Item # 11180: An Order Appropriating $625,000.00 from Stabilization to DPW Salt Shed

Dear Madam President and Councilors,

Thank you for taking the time to speak with the Administration regarding the proposal to
construct a new salt shed at the DPW facility at your informal meeting held on February 20,
2024. At this meeting, it was requested that the Administration present a synopsis of the
information that was present at that evening. That information is herein provided.

Existing Shed:

Figure 2: Existing Salt Shed facing North

Figure 1: Existing Salt Shed facing South

The existing structure is located at the DPW Garage located at 50 Manca Drive. At
approximately 50 years old, the structure has completed its useful life for the City and is in
extreme need of replacement.



11180

The current building is approximately 40°x82’ and holds 1,200 tons of salt. The side of the
building are bellowing out due to years of holding a corrosive material in a wooden structure,
and the roof has several large holes in it as well.

When the building was originally constructed 50 years ago, it met the needs of the City at that
time, however, a structure that is being supported on the outside by braces on the wall, which is
too short for our current salt trucks to be able to back into requiring the use of a front end loader
both load the trucks but also break up the salt that has been hardened and solidified as a result of
being open to the elements — simply does not meet the need of a modern City with 105 miles of
road.

There were several times during the winter of 2022 — 2023, in which the City was left contacting
other municipalities in the area to borrow salt, because we did not have enough supply on hand
to adequately respond to the winter storm weather we were experiencing, because the City did
not have a place to store the product.

The City should not be at a spot where we have to weigh storage of salt against adequately
treating the roads to make sure they are safe and passable for those traveling around the City and
our emergency response vehicles needing to respond as situations arrive.

Proposed Replacement:

The Administration is proposing to replace the existing salt with a new 65°x140’ structure to be
located on a parcel of land that the City currently owns behind Salvadore Auto across the street
from the DPW Administration Building on Manca Drive.

This 2.9 acre parcel is already owned by the City. The geological survey and engineering plans
for this project show that this parcel is ideal for this purpose, as there are no concerns with



11180

running into any wetlands buffers in the area and there is sufficient room to add precautionary
retention ponds at the site to mitigate any environmental concerns.

Figure 4: Concept Example of Proposed New Salt Shed

The new supplies for the new structure would be purchased from the Inspector General’s “State
Contract,” in which the Commonwealth, through the Inspector General’s Office has already gone
out to bid for the goods. The structure would be constructed on a foundation for four concrete
blocks, with a steel frame, covered by a heavy fabric that was designed and graded for this

purpose.

The site around the structure would also be paved and the existing trees at the site would also
need to be cleared.

While the actual structure itself is under state contract for procurement purposes, the City would
still have to go out to bid for the labor associated with the project at prevailing wage rates.

This new structure would triple the size of the structure and allow us to store enough salt for 12
to 15 storms, approximately 3,600 tons, rather than the 4 to 7 storms that we can currently
provide enough salt supply for.



11180

g
*
| G
VICINITY MAP  scue r=no00

|

Enginéering Content Design by Hannigan Engineering for New Salt Shed Project

!

~ 3

Figure 5:

Security:

The question was also raised about security at the new proposed facility.

Currently, the existing salt shed has no gate in front of its
entrance and is located right next to the street on Manca
Drive.

The proposed structure would be in full view of the current
DPW administration building and have a chain link gate
across the front that will be high enough and locked to block
people from accessing the salt, except for our authorized
DPW personnel.

Financial Options:

The Administration and the City Auditor reviewed several
different funding options for this project. After this review,
the Administration is recommending to take the funding as
an appropriation from the City’s stabilization account with a
plan to replenish the account to where it would be in
accordance with the City’s financial policies.

Building
Installation
Equipment Rentals
Tree Removal
Clear and Grub
Site Materials

Site Work/D-Basins
Paving
Electrical/Lighting
Concrete Blocks
Plywood Interior

OWNER

Salt Shed
$ 185,000.00
200,000.00
28,000.00

$

$

$

$ 20,000.00
$ 10,000.00
$ 50,000.00
$ 30,000.00
$  35,000.00
$ 35,000.00
$ 10,000.00

Total $ 603,000.00
Contingency $  22,000.00
Total $ 625,000.00

Figure 6: Anticipated Project Budget



11180

Stabilization:
Current Balance, Guidelines, and Policies:

The City’s stabilization account currently has a balance of 3,599,953.49. This is the highest this
balance has been since the account was created.

Stabilization Accounts Balance

FY2016 S 2,225,146.26

FY2017 S 2,379,395.86

FY2018 S 2,621,830.43

FY2019 S 2,284,737.78

FY2020 $ 2,651,095.74

FY2021 S 2,938,257.22 % of FY2024 General Fund
FY2022 S 3,188,962.31 3% S 2,198,898.03
FY2023 S  3,206,825.58 5% S 3,664,830.05
FY2024 | S 3,559,953.49

Figure7: Stabilization Account History, FY2016-FY2024

Gardner’s financial policies state that annually, upon certification of Free Cash by the
Commonwealth’s Department of Revenue, the Mayor shall put forward an appropriation request
for an amount equivalent to five percent (5%) of certified Free Cash to be deposited into the
stabilization account.

Additionally, the Department of Revenue best practices state that the goal for municipalities is to
have a balance in their stabilization accounts equivalent to three percent (3%) to five percent
(5%) of their annual operating budget, not including enterprise accounts.

FY 2024 Budget
W a0 $83,688,045 % of FY2024 General Fund
N SCHOOL EXPENSES, 3% S 2“ 198F898. Da
$31,319,046
5% S 3,604,830.05

GENERAL
GOVERNMENT, . . N g,
$32,472,568 Figure 9: Mass Dept of Revenue Guidelines compared to

FY2024 Gardner Operating Budget

ENTERPRISE FUNDS,
$10,391,444

Figure 8: FY2024 Budget Breakdown

The FY2024 budget, adopted by the City Council on June 6, 2023 came to a subtotal of
$73,296,601, not including the enterprise funds.



11180

This places the current balance of the stabilization account directly in target with the
recommended balances by the Commonwealth’s Department of Revenue, even if this
appropriation is taken out.

Per the General Laws of the Commonwealth, the City may only appropriate funds from the
Stabilization Account with a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of the City Council.

Funding Plan:

In the last eight (8) years, the City has averaged a balance of $ in 2,550,183.13 certified free cash
every fall, following the Department of Revenue’s review of the City’s fiscal year close out.

Per the City’s financial policies, that creates an approximate appropriation to the City’s
stabilization account of $127,509.16.

Free Cash Balance FY2016 FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023
Fiscal Year s 2,436,499 | $ 2,274,137 | $ 1482,830 [ $ 3008475 |5 23019605  3611,634]8 2,616,362 | $ 2,579,550.00
Average FC S 2,550,183.13

Average FCtoStab | S  127,509.16
Average FC 15% S 382,527.47

Figure 10: Certified Free Cash, FY2016 - FY2024

Should this appropriation pass the City Council, I would commit to have the Administration
amend the City’s financial policies to a total of fifteen percent (15%) of the City’s certified free
cash for a period of the next four (4) years.

Utilizing the projects from the average amount of free cash the City annually receives, this
should get us not only to where current balance of the stabilization account is without the
appropriation, but also to where it would be has the appropriation not been taken out and the
usual five percent (5%) annual appropriation put into the account.

In simple terms, this is similar to the City taking a short term loan out against itself with the
funds we already have available to us.

Bond (Loan Order):

The City did review the merits of taking a loan order out for the project and bonding the cost of
the proposed facility for both a period of five (5) years and ten (10) years.



11180

In both cases, it would substantially increase the costs to the City by $56,250 in interest with a

five (5) year loan, or $118,125 in interest on a ten (10) year loan.

City of Gardner, Massachusetts

$625,000 General Obligation Bonds Dated June 1, 2024

5 Years, Equal Principal
Interest Estimated; Subject to Change

Debt Service Schedule
Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+l Fiscal Total

06/01/2024 - - - -
12/01/2024 - - 9,375.00 9,375.00 -
06/01/2025 125,000.00 3.000% 9,375.00 134,375.00 -
06/30/2025 - - - - 143,750.00
12/01/2025 - - 7,500.00 7,500.00 -
06/01/2026 125,000.00 3.000% 7.,500.00 132,500.00 -
06/30/2026 - - - - 140,000.00
12/01/2026 - - 5,625.00 5,625.00 -
06/01/2027 125,000.00 3.000% 5,625.00 130,625.00 -
06/30/2027 - - - - 136,250.00
12/01/2027 - - 3,750.00 3,750.00 -
06/01/2028 125,000.00 3.000% 3,750.00 128,750.00 -
06/30/2028 - - - - 132,500.00
12/01/2028 - - 1,875.00 1,875.00 -
06/01/2029 125,000.00 3.000% 1,875.00 126,875.00 -
06/30/2029 - - - - 128,750.00

Total $625,000.00 $56,250.00 $681,250.00 -

Figure 11: Bond Scenario for 5 Year Loan for Project

(Section Continues on Next Page)



11180

City of Gardner, Massachusetts
$625,000 General Obligation Bonds Dated June 1, 2024
10 Years, Equal Principal
Interest Estimated; Subject to Change

Debt Service Schedule

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+l Fiscal Total
06/01/2024 - - - - -
12/01/2024 - - 10,937.50 10,937.50 -
06/01/2025 65,000.00 3.500% 10,937.50 75,937.50 -
06/30/2025 - - - - 86,875.00
12/01/2025 - - 9,800.00 9,800.00 -
06/01/2026 65,000.00 3.500% 9,800.00 74,800.00 -
06/30/2026 - - - - 84,600.00
12/01/2026 - - 8,662.50 8,662.50 -
06/01/2027 65,000.00 3.500% 8.,662.50 73,662.50 -
06/30/2027 - - - - 82,325.00
12/01/2027 - - 7.525.00 7,525.00 -
06/01/2028 65,000.00 3.500% 7.525.00 72,525.00 -
06/30/2028 - - - - 80,050.00
12/01/2028 - - 6,387.50 6,387.50 -
06/01/2029 65,000.00 3.500% 6,387.50 71,387.50 -
06/30/2029 - - - - 77.775.00
12/01/2029 - - 5,250.00 5,250.00 -
06/01/2030 60,000.00 3.500% 5,250.00 65,250.00 -
06/30/2030 - - - - 70,500.00
12/01/2030 - - 4,200.00 4,200.00 -
06/01/2031 60,000.00 3.500% 4,200.00 64,200.00 -
06/30/2031 - - - - 68,400.00
12/01/2031 - - 3,150.00 3,150.00 -
06/01/2032 60,000.00 3.500% 3,150.00 63,150.00 -
06/30/2032 - - - - 66,300.00
12/01/2032 - - 2,100.00 2,100.00 -
06/01/2033 60,000.00 3.500% 2,100.00 62,100.00 -
06/30/2033 - - - - 64,200.00
12/01/2033 - - 1,050.00 1,050.00 -
06/01/2034 60,000.00 3.500% 1,050.00 61,050.00 -
06/30/2034 - - - - 62,100.00

Total $625,000.00 - $118,125.00 $743,125.00 -

Figure 12: Bond Scenario, 10 year loan

Additionally, Hilltop Securities, Inc., the City’s Bond Counsel, recommended against taking a

loan out for this project, as the amount was too small to be advantageous to bond companies that
would issue the loan to the City. They recommend against taking out long term loans, defined as
a period of five (5) or more years, for any amount under one million dollars ($1,000,000) for this
purpose, due to the higher chance of larger fees and interest payments due to the smaller amount.

Bond Anticipation Note (BAN):

The other funding option that the Administration explored was the possibility of taking out a
Bond Anticipation Note (“BAN”) for the project. However, this also proved to be more
financially impracticable, as it would cost the City an extra $62,500 to $109,187.50 in interest on



11180

the project with a five (5) year loan, or $62,500 to $173,500 in interest on the project with a ten
(10) year loan.

City of Gardner, Massachusetts
$625,000 General Obligation Bonds Dated June 1, 2026
Assumes 2 years of BANs dated June 1, 2024, followed by 3-Year Bonds
**interest estimated, subject to change*™*

Debt Service Schedule

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+l Fiscal Total
06/01/2024 - - - - -
06/01/2025 625,000.00 5.000% 31,250.00 31,250.00 -
06/30/2025 - - - - 31,250.00
06/01/2026 625,000.00 5.000% 31,250.00 31,250.00 -
06/30/2026 - - - - 31,250.00
12/01/2026 - - 11,718.75 11,718.75 -
06/01/2027 210,000.00 3.750% 11,718.75 221,718.75 -
06/30/2027 - - - - 233,437.50
12/01/2027 - - 7,781.25 7,781.25 -
06/01/2028 210,000.00 3.750% 7,781.25 217,781.25 -
06/30/2028 - - - - 225,562.50
12/01/2028 - - 3,843.75 3,843.75 -
06/01/2029 205,000.00 3.750% 3,843.75 208,843.75 -
06/30/2029 - - - - 212,687.50

Total $625,000.00 - $109,187.50 $734,187.50 -

Figure 13: Bond Scenario, 2 year BAN on a 5 year loan

(Section Continues on Next Page)



11180

City of Gardner, Massachusetts

$625,000 General Obligation Bonds Dated June 1, 2026

Assumes 2 years of BANs dated June 1, 2024, followed by 8-Year Bonds
**interest estimated, subject to change**

Debt Service Schedule

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+l Fiscal Total
06/01/2024 - - - - -
06/01/2025 625,000.00 5.000% 31,250.00 31,250.00 -
06/30/2025 - - - - 31,250.00
06/01/2026 625,000.00 5.000% 31,250.00 31,250.00 -
06/30/2026 - - - - 31,250.00
12/01/2026 - - 12,500.00 12,500.00 -
06/01/2027 80,000.00 4.000% 12,500.00 92,500.00 -
06/30/2027 - - - - 105,000.00
12/01/2027 - - 10,900.00 10,900.00 -
06/01/2028 80,000.00 4.000% 10,900.00 90,900.00 -
06/30/2028 - - - - 101,800.00
12/01/2028 - - 9,300.00 9,300.00 -
06/01/2029 80,000.00 4.000% 9,300.00 89,300.00 -
06/30/2029 - - - - 98,600.00
12/01/2029 - - 7,700.00 7,700.00 -
06/01/2030 80,000.00 4.000% 7,700.00 87,700.00 -
06/30/2030 - - - - 95,400.00
12/01/2030 - - 6,100.00 6,100.00 -
06/01/2031 80,000.00 4.000% 6,100.00 86,100.00 -
06/30/2031 - - - - 92,200.00
12/01/2031 - - 4,500.00 4,500.00 -
06/01/2032 75,000.00 4.000% 4,500.00 79,500.00 -
06/30/2032 - - - - 84,000.00
12/01/2032 - - 3,000.00 3,000.00 -
06/01/2033 75,000.00 4.000% 3,000.00 78,000.00 -
06/30/2033 - - - - 81,000.00
12/01/2033 - - 1,500.00 1,500.00 -
06/01/2034 75,000.00 4.000% 1,500.00 76,500.00 -
06/30/2034 - - - - 78,000.00

Total $625,000.00 - $173,500.00 $798,500.00 -

Figure 14: Bond Scenario, 2 year BAN on a 10 year loan

Under this type of financing plan, the City would pay an extra increased interest payment for a
period of two (2) years in exchange for not making any payments toward the principal amount of
the loan during that time period, then once the two years are expired, the payments on the
principal would begin.

This is similar to a student in college who takes out a student loan before they graduate where
they are still subject to interest but not required to make payments toward the principal on the
loan. However, unlike that example, the City would still be liable to make the initial interest

payments during the two anticipation years.



11180

Final Funding Recommendation:

After consulting with Hilltop Securities, the City’s Bond Counsel, and the City’s Auditor and
Treasurer, taking out a loan or a BAN for this project are not advisable due to the small amount
of the project.

CAUTION: This email originated from a sender outside of the City of Gardner mail system. Do not click on
links or open attachments unless you verify the sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Jen. Attached please find estimated debt service schedules assuming the City would issue BANs for 2
years beginning in June 2024, followed by 3-year Bonds (for a total term of 5 years) and 8-year Bonds (for
a total term of 10 years). The Bonds assume equal principal payments. Do you know when the City would
plan to borrow for this? Would you issue with any of the City’s other authorized but unissued debt? We
wanted to mention that it would make sense to combine this with other borrowing needs as $625,000
would be quite small and unattractive as a standalone bond issue. As always, please don’t hesitate to let
us know if you have any questions or need anything else. Thanks!

Megan Hyland
Hilltop Securities Inc.
Vice President | Investment Banker

Figure 15: Email from Bond Counsel to City Treasurer, 24 FEB 2024

Additionally, the City’s budget has already seen substantial increases in interest payments alone,
simply from the Gardner Elementary School loan hitting the City’s books for payment last year.

Debt Service, Gardner, FY2022 to FY2024

$4,500,000.00
$4,000,000.00
$3,500,000.00
$3,000,000.00
$2,500,000.00
$2,000,000.00

$1,500,000.00
$1,000,000.00
$500,000.00 . . .
s_

Principal Interest Total
HFY22 EFY23 mFY24

Figure 16: Gardner Debt Service, Principal, Interest, and total, FY22-24

Gardner General Fund Debt Service
Principal Interest Total
FY22 | S 784,361.00 | S 744,946.00 | $1,529,307.00
FY23 | $1,983,740.00 | S 741,000.00 | $2,724,740.00
FY24 | $2,302,930.00 | $1,950,375.00 | $4,253,305.00




11180

As such, the Administration, at the recommendation of Bond Counsel, the City Auditor, and the
City Treasurer are recommending that the appropriation for this project come from the City’s
stabilization account.

I understand that this account is supposed to really be reserved for emergency purposes,
however, there is precedent in Gardner for using these funds to cover capital projects that are an
immediate need of the City, like the replacement of the existing salt shed. In 2017, the City
Council voted to appropriate funds from the stabilization account to fund a portion of the
Watkins Field renovation project.

If the City had a lower amount in our stabilization account or we did not have a plan to replenish
this account within the proposed four (4) year period, I would not be proposing this be the
funding source for this project. However, we have the funding available and we have a plan in
place to protect the City financially in the long term. For these reasons, I truly believe this is the
best path forward for the City on this project.

Respectfully Submitted,

ol f Ll

Michael J. Nicholson
Mayor, City of Gardner

Enclosures:
City Financial Policies



11180

City of Gardner - Executive Office
Administration Budget and Financial Management
Policies
23" Administration of the City of Gardner

Introduction

The City of Gardner has an important responsibility to carefully account for public funds, to
manage municipal finances wisely, and to plan and provide for the adequate funding of services
desired by the public and as required by laws, rules, or regulations, including the provision and
maintenance of public facilities and improvements. The following financial principles set forth
the broad framework for overall fiscal planning and management of the City of Gardner’s
resources. In addition, these principles address both current activities and long-term planning.
The budget and financial goals and policies set forth by the Administration in this document are
intended to establish guidelines for the continued financial strength and stability of the City of
Gardner.

Goals

o To provide full value to the residents and business owners of Gardner for each tax dollar by
delivering quality services efficiently and on a cost- effective basis.

e To preserve our quality of life by providing and maintaining adequate financial resources
necessary to sustain a sufficient level of municipal services, and to respond to changes in the
economy, the priorities of governmental and non-governmental organizations, and other
changes that may affect our financial well-being.

e To achieve and maintain a top level, AAA, credit rating

e To guide City decision makers on management and policy decisions which have significant fiscal
importance

o To set forth operating principles that minimizes the cost of government and financial risk.

e To employ balanced and fair revenue policies that provides adequate funding for desired
programs.

e To maintain appropriate financial capacity for present and future needs.

e To promote sound financial management by providing accurate and timely information on the
City’s financial condition



11180

e To ensure the legal use of financial resources through an effective system of internal controls.

Policies

To achieve the goals mentioned in this document, the Administration has adopted the following
policies. These policies were created with the full understanding that the City Council retains the
full right to approve appropriations and the incurrence of debt, as required by law, and within
statutory limits, such as those set forth by Proposition 2 Y.

Operating Budget

Sound financial practice and the desire to maintain a strong credit rating dictate that our budgets
be balanced, constantly monitored, and responsive to changes in service demands. With these
concepts in mind, the City of Gardner has adopted the following budget policy statements.

e The Mayor shall annually prepare a balanced budget and comprehensive Budget Message as
required by state law and city charter. The Budget Message shall include a detailed examination
of trends in tax levy “new growth” revenues, local receipts, state aid, and available funds.

e The annual operating budgets will be appropriated on a balanced basis, where operating
revenues (estimated revenues) are used to fund operating expenditures/expenses
(appropriations)

o Operating revenues include property taxes, motor vehicle excises, charges for services,
interest earnings, license and permit fees, fines and forfeitures, regularly recurring
governmental aid, and transfers in from other funds established for operating purposes.

o Operating expenditures/expenses include salaries and wages, employee benefits,
equipment and improvements, depreciation (property funds only), materials, supplies,
and contractual costs. These expenditures shall be broken down by city department in
the annual budget document presented to the City Council by the Administration.

e The Administration will avoid budgetary procedures that balance current expenditures at the
expense of meeting future expenses, such as postponing expenditures or accruing future years’
revenues.

e Nothing in this policy shall prohibit the use of operating revenues for capital
expenditures/expenses

e The Administration will avoid relying on Free Cash to fund on-going operating expenses.

e To the extent possible, one-time revenues that are not required by law or agreement to be
expended for a particular purpose will only be used for capital purposes, augmenting of City
reserves, or emergency expenditures/expenses

e The operating budget will not be subsidized by the Stabilization Fund.

Revenues

Revenues determine the capacity of the City of Gardner to provide services. To ensure that
revenues for the City are balanced and capable of supporting desired levels of services, the
Administration has adopted the following policies:

e Revenue forecasts for local receipts and state aid shall be conservative, using generally accepted
forecasting techniques and appropriate data. Revenue deficits will be avoided at all costs. To



11180

avoid any potential deficits, estimates for local receipts will generally not exceed 100% of the
prior year’s actual collections.

e Each year and whenever appropriate, existing revenues will be re-examined and possible new
sources of revenues will be explored to ensure that we are maximizing our revenue potential.

e The Administration shall strive to be informed and aware of all grants and other aide that may
be available to us. All potential grants and other aid shall be carefully examined for matching
requirements (both dollar and level-of-effort) and restrictive covenants, to ensure that our
participation in such grants will be beneficial and cost-effective.

e Each year and whenever appropriate, intergovernmental revenues will be reviewed to
determine their short and long-term stability, to minimize the impact of any adverse changes.
Intergovernmental revenues shall be used as legally prescribed or otherwise set forth by policy.

e One-time revenues will be used for capital improvements, additions to reserves, or as legally
restricted to a specific purpose.

e The City will carefully and routinely monitor all amounts due the City. An aggressive policy of
collection will be followed for all receivables, including property taxes.

e Enterprise fund user charges and fees will be set to recover all direct and associated costs within
the activities of these funds as well as any indirect costs associated with these accounts.

Reserves:

A municipality’s fiscal policies should include a plan for maintaining reserves. Operating
reserves are a prudent fiscal management tool and an important credit factor in the analysis for
financial flexibility. The City of Gardner will maintain a level of reserves that protect the City
from emergency conditions that require financial flexibility and contribute to the high credit
rating that the City currently holds from Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s Investment Services.
To provide for adequate levels of reserves to protect the City’s financial condition over the long-
term, the Administration has adopted the following financial reserves policy:

Stabilization Account:

o The City of Gardner shall maintain a Stabilization Fund to provide the reserves that are required
to protect the financial condition of the City.

e The City will work toward the goal of maintaining in the Stabilization Fund an amount equal to
five percent (5%) of the total projected general fund operating revenues for the previous fiscal
year.

e Withdrawals from the Stabilization Fund will only be used for sudden and unexpected events, in
extreme circumstances. Withdrawals from the Stabilization Fund will only be made in
accordance with Massachusetts General Laws, City Ordinances and the City Charter.

Free Cash:

Whereas the amount of Free Cash certified every year may differ depending on revenue and
expense trends that take place throughout the fiscal year, the Administration will avoid using
Free Cash to fund portions of the operating budget. In doing so, the Administration seeks to use
Free Cash for liability coverage, capital costs, and other one-time expenses that may arise during
the remainder of the fiscal year. All this is done with the understanding that the City Council has
appropriating authority under Massachusetts General Laws, City Ordinances, and the City
Charter.



11180

The first request for appropriation of free cash on behalf of the Administration to the City
Council shall be five percent (5%) of the total amount certified that year into the City
Stabilization Account.

One percent (1%) of the certified amount of free cash requested on behalf of the Administration
from the City Council shall be appropriated into the Other Post-Employment Benefit Trust Fund
annually.

After the previous two appropriations have been approved, the Administration will request that
10% of the total certified amount be appropriated for Road Resurfacing and Repair annually.
After the aforementioned appropriations have been approved by the City Council, the Mayor
shall use the remaining available Free Cash to fund capital costs that the City may undertake or
extraordinary budgetary costs that become foreseeable by the end of the fiscal year.



11180

Ta X vl O 5 sull

City of Gardner - Executive Department == '
Mayor Michael J. Nicholson

U giy NI 13X o T3
I.b-<j:1!_g] ?:; E's}

January 25, 2024 ‘ iCE

Hon. Elizabeth J. Kazinskas, Council President
And City Councilors

Gardner City Hall, Rm 121

95 Pleasant Street

Garnder, MA 01440

RE: Stabilization Appropriation Request- DPW Salt Shed

Dear Madam President and Councilors,

The current salt storage shed at the Department of Public Works is in large amounts of disrepair
and it is the opinion of the Administration that this forty-year-old building will no longer be able
to accommodate the City’s needs come next winter.

In order to allow enough time for the construction of the new salt shed to be constructed, I am
submitting this request to the City Council asking for an appropriation from the City’s
Stabilization Account to build this structure that is necessary for our winter road safety
operations.

Once the winter is over, and we have a better picture as to what we expended for Snow and Ice
removal this year, the Administration will be reviewing replenishing the stabilization account
with a free cash appropriation, however, I do not feel comfortable requesting an appropriation of
this size out of free cash until we see the full financial picture that this winter will bring.

Respectfully Submitted,

ity V74

Michael J. Nicholson
Mayor, City of Gardner



11180

AN ORDER APPROPRIATING FROM STABILIZATION TO DPW SALT
SHED

ORDERED:

That there be and is hereby appropriated the sum of Six Hundred Twenty-Five
Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($625,000.00) from Stabilization to DPW Salt Shed.



11180

CITY OF GARDNER
Department of Public Works

Highway Dane E. Arnold, Director
Water 50 Manca Drive
Sewer Gardner, MA 01440-2687
Forestry Telephone (978) 630-8195
Parks/Playgrounds darnold@gardner-ma.gov
Cemeteries

Mayor Micheal J. Nicholson
95 Pleasant Street
Gardner, MA 01440
January 25, 2024
Dear Mayor Nicholson,

| am writing to express my concern about the current state of our city's salt storage shed
and to urge you to consider allocating funds for its replacement. The current salt storage
shed is approximately 50 years old and in significant disrepair. The attached pictures
show larger portions of the roof missing and the walls bowed out of plumb from rot. | do
not believe the building has much time left before a catastrophic failure.

The proposed replacement salt storage shed is a pre-engineered galvanized metal truss
structure with fabric covering. These buildings are the most cost-efficient method for
construction when total storage area is prioritized. The shed will be built in a new
location across the street from the DPW administration building at 50 Manca Drive. This
new site, which is already owned by the City of Gardner, will allow the shed to be
approximately 3 times larger. Having this additional storage volume will enable the DPW
to stockpile enough salt to treat 12-15 storms. The DPW has already contracted with an
engineering firm to complete the site plan design in order to comply with all
Massachusetts Stormwater Regulations.

The cost estimate for this project is $625,000.00. This price includes $465,000 for the
physical structure and its installation along with and additional $160,000 for site work,
paving, lighting, stormwater mitigation and fencing. Once funding is secured work will be
able to start in the spring and hopefully be completed for the 24'-25' winter season. We
plan on trying to do as much of the work in-house to reduce costs.

Please contact me if you need any further information.

Sincerely,

Tzl

Dane E. Arnold, Director
Department of Public Works




11180

Maxor '

From: Dane Arnold

Sent: Wednesday, January 17, 2024 2:52 PM
To: Mayor; Rob Oliva; Chris Coughlin
Subject: RE: Cost Estimate- New Salt Shed
Hello,

Please find the Salt Shed Estimate below:

Salt Shed

Building $ 185,000.00
Installation $ 200,000.00
Equipment Rentals $ 28,000.00
Tree Removal $ -
Clear and Grub $ 20,000.00
Site Materials $ 10,000.00
Site Work/D-Basins $ 50,000.00
Paving $ 30,000.00
Electrical/Lighting $ 35,000.00
Concrete Blocks $ 35,000.00
Plywood Interior $ 10,000.00
Total $ 603,000.00
Contingency $ 22,000.00
Total $ 625,000.00
Thank You,

Dane E. Arnold, Director
Department of Public Works

50 Manca Drive
Gardner, MA 01440
978-630-8195



11180




11180







. e LR e ST T S
b ‘3‘3:‘*"?.% =
‘}L*.‘e.gg = B e e




3
2
1
!
5




-~~~
BROADWAYAsine 3
E .

7/

)

ity e ‘;
y WEST’ABR_0|

[ ocaton of ﬁapa:\:./ﬂ/tw Sheo




11180

0ov'oLL anjeA pueT [ejo | 96°Z| ealy pue] [ejo) [soied OV |96°C sjun) puel pJed |ejo
0086 000°S 000°L |0 00'L 00'L (000°L| O |000L|00000'S |OV |096'}L 0 0 4 10 aupseo jo Ayo| oo0e6 | L
009°00L 144 000°L |0 00'L| 1D 00°L |000°L| V |000L[LEC 3S |09s‘ey 0 0 _|2] 12 aupie9 Jo Auo| 006 | L
anjeA pue | aud yun lpy | vezis Buioud [eroads SSION Ipy [xpI1S|1084 0| 1@ 2V | V'S |1084 "I | @dud hun|  shun pue ydeq | euoi4 (| suoz uopduasag |opasn| g
NOLLIIS NOILYNTVA INIT ANV
pajsii+insesN| 00 | € 1861-0€-90
pajsii+inseaN| 00 | OVr 8002-82-0}
|82Jed juedeA| 2¢ | MD 22¢02-62-S0
JinsayAsoding po| pI S| adAj aea SjuaWIWo) dwo) aea dwo) % a)e dsu| junowy uondudsag adA| a)e anss| pl Jwed
AHOLSIH JONVHI / LISIA QX093 LINNId ONIGTING
00041
juaunsnipy|
0 uondwax3
o} POUISIN uoneneA
oov'oLL anje [eoJed pasieiddy [ejo ]
0 anjeA pue [eads
00v'04L (Bpig) anfeA puen pesieiddy SILON —
0 (Bpig) @njeA (g) qO pesieiddy| T TR g SWEN PUGN UGN
0 (6pig) enfeA (g) Jx pesteiddy JOOH
0 (preD) anjeA ‘Bpig pastesddy 00'0 oL
AAYIWIHNS INTVA dISIviddyY
U] WwoD junowy JequnnN uonduosaqg 9poD junowy uonduosag 9poD | Jeaj
4053955\ 10 1061I0D E1EQ © Aq s @ soBpapouyoe ainjeubls sy _SANZWSSISSY H3H SNOLLJWIXT
00S'09 el 005'09 el 00€'89 [eloL
00509 00€6 | +20Z | 00S'09 00€6 | 220Z | 00E‘89 00€6 | €202
possassy | epo) | Jesp | possessy | epoD | JeeA | pessessy | epoy | teaA | 34| 0 A | O |006L-10-L0 0|} YINQHVO 4O ALID
3 A (VA1 N/ 131Va JTVS |TOVI/IOA-MEG]  dIHSHYINMO IO QHOIFy |
00p'oLL 00y 0LL [Elol #Pld d0ssy €26€26 €016SL W daisio
*09.d
plem
ojoyd
AQg-ans
alpiduy| 0PV VA YINQHVO
_ viva .=\._~ EIVEREL] _ _
VIV “4INGNYD E MIIA : _ EE_!I GZl 31S 1S INVSVY31d S6
o1e 00t'0LL 00%0LL 00€6 ANV NX3
passassy pasiesddy %) uonduosag I | I Bh._I HINQHVYO 40 ALID
ANIWSSISSV INIHHND NOIVIOT | I3J3IS | ALTIA | JJALOdOL |  HINMOINIYIND |
Wd 9G:G:9 ¥202/2/L @1eq juld l Jo | #ped Ll Jo | #0988 I #6pig # JUNOJ2Y Ly0Z  dl UoISIA
00€6 8sn e.ls sweN bpig /Iy 6L ILLN QI den HAVONVW  uoneso Apedoud



11180

0 0 0 Baly 95ea7 /N[ SSO0ID i1
anje/ 2aidepun) | 10D U | eely 43 SS0J9 UIAI uondudsseq easeqns
- 7ing
t[en siesddy | enp [eio] puod | “deq | % | ud A | 99ud yun [swun|uej| adki gng | ng | uondudoseg | epod
| (9)s3ynLv3Id Vo.IXT ONIGIING - IX/ (TISWILI GYVA 2 ONIGTIN - g0

i ujpud upu
JUsWIWOY JAQ 8InY 0} }s0D sooe|dallg

JAQ 8In) 0} }s0D yed wnN

Juswwio) JAQ dwij osipy Jjusweseg

JAQ duwij asiN 901 PIIsN

Juswwo) MO deq SO0l PIHSN

0 % dag ¥01 PIsN

0 aNoy €01 PIHSN

UOIIPUOY % |[BJ3A0 upud

0 aje|dwod % SuayoNY WNN

uonipuo) 21 usyouy

! Jojoe pusi] 10D BlIS yeg

0 [0SqQ dlwouod] :swooy [ejo

0 josqQ [euonoung sipad ey [eoL
% uoperoaidag syleq jleH [ejoL
pajepoway Jea) ‘sulyg [ero L

Buney [spoway swooJpag [ej0L
8po uopejoaidag :edA) OV

yoJeys oN 0 jing Jes) eAoay3 adA | yesH
0 Hing Jed [eng jeay

fpv 80 18N Z 14 Jousyuj

0 NOY L 414 Jousju|

ejey eseq [py. Z IleM Jous|

NOILYNTYA LINHYN/LSOD 1 Ile M Jousyu|

0 JanoQ jooy

0 ‘21njong Jooy

00} AJoupreg o AI9|  00£6 Z lle M Jouapg
[_obejusoieg uonduosag 8poD L lIleM Jouexg
3sn a3IxXin Kouednaop

001 PIHSN :ssL0lg

20l PIHSN :apelo

LOL PIISN jueoep 00 PO

801 PIISN pueT juesep 66 sifis

uonduosed [) Juswie3 uondussag ) ENEE]

(GINNILNOD) TIVLIA NOLLONHLSNOD VLI NOLLONHLSNOD |

Wd 95:5%9 $202/2/l 8¥eq Wid L Jo | #peD L o | #0988 L #6pg # Junodoy Lv0Z QI UoISIp

00€6 2SN elels /1y /6 /LLN a1 dep HAVONVIN  uoeoo Apedoid



i TR I
S B Be gk il e ‘§"E§§'§E N I i
g i it 2 A i o il ‘§§a=§“§a§i‘ S NE1FHE
& wilf ety o ar ofy Hih e jfégsﬁg 3z :
Q EEgg My Eggrs ghie 1 g 2000 gt é‘ 5’-35 efid v 3 I s 5
g EBE! E!HEE;!“E !il,gg E’Efigtis z 9 H 2|8
il i i *igsﬁs N INS I
b ol GO F | O e
: i §55§=‘§§:s%'fgfgs‘sé*g*%??;‘izgéi i i 2 Sl R
T Rl ,m.ga.égzé:Eai*izisgizgﬁssgs:,izifiiississ ] N e - NEHEE
g o %;
% ;é: gg =+
..% ; Q 3
S J
[§ Z
: g
\ é I

/
NaZ_
-

Ll
- ~ s —
= T3y §79 S5V 43d MY3eLS

OMISKZ 10 NOWLYDT 32 YAXO¥AY




TN Eoget? e W i foe e g e 1
S Bl s i il Td Bl | | dlze| | T
3, | 3;§§5§§§§§§ BT O | R T
sy finey [ e R 2 &3 : -
S §;g§ ol gigaégﬁgi;géfjﬁg gigigg *;sgi H §§§§§;§§5§=§§§§§§§§g Eigg T ;g gi 1N \AARE
EH !"““ 8 s E::i 2¥nd b !E ?; Z5 d }. fg ]
. 2 Eh‘g i‘ 3§E Egi g‘ § l&lﬁ Eg I &ig

g o g§§§§§§g§g 5;;’& §§§ g“ gigg § Eg imgg EEE“ Eim 5535 §§gn§5 E§‘§ Qi ggg i 3 2 §§»§*. §
S b i o g et §) 290 0le S| Al
S s | O [ 0[5 ) R
q

SIORAGE 2
BULONG
Z

gy
Z

g exs:

Z

Z

VICINITY MAP  soee ,-.,_m|

. - 3. /.
S — -/rmav 575 Sourt w34 LS - oo Jpo © |§ § 2 g -
ONISET A0 NOUYIDT 3L ¥HXOBIAY | 4 % '/.| 3 5
L—————I— —"“*f\—“ v o8 |
! 1 b o7 i I’\
I t4
AN . VA




PROJECT INFORMATION

"5h §§2 nn§ 55 3 Ny § o Z
i et i §;g§,§s s, §§§§§§5§g§§ S Rl B [P
i i bty o f MR B L | g gl
L =§§§3§§§§§;§§s bl 55é§§§g;§i;gi=§§»§§§§ﬂé th g JIE
s | | g §§§’§ il 5§§§§§=§§§‘§§E§§§“§Eggg; ;ggé L LE g
gg_g Ei y ! §§§;:§§§s§s§g§ i §§3§5§4§5§E§= EEEES*;EE?**:%S% Eggi qe Qi EE' gjf ol §
§ E§§§,§§§E g;%:; sg,agggghgg g. o ggréﬁgggsngag..gﬂ gugaggaggaigiig aagg Egg £ é é
i ?2?5535&5%’5@535&5%?3 i EES sl | O 8 N5

:

DATE: JUNE 1, 20:
SHEET 1 OF ! |PLAN NO:Cc-18-

JOB NO: 3104

SCALE: 1°=30'

DRWN: MG
APPD: pa
FB: 76-108

SRV: MG
TAB: EX-CON

CHKD: D&

CALC: D&

Shy

50" WMDE

VICINITY MAP __ scue 11,0001

MANCA DRIVE

1225.21'¢"

MA 01440

95 PLEASANT STREET

CITY OF GARDNER
SUITE 125

QWNER

e, Y %
Vs N (R
‘%’ ; N
N\ S A
\
R AT
< NS
‘s \\EX\{
-
£
4 ;§§ }ﬁ!
\» i éim/
A+ A :
‘ 5
; §s§
A i My e 55
’ \C *gi "%"“;:% ggi i
R 2t 3‘«?&%%»};‘3,}
s ro-sio
R 0 Yyer- N
gl oy ST O
LN et A
0 s G |g 3 a2 N S
1 1§ 5 ;,/u 3
| %2347
\ ﬁ‘!i ; I'> {\:i '\-
I M






